


Rl = )
B S o N JI‘ :
3 ﬂiﬂ SR S | h
Y Jits

. 1
M v.‘.:J.If e, ‘E-

‘-' \El"’\ i| g !"," .
i & l_", ar SR DD 15 gl
iy i N SR
) } e e -
e Senat ] £ L
standing Committee. on R B U, oo e

Agriculture and rarcstry.
S VR s R Proceedings...
'}}I\"}'ﬁ ". { it ﬂ.‘?,‘ 0 '* -lA ———— = = - ~=]

:
s

1

i \ !
| i :
‘ i i;' ¥
B i
| 4
]
]
\ ]
‘ 3
|
1 A
|
‘ .?‘“ '
‘ i
| | ,

T i
":'.,' o 3 W ‘5‘?“‘
ey gt - ¢ L

RN A4




u

e 7
% ‘_y.:\u,u...-u, o
: ]

s ”” :

IH—,.Il]I ‘h._ t

‘,'|||.. ."3-_ [ IR P
T T R Llu'm ﬂm AN R

i S e R SRS i : -
’L ' I*.:".'.'I.' i Frliey .nr -,;gr,l Ly f"‘aﬂjhﬂ ; i '
EC BRIk 5
| N |
|

s I T t
b
o Ir,‘ L H
‘ o [ 4 3
f .'r'




R
*.-u
|r:i] 0 I




28019

Third Session
Thirty-fourth Parliament, 1991

SENATE OF CANADA

Proceedings of the Standing
Senate Committee on

Agriculture
and
Forestry

Chairman:
The Honourable E. W. BAROOTES

Thursday, October 3, 1991

Issue No. 1

Organization meeting

Troisiéme session de la
trente-quatriéme législature, 1991

SENAT DU CANADA

Délibérations du Comité
sénatorial permanent de

L’agriculture
et
des forets

Président:
L’honorable E. W. BAROOTES

Le jeudi 3 octobre 1991

Fascicule n° 1

Séance d’organisation



THE STANDING SENATE COMMITTEE
ON AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY

The Honourable E.W. Barootes, Chairman
and

the Honourable Senators:

Bélisle *Murray or
Doyle Lynch-Staunton
*Frith or Ross
Molgat Rossiter
Macquarrie Sylvain
*Ex Officio Members
(Quorum 4)

Pursuant to Rule 66(4), membership of the Committee was
amended as follows:

The name of the Honourable Senator Sylvain substituted for
that of the Honourable Senator Lynch-Staunton (September
24, 1991);

The name of the Honourable Senator Macquarrie substituted
for that of the Honourable Senator Forrestall (October 2,
1991);

The name of the Honourable Senator Doyle substituted for
that of the Honourable Senator Spivak (October 2, 1991).

Published under authority of the Senate by the
Queen’s Printer for Canada

LE COMITE SENATORIAL PERMANENT DE
L’AGRICULTURE ET DES FORETS

Président: 1’honorable E. W. Barootes
et

Les honorables sénateurs:

Bélisle *Murray ou
Doyle Lynch-Staunton
*Frith ou Ross
Molgat Rossiter
Macquarrie Sylvain
*Membres d’office
(Quorum 4)

Conformément a l'article 66(4) du Reéglement, la liste des
membres du Comité est modifiée, ainsi qu’il suit:

Le nom de I'honorable sénateur Sylvain substitué a celui de
I’honorable sénateur Lynch-Staunton (24 septembre 1991);

Le nom de I’honorable sénateur Macquarrie substitué a celui
de I’honorable sénateur Forrestall (le 2 octobre 1991);

Le nom de I’honorable sénateur Doyle substitué a celui de
I’honorable sénateur Spivak (le 2 octobre 1991).

Publié en conformité de I'autorité du Sénat par
I'Imprimeur de la Reine pour le Canada

Available from Canada Communication Group — Publishing,
Supply and Services Canada, Ottawa, Canada K1A 0S9

En vente: Groupe Communication Canada — Edition,
Approvisionnements et Services Canada, Ottawa, Canada K1A 0S9



3-10-1991 Agriculture et foréts 1:3
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAL

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 3, 1991 LE JEUDI 3 OCTOBRE 1991

(1 (1)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Senate Standing Committee on Agriculture and Fores-
try met this day in Room 356-S, at 10:00 a.m. for the purpose
of organization pursuant to Rule 89.

Members of the Committee Present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Barootes, Doyle, Macquarrie, Ross, Rossiter, and Sylvain
(6).

Other Senators Present: The Honourable Senators Fair-
bairn, Riel, and Petten.

In Attendance: From the Research Branch, Library of Par-
liament: Mr. Jean-Denis Fréchette and Ms. June Dewetering.

Also in Attendance: The official Reporters of the Senate.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election of
the Chairman.

The Honourable Senator Ross moved,—That the Honour-
able Sentator Barootes be elected Chairman of the Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

A statement was made by Senator Petten expressing the
support of the Liberals for Senator Barootes’ nomination, but
asking that the election of the Deputy Chairman be deferred
until the Liberals have been named to the Committee.

The Chairman was invited by the Clerk of the Committee to
take the Chair.

The Chairman made his opening remarks and noted that the
designation of the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure
would also be deferred until the Liberals were named to the
Committee.

The Honourable Senator Macquarrie moved,—That the
Committee print 500 copies of its Proceedings.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Sylvain moved,—That, pursuant
to Rule 90, the Chairman be authorized to receive and author-
ize the printing of evidence when a quorum is not present.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

It was agreed—That the Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure be empowered to invite witnesses and schedule
hearings.

The Honourable Senator Sylvain moved,—That, pursuant
to Rule 103, reasonable travelling and living expenses be paid
to witnesses invited or summoned to appear before the Com-
mittee, and that for such payment of expenses, a maximum of
three (3) representatives per organization be established.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I'agriculture et des
foréts se réunit aujourd’hui, piéce 356-S a 10 heures, en vue de
s’organiser conformément a I’article 89 du Réglement.

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Barootes, Doyle, Macquarrie, Ross, Rossiter et Sylvain (6).

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Fair-
bairn, Riel et Petten.

Présents: De la Direction de la recherche de la Bibliothéque
du Parlement: M. Jean-Denis Fréchette et M™ June Dewete-
ring.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Le greffier du Comité préside a I’élection du président.

L’honorable sénateur Ross propose,—Que I’honorable séna-
teur Barootes soit élu président du Comiteé.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Une déclaration est faite par le sénateur Petten exprimant
I'appui des Libéraux 4 la mise en candidature du sénateur
Barootes, mais demandant que I’élection du vice-président soit
reportée jusqu’'a ce que les Libéraux aient été nommés au
Comité.

Le président est invité par le greffier du Comité a prendre le
fauteuil.

Le président fait ses remarques préliminaires et fait remar-
quer que la désignation des membres du Sous-comité du pro-
gramme et de la procédure serait également reportée jusqu’a
ce que les Libéraux aient été nommés au Comité.

L’honorable sénateur Macquarrie propose,—Que le Comité
fasse imprimer 500 exemplaires de ses Proceés-verbaux.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Sylvain propose,—Que, conformément
a l'article 90 du Réglement, le président soit autorisé a enten-
dre des témoignages en ’absence de quorum et & en demander
I'impression.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

1l est convenu,—Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure soit habilité a inviter des témoins et a établir des
calendriers d’auditions.

L’honorable sénateur Sylvain propose,—Que, conformément
a l'article 103 du Réglement, des frais de déplacement, de sub-
sistance et autres frais raisonnables soient remboursés aux
témoins invités ou cités & comparaitre devant le Comité et que
pour le remboursement de ces dépenses, un maximum de trois
(3) représentants par organisation soient désignés.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.
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It was agreed—That, pursuant to paragraph 3:05 of Appen-
dix II to the Rules of the Senate, accounts for payment by the
Committee be certified by the Chairman or the Deputy Chair-
man.

The Honourable Senator Sylvain moved,—That the Chair-
man be authorized to seek authority from the Senate to engage
the services of such counsel and technical, clerical and other
personnel as may be necessary for the purpose of the Commit-
tee’s examination and consideration of such bills, subject-mat-
ters and estimates as are referred to it; and

That, subject to obtaining such authority, the following
budget application for legislation be concurred in and that the
Chairman submit same to the Standing Senate Committee on
Internal Economy, Budgets and Administration for consider-
ation:

Professional and Other Services $ 9,450.00
Transportation and Communications 27,459.92
Other Expenditures 800.00
TOTAL $37,509.92

After debate, The question being put on the motion, it
was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

It was agreed—That the Committee ask the Library of Par-
liament to assign Research Officers to the Committee;

That, subject to authorization from the Senate to hire staff,
the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure be authorized
to negotiate the contracts and retain the services of such
experts as may be required by the work of the Committee; and

That the Chairman, on behalf of the Committee, direct the
research staff in the preparation of studies, analyses and sum-
maries.

The Honourable Senator Sylvain moved,—That, pursuant
to Rule 105, the Chairman be authorized to report expenses
incurred by the Committee in the Second Session of the
Thirty-fourth Parliament.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

It was agreed—That the Committee empower the Chairman
to designate, as required, one or more members of the Com-
mittee and/or such staff as may be necessary to travel on
assignment on behalf of the Committee.

Other matters were deferred until the Committee has a full
complement of members.

At 10:35 a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

Il est convenu—Que, conformément au paragraphe 3:05 de
I’annexe II du Réglement du Sénat, les bordereaux de rem-
boursements a effectuer par le Comité soient certifiés par le
président ou le vice-président.

L’honorable sénateur Sylvain propose,—Que le président
soit autorisé par le Sénat a réserver les services de tout conseil-
ler et personnel technique, de bureau et autres pouvant se révé-
ler nécessaires aux fins de I’examen et de 1’étude par le Comité
de tout projets de loi, questions et prévisions qui pourraient lui
étre renvoyés; et

Que, sous réserve de cette autorisation, la demande de bud-
get suivante soit acceptée et que le président la soumette au
Comité sénatorial permanent de la régie interne, des budgets
et de ’'administration pour étude:

Services professionels et autres 9450,00 $
Transport et communications 27 459,92
Autres 800,00
TOTAL 3750992 %

Aprés débat, la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Il est convenu,—Que le Comité demande a la Bibliothéque
du Parlement de lui affecter des attachés de recherche;

Que, sous réserve de I'autorisation du Sénat d’embaucher du
personnel, le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure
soit autorisé a négocier les contrats et a retenir les services de
tout expert que pourraient nécessiter les travaux du Comité; et

Que le président, au nom du Comité, supervise le personnel
de recherche dans la préparation d’études, d’analyses et de
résumés.

L’honorable sénateur Sylvain propose,—Que, conformément
a D'article 105 du Réglement, le président soit autorisé a faire
rapport des dépenses encourues par le Comité au cours de la
deuxiéme session de la 34¢ législature.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Il est convenu,—Que le Comité habilite le président a dési-
gner, selon les besoins, un membre du Comité ou plus ou tout
employé a voyager pour le Comité.

D’autres questions sont reportées jusqu’a nomination de tous
les membres du Comité.

A 10 h 35, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Heather Lank
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Thursday, October 3, 1991

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and Fores-
try met this day at 10.00 a.m. to organize the business of the
committee.

Ms. Heather Lank (Clerk of the Committee): Honourable
senators, I see a quorum. As clerk of your committee, it is my
responsibility to preside over the election of a chairman of this
committee. I am now ready to receive any motions to that
effect.

Senator Ross: I move that Senator Barootes be elected
Chairman.

Senator Sylvain: I second that.

Ms. Lank: It is moved by the honourable Senator Ross that
the honourable Senator Barootes be elected chairman of this
committee. Is it your pleasure, honourable senators, to adopt
the motion?

Senator Petten: May I speak to the motion, please. The
leadership on both sides met this morning. We discussed,
among other things, committees. At the meeting, our people
agreed with the government leadership that if Senator
Barootes’ name were put forward we would support him. I do
so now. On behalf of the Liberals, I support the nomination
and will vote for Senator Barootes. However, I would ask that
the vice-chairmanship be left open until such time as we, the
Liberals, name our members to the committee, which will be in
the very near future. Thank you very much.

Ms. Lank: I declare the motion carried; in accordance with
rule 89, the Honourable Senator Barootes is elected chairman
of this committee and I invite him to take the Chair.

Hon. Senators: Hear, hear!

Senator Efstathios William Barootes (Chairman) in the
Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators and friends, I want to
say thank you, particularly to my liberal confréres, for the
trust and support you have given me. Heather Lank, whom
you have all met, will be clerk of this committee, and I see that
our two researchers have returned to sit in today.

I trust that you all have an agenda before you. The next
order of business, item 3, is the election of the deputy chair-
man. It was decided, not only by yourselves on the Liberal side
but among us as well, that the election of the deputy chairman
would be deferred until such time as a full complement of Lib-
eral members had been appointed to this committee.

The fourth item is the designation of the subcommittee on
agenda and procedure. This designation, with the agreement of
committee members, will also be deferred until we have our
full complement of Liberal appointees to the committee
because they often form a good portion of our committee on
agenda.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le jeudi 3 octobre 1991
[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de l'agriculture et des
foréts se réunit aujourd’hui & 10 heures pour une séance
d’organisation.

Mme Heather Lank (greffier du Comité): Honorables séna-
teurs, il y a quorum. En tant que greffier de votre Comité, il
m’incombe de présider a 1’élection d’un président. Je suis préte
a recevoir des motions a ce sujet.

Le sénateur Ross: Je propose que le sénateur Barootes soit
élu président.

Le sénateur Sylvain: J’appuie la motion.

Mme Lank: L’honorable sénateur Ross propose que I’hono-
rable sénateur Barootes soit élu président du Comité. Vous
plait-il, honorables sénateurs, d’adopter cette motion?

Le sénateur Petten: J'aimerais dire quelques mots au sujet
de la motion. Les leaders des deux partis se sont rencontrés ce
matin et ont discuté, entre autres choses, des comités. Au cours
de la réunion, nos représentants sont convenus avec ceux du
gouvernement d’appuyer la nomination du sénateur Barootes si
son nom était proposé. C’est ce que je fais. Au nom des libé-
raux, j'appuie la nomination et vote pour le sénateur Barootes.
Toutefois, je demande également que le vice-président ne soit
pas désigné jusqu’a ce que nous présentions la liste des députés
libéraux qui siégeront a ce comité. Merci beaucoup.

Mme Lank: La motion est adoptée et, en conformité de
I'article 89 du Réglement, I'honorable sénateur Barootes est
élu président de ce comité. Je lui demande de venir occuper le
fauteuil.

Des voix: Bravo!

Le sénateur Efstathios William Barootes (président) occupe
le fauteuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs et amis, je tiens a vous
remercier de la confiance et de ’appui que vous m’avez accor-
dés, surtout mes confréres libéraux. Heather Lank, que vous
avez tous rencontrée, sera la greffiere de notre Comité et je
vois que nos deux adjoints de recherche sont de retour pour la
séance d’aujourd’hui.

Je pense que vous avez tous un ordre du jour sous les yeux.
Nous passons maintenant au troisiéme point qui est 1’élection
du vice-président. Il a été décidé, non seulement par les libé-
raux, mais également de notre coté, de reporter I’élection d’un
vice-président ou d’une vice-présidente jusqu’a ce que tous les
membres du Comité représentant le Parti libéral soient nom-
més.

Le quatriéme point porte sur la désignation des membres du
sous-comité du programme et de la procédure. Si les membres
du Comité n’y voient pas d’inconvénient, nous attendrons la
encore que tous les membres du Comité représentant les Libé-
raux soient nommeés, car ils constituent souvent une bonne par-
tie de notre comité du programme.
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[Text]

Under item 5, it is suggested routinely that 500 copies of the
committee’s proceedings should be printed for distribution. If
somebody would move that, I would be most pleased.

Senator Macquarrie: I so move.

Senator Doyle: I second the motion.

The Chairman: s it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried. There is also a routine resolution to
hold meetings without quorum; pursuant to rule 90, the Chair-
man can be authorized to hold meetings to receive and author-
ize the printing of evidence when a quorum is not present.
That means that we can hear evidence, print evidence, ques-
tion witnesses, but no votes can be taken at that time. Would
somebody so move, please.

Senator Sylvain: I so move.

Senator Rossiter: I second the motion.

The Chairman: s it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Item 7 is a motion to invite witnesses and to
schedule hearings. The subcommittee on agenda and proce-
dure would be empowered to invite witnesses and to schedule
hearings.

Senator Petten: I so move.
Senator Rossiter: I second the motion.
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.

Item 8 regards travelling expenses of witnesses. This is also
a routine resolution stating that, pursuant to rule 103, reason-
able travelling and living expenses will be paid to witnesses
invited or summoned to appear before the committee and that
such payment of expenses will be limited to a maximum of
three representatives per organization. I should add that, last
year, in hearing witnesses, we limited payment to two wit-
nesses per organization. We can make it three in case there is a
very important issue arising, but we have arranged between the
clerk and the witnesses that this is done in the most frugal
manner possible. Frequently there is only one witness sum-
moned and paid; occasionally there are two. Is that the wish of
the committee?

Senator Sylvain: I so move.

Senator Rossiter: I second the motion.

The Chairman: [s it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried. Item 9, regarding authorization of
accounts, is a routine resolution that, pursuant to paragraph
3:05 of Appendix II of the new Rules of the Senate, accounts
for payment by the committee must be certified by the chair-
man or the deputy chairman. Would somebody so move,
please.

[Traduction]

Au point 5, on propose, ce qui est courant, d'imprimer 500
exemplaires des délibérations du Comité aux fins de diffusion.
J’aimerais que I'un d’entre vous propose une motion, s’il vous
plait.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Doyle: Je I'appuie.

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: La motion est adoptée. Il y a aussi une motion
courante en vue de tenir des réunions en ’absence de quorum:
conformément a l'article 90 du Réglement, le président peut
étre autorisé a tenir des réunions en vue d’entendre des témoins
et d’autoriser I'impression des témoignages méme en I’absence
de quorum. Cela signifie que nous pouvons entendre des
témoins, imprimer les témoignages, interroger les témoins mais
qu’aucun vote ne peut avoir lieu sans quorum. Quelqu’un veut-
il proposer une motion?

Le sénateur Sylvain: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Rossiter: Je 'appuie.

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Le point n° 7 est une motion visant a inviter
des témoins et a établir le calendrier des audiences. Le sous-
comité du programme et de la procédure sera autorisé a inviter
des témoins et a établir le calendrier des audiences.

Le sénateur Petten: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Rossiter: Je 'appuie.

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Adoptée.

Le point 8 porte sur les frais de déplacement des témoins. Il
s’agit aussi d’'une motion courante selon laquelle, en confor-
mité de I'article 103 du Réglement, des frais raisonnables de
déplacement et de subsistance seront remboursés aux témoins
invités ou cités 4 comparaitre devant le Comité; le paiement de
ces frais sera limité 4 un maximum de trois représentants par
organisme. J’ajoute que, I'an dernier, pour I'audition des
témoins, nous avons limité le remboursement des frais a deux
témoins par organisme. Nous pouvons aller jusqu’a trois dans
les cas ol un probléme trés important surgit, mais des disposi-
tions ont été prises entre le greffier et les témoins pour limiter
nos dépenses au maximum. Souvent, nous n’invitons et ne
défrayons qu’un seul témoin, et parfois deux. Cela convient-il
au Comité?

Le sénateur Sylvain: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Rossiter: Je 'appuie.

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: La motion est adoptée. Le point n° 9, concer-
nant 'autorisation des comptes, est une motion courante selon
laquelle, conformément au paragraphe 3:05 de I'’Annexe II du
Réglement du Sénat, les comptes 4 payer du Comité doivent
étre certifiés par le président ou le vice-président. Quelqu’un
peut-il proposer la motion, je vous prie?
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Senator Petten: I so move.

Senator Rossiter: I second the motion.
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.

Item 10, the legislative budget, resolves that “the chairman
be authorized to seek authority from the Senate to engage the
services of such counsel and technical, clerical and other per-
sonnel as may be necessary for the purpose of the committee’s
examination on consideration of such bills, subject matters of
bills, and estimates that are referred to it, and that, subject to
obtaining such authority, the following budget application for
legislation be concurred in, and that the chairman submit same
to the Standing Senate Committee on Internal Economy,
Budgets and Administration for consideration.” It refers to
Appendix A and we have we distributed Appendix A to every-
body.

Ms. Lang: Yes, all committee members should have copies
of that.

The Chairman: This item is also routine, but we have to sub-
mit it to the Internal Economy Committee or its subcommittee
in order to have our budget approved. This is a good time to
look at that budget and I have a word of explanation about it.

Our budget is somewhat lower than it was last year. It
includes the professional and other services that are listed. It
includes transportation and communication and other
expenses. With respect to transportation and communications,
we had made provision here for three committee members to
travel to three meetings out of town. That item may be expen-
sive because, unfortunately, travel expenses have risen consid-
erably since our last budget of a year ago, and we now havbe
to pay GST.

Senator Petten: I never thought I would hear you say that,
Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: I am not condemning the rise in costs. I am
simply stating the facts.

Senator Doyle: It is nice to know that the committee is pay-
ing off the national debt.

The Chairman: There may be questions on that and we
should open that discussion before we approve that item. You
will notice on page 2 of this communication the costs incurred
in the past, and our requests for funds, which have dropped
from a high of $52,000 to about $40,000. You will also notice
that the amount of the budget that has been spent each year
has been becoming less and less and less. Last year, due to the
parsimonious nature of this committee, only $1,844 of that
money was spent, and the rest was returned to the Senate
budget.

Senator Doyle: Is there a virtue in our costs always being so
far below budget, or should we try to be a little more faithful
to what we are likely to spend? Are we not making it easier for
some extravagance to be financed by that terrible outfit, Inter-
nal Economy, because they say they are not spending new
money but surplus money that they are getting back from the
Chairman of Agriculture.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Petten: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Rossiter: Je I'appuie.

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Adoptée.

Le point n° 10, budget législatif, porte que le président soit
autorisé 4 demander l'autorisation du Sénat pour retenir les
services d’avocats et de personnel technique, administratif et
autres, dont le Comité peut avoir besoin aux fins de I’étude des
projets de loi, de I'objet de projets de loi et des prévisions de
dépenses qui lui sont renvoyés et que, sous réserve d’obtenir
cette autorisation, la demande suivante de budget 1égislatif soit
adoptée, et que le président la soumette au Comité sénatorial
permanent de la régie interne, des budgets et de I’administra-
tion. Il est fait mention de I’Annexe A et tout le monde en a
regu une copie.

Mme Lank: Oui, tous les membres du Comité devraient en
avoir une copie.

Le président: Il s’agit aussi d’'une motion courante, mais
nous devrons la soumettre au Comité de régie interne ou son
sous-comité pour faire approuver notre budget. Le moment est
opportun pour examiner ce budget et j’ai quelques explications
4 vous fournir 4 ce sujet.

Le budget est légérement inférieur a4 celui de I’année der-
niére. Il englobe les services professionnels et autres qui sont
énumérés ici. Il prévoit aussi des frais de transport, de commu-
nications et autres. Pour ce qui est des transports et les com-
munications, nous avons prévu a ce titre le déplacement de
trois membres du Comité pour assister a trois réunions en
dehors de la ville. Ce poste risque d’étre élevé car, malheureu-
sement, les frais de déplacement ont considérablement aug-
menté depuis notre budget d’il y a un an, sans oublier la TPS.

Le sénateur Petten: Je ne pensais jamais vous entendre dire
cela, monsieur le président.

Le président: Je ne critique pas I’augmentation des frais. Je
ne fais que constater la réalité.

Le sénateur Doyle: Il est bon de savoir que le Comité contri-
bue a4 rembourser la dette publique.

Le président: Les membres du Comité ont peut-étre des
questions a poser sur ce point et nous devrions en discuter
avant d’approuver cette motion. Vous avez sans doute remar-
qué, 4 la page 2 de ce document, le montant des dépenses
engagées par le passé, et nos demandes de fonds qui ont dimi-
nué, passant de 52 000 $ a environ 40 000 $. Vous remar-
querez également que le budget annuel du Comité diminue
d’une année a I'autre. L’an dernier, grace a la parcimonie de
notre Comité, nous n’avons que 1 844 § et avons rendu le
reste au Sénat.

Le sénateur Doyle: Est-il vraiment utile de toujours mainte-
nir nos dépenses nettement en dessous du budget, ou devrions-
nous essayer de suivre d’'un peu plus prés nos prévisions de
dépenses? Ne permettons-nous pas ainsi au terrible comité
qu’est la Régie interne de se lancer dans des dépenses extrava-
gantes, car ses membres disent qu’ils ne dépensent pas de
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Senator Fairbairn: I think one observation, and the Chair-
man will recall this, too, is that over the last couple of years as
a committee we have not done some of the things that we had
done prior to that. For example, on occasions, almost annually,
a group of committee members have gone for a couple of days
of interaction and briefings in Washington. Those kinds of
things we have not done recently, and so the expenses are
much lower.

Senator Doyle: I understand that. In the last four years we
have not spent even half of our budget. That is in four years,
not just last year.

Senator Fairbairn: Yes.

Senator Doyle: I am not saying that $37,000 is not a reason-
able amount; it is quite a reasonable amount, if that is what we
truly intend to spend. We are not building in a cushion; that is
all.

The Chairman: Senator Doyle, in the year 1988-89 there
was an expenditure of $15,000, mostly for travel, because a
group of us did go to Washington D.C. to meet with our coun-
terparts there. In the last couple of years, as you know, the
agenda of the Senate chamber has been such, if I may put it
that way, that we have been kept extremely busy at home with
legislation and other matters which took up a great deal of
effort and time, and less energy was expended on travelling.
Can someone recall whether in 1989-90 the committee trav-
elled to Washington? I do not think so. I think it was two years
ago. Nevertheless, I prefer, as a rather miserable type of
spender, to return money rather than to follow the custom,
which some government sections or departments have, of look-
ing at their budget at the end of the year and making sure they
have expended every last nickel that has been allocated to
them for fear that the following year the Treasury, or whoever
is responsible, will reduce the allocation to them. Both sides
are debatable of course.

Senator Doyle: Mr. Chairman, I was only asking a question,
not making a suggestion.

The Chairman: I guess frugality has been our keynote the
last few years. Is it your pleasure that we submit this budget?

Senator Sylvain: I so move.

Senator Petten: I second the motion.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.

Then we can take it that we are free to vote on the legisla-
tive budget, item 10, in its two parts as submitted. Is it agreed?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.

I should point out that the Internal Economy Committee as
presently constituted has not set up a subcommittee or mech-

[Traduction)

I'argent frais, mais bien des fonds excédentaires qu’ils récupeé-
rent du président du Comité de 'agriculture.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Il convient de signaler, et le prési-
dent s’en souvient sans doute également, que depuis deux ans
environ, notre Comité n’a pas entrepris certaines activités qu’il
menait par le passé. Par exemple, a I'occasion, presque tous les
ans, un groupe de membres du Comité assistait pendant deux
jours & des séances d’information et d’échanges & Washington.
Derniérement, nous avons supprimé ces activités et nos dépen-
ses ont donc nettement diminué.

Le sénateur Doyle: Oui, je sais. En quatre ans, nous n’avons
jamais dépensé la moitié de notre budget. Il en a été de méme
pendant quatre ans, et pas simplement I’an dernier.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: En effet.

Le sénateur Doyle: Je ne prétends pas que 37 000 $ ne soit
pas un montant raisonnable, car il n’est absolument pas exa-
géré si c’est ce que nous comptons véritablement dépenser. En
tout cas, nous ne nous faisons pas un bas de laine.

Le président: Sénateur Doyle, au cours de I’année 1988-
1989, le Comité a dépensé 15 000 $, principalement pour des
déplacements parce que certains d’entre nous sommes allés a
Washington (D.C.) rencontrer nos homologues. Depuis deux
ans, comme vous le savez, étant donné le programme du Sénat,
si je puis dire, nous avons été extrémement occupés chez nous
par les projets de loi et d’autres questions qui ont exigé des
sénateurs beaucoup d’effort et de temps, au détriment d’autres
activités. L’'un d’entre vous se souvient-il si, en 1989-1990, le
Comité s’est rendu & Washington? Je ne le pense pas. Sauf
erreur, C’était il y a deux ans. Néanmoins, n’étant pas de
nature prodigue, je préfére rendre les fonds, au lieu de faire
comme certains secteurs ou ministéres du gouvernement qui
ont pour habitude d’examiner leur budget a la fin de I'année et
de s’arranger pour dépenser jusqu’au dernier sou qui leur a été
alloué, de crainte que 'année suivante, le Trésor ou un autre
organisme compétent ne réduise leurs crédits. Evidemment, ces
deux points de vue se défendent.

Le sénateur Doyle: Monsieur le président, c’était simple-
ment une question et non une suggestion.

Le président: Depuis quelques années, notre Comité s’est
fait remarquer par sa frugalité. Etes-vous d’accord pour sou-
mettre ce budget?

Le sénateur Sylvain: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Petten: Je I'appuie.

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Nous pouvons donc en déduire que nous sommes libres de
voter sur le budget législatif, article 10, présenté en deux par-
ties. Etes-vous d’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: Adoptée.
Je signale que I'actuel Comité de régie interne n’a pas cons-

titué de sous-comité ni mis en place de mécanisme pour nous
permettre de soumettre nos budgets. Est que je me trompe?
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anism to enable us to submit our budgets. Am I correct in
that?

Senator Doyle: You are correct.

The Chairman: So we may have to defer submitting that
legislative budget to them for a little while; I would think prob-
ably two or three weeks. There is a provision for funds to be
made available in the interim. I think we can request that by
letter to the Committee on Internal Economy. That is an allo-
cation for an amount near $10,000. Bill Petten would know
more about this than anyone.

Senator Petten: If I remember well it is $10,000.

The Chairman: The clerk has prepared such a letter and we
will submit it until this budget is approved.

Item 11 is routine. It is that the committee ask the Library
of Parliament to assign research officers to the committee; that
subject to authorization from the Senate to hire staff, the Sub-
committee on Agenda and Procedure be authorized to negoti-
ate the contracts and retain the services of such experts as may
be required by the work of the committee; and that the chair-
man, on behalf of the committee, direct the research staff in
the preparation of studies, analyses and summaries.

You can see that there are two parts here. The first part is
our request to the Library of Parliament, whose two longstand-
ing researchers to this committee are here with us today. The
second part is that if we require other expertise or consultation
we may obtain it through the authority of the subcommittee. Is
there any discussion on that? If it is they agreed, would some-
one move it?

Senator Fairbairn: I so move.

Senator Doyle: I second the motion.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Some Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried.

Report of expenses. Pursuant to rule 105, the Chairman is
required to report the expenditures incurred in the preceding
session by this committee and its subcommittees. You can look
at Appendix B.

We have a little bit of a problem here. I do not know
whether it is a constitutional problem or a legislative problem,
but my understanding is that within 15 days of the start of a
new session we should be submitting our past expenses. As you
know, no Standing Committee on Agriculture and Forestry
was constituted at the time the 15 sitting days elapsed; so this
is an item that we should be submitting to the chamber and it
would constitute our first report.

Maybe some of you experts could enlighten me as to
whether we are going to be haled into court or admonished for
the tardiness of our response in this respect.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Doyle: Non, vous avez raison.

Le président: Il nous faudra peut-étre attendre quelque
temps, deux a trois semaines sans doute, avant de lui soumettre
notre budget législatif. Nous pouvons toutefois obtenir des
fonds 4 titre provisoire. Sauf erreur, nous pouvons présenter
une demande par écrit au Comité de régie interne. Il s’agit
d’une affectation de prés de 10 000 $. Bill Petten en sait sans
doute plus a ce sujet qu’aucun d’entre nous.

Le sénateur Petten: Si je m’en souviens bien, il s’agit de
10 000 §.

Le président: Le greffier a préparé cette lettre et nous pré-
senterons une demande en attendant I’approbation de notre
budget.

Le point n° 11 est une motion courante. Elle prévoit que le
Comité demande a la Bibliothéque du Parlement de lui attri-
buer des adjoints de recherche; que, sous réserve de I’autorisa-
tion du Sénat pour recruter du personnel, le sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure soit autorisé a négocier les con-
trats et 4 retenir les services d’experts dont peut avoir besoin le
Comité pour mener a bien ses travaux et que le président, au
nom du Comité, charge les adjoints de recherche de préparer
des études, des analyses et des résumés.

Comme vous le voyez, cette rubrique est en deux parties. La
premiére porte sur la demande que nous présenterons a la
Bibliothéque du Parlement, dont deux attachés de recherche
qui travaillent depuis longtemps pour notre Comité sont parmi
nous aujourd’hui. La deuxiéme partie nous permet de retenir
les services d’autres experts-conseils par ’entremise du sous-
comité. Y a-t-il des commentaires sur ce point? Si tous les
membres du Comité sont d’accord, quelqu’un peut-il proposer
la motion?

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Je propose la motion.

Le sénateur Doyle: Je I’appuie.

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Adoptée.

Rapport des dépenses. Conformément a I’article 105 du
Réglement, le président est tenu de faire rapport des dépenses

subies au cours de la session précédente par le Comité et ses
sous-comités. Vous pouvez reporter 4 I’Annexe B.

Un petit probléme se pose ici. Je ne sais pas s’il est d’ordre
constitutionnel ou législatif, mais d’aprés mes renseignements,
nous devrions présenter un rapport sur nos dépenses passées
dans les 15 jours qui suivent le début d’une nouvelle session.
Comme vous le savez, le Comité permanent de I'agriculture et
des foréts n’était pas encore constitué lorsque ce délai de 15
jours de séance s’est écoulé; c’est un point que nous devrions
soumettre au Sénat et qui constituerait notre premier rapport.

Ceux d’entre vous qui s’y connaissent mieux que moi a cet
égard pourraient me dire si nous allons étre trainés devant les
tribunaux ou punis pour avoir tardé a présenter notre rapport
de dépenses.
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Senator Rossiter: Mr. Chairman, is every other committee
not in the same position?

The Chairman: I presume most of them are.

Senator Rossiter: Is some provision not being made to facili-
tate matters in that regard?

Senator Doyle: Most committees are behind you.

The Chairman: In other words, the multiplicity of our sins
sort of excuses us?

Senator Doyle: That is right.
The Chairman: I see what you mean.

Senator Sylvain: How do you correlate this $11,000 expen-
diture with what we spent in the last three years, which does
not even amount to that? I am a little confused.

The Chairman: One is by fiscal year and the other is by ses-
sion.

Senator Sylvain: That is a nice way of confusing the issue,
but one way or the other it is still not going to balance, because
you can go back two years and it does not add up to $11,000.

The Chairman: I think you will have to recall that there was
one session of Parliament that ran three years—not in my
time, fortunately.

Senator Sylvain: All I am trying to get at is that before we
approve this we should really know what we are approving and
how it balances out with the other information given.

The Chairman: Is this $11,000 correct for the session? This
record is from the finance section of the Senate and our clerk
has checked it and it correlates with the expenditures that we
have made.

Senator Sylvain: I have found the answer. If you add up the
total expenditures from 1989-90 to date it is $11,932, so those
are the numbers but you do not use the $15,000 from above. It
starts from there.

The Chairman: But what would be the approved budget for
that period?

Senator Sylvain: The approved budget would be $42,000,
$27,000 and $40,000, so we are talking about $130,000.

The Chairman: And the expenditure during that period is
$11,932. We are even more frugal than I thought.

Senator Sylvain: Unbelievable, not even ten per cent.

The Chairman: Thank you for clarifying that. So this we
will submit as the first report of the committee which will be in
the third week of October. Can we have a motion for the
report of expenses, item 12?

Senator Sylvain: I so move.
Senator Doyle: I second the motion.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Rossiter: Monsieur le président, tous les autres
comités ne sont-ils pas dans la méme situation?

Le président: Je suppose que la plupart d’entre eux le sont.

Le sénateur Rossiter: N’a-t-on rien prévu pour nous faciliter
les choses a cet égard?

Le sénateur Doyle: La plupart des comités vous soutiennent.

Le président: Autrement dit, ce qui nous excuse, c’est que
nous sommes nombreux a étre coupables du méme péché.

Le sénateur Doyle: C’est exact.
Le président: Je vois ce que vous voulez dire.

Le sénateur Sylvain: Quel rapport existe-t-il entre cet mon-
tant de 11 000 $ et nos dépenses totales des trois derniéres
années, qui n’atteignent méme pas ce chiffre? Cela me parait
bien flou.

Le président: Un montant correspond 4 ’année financiére et
'autre a la session.

Le sénateur Sylvain: C’est une belle fagcon de brouiller les
pistes mais, quoi qu’il en soit, les deux montants ne s’équilibre-
ront pas, car méme si I’on remonte a4 deux ans en arriére, on
n’obtient pas un total de 11 000 §.

Le président: Il ne faut pas oublier qu’une session parlemen-
taire a duré trois ans; mais heureusement, je n’étais pas la a
I’époque.

Le sénateur Sylvain: Ce que j’essayais de vous faire com-
prendre, c’est qu’avant d’approuver ce montant, nous devrions
vraiment savoir ce que nous approuvons et si tout cela est com-
patible avec les autres renseignements fournis,

Le président: Ce montant de 11 000 $ correspond-il & nos
dépenses pour la session? Ce dossier provient de la Section des
finances du Sénat et, aprés vérification par la secrétaire, il cor-
respond aux dépenses que nous avons effectuées.

Le sénateur Sylvain: J’ai trouvé la réponse. Si I'on ajoute les
dépenses totales 1989-1990 a ce jour, on obtient 11 932 §, de
sorte que ce sont 1a les chiffres mais vous n’utilisez pas les
15 000 $ mentionnés ci-dessus. Cela commence a ce moment-
1a.

Le président: Mais 4 combien se monterait le budget
approuvé pour cette période?

Le sénateur Sylvain: Le budget approuvé se chiffre a
42 000 $, 27 000 $ et 40 000 $, soit un total de 130 000 $
environ.

Le président: Et les dépenses au cours de cette période s’élé-
vent 4 11 932 $. Notre frugalité est encore plus grande que je
ne le pensais.

Le sénateur Sylvain: C’est incroyable, a peine 10 p. 100.

Le président: Merci de vos éclaircissements. L’état de nos
dépenses constituera donc le premier rapport du Comité qui
sera déposé au cours de la troisiéme semaine d’octobre.
Quelqu’un peut-il proposer une motion pour faire rapport de
nos dépenses, comme le prévoit le point 127?

Le sénateur Sylvain: Je propose la motion.
Le sénateur Doyle: Je 'appuie.
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The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators? Le président: Etes-vous d’accord, honorables sénateurs?
Hon. Senators: Agreed. Des voix: D’accord.

The Chairman: Carried.

Item 13 is travel. There is a suggested resolution here that
the committee empower the Chairman to designate, as
required, one or more members of the committee, and/or such
staff as may be necessary, to travel on assignment on behalf of
the committee.

I think we used that once last year, did we not, in June?

Ms. June Dewetering, Research Branch, Library of Parlia-
ment: Yes we did.

The Chairman: Just in explanation, when a meeting is held
and the interest in that committee is divided among two or
three committees, such as an environmental item, any staff
member travelling on our behalf is shared among those com-
mittees. That reduces the expenses of this committee and of
the other committees. It is very well done. Would someone
move item 137

Senator Fairbairn: I so move. I should note for those who
have not previously been associated with this committee that
although looking at our budgets might indicate that the com-
mittee has not done any work for two years, in fact we were
quite busy legislatively in Ottawa.

The Chairman: We did do the study on the updating of the
farm income aspect that we had done a year and a half before.

Senator Fairbairn: Yes; we just have not been dashing
about.

The Chairman: Sometimes you can do as much work at
home as you can in Washington.

Senator Macquarrie: You did a good job.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. We will pass that
commendation on to all who were members of this committee
last year, not as opposed to the present members. Is item 13
approved?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: Carried.
Item 14, other items. We do have one other item, but I think

I should exercise my prerogative and defer it until we have a
full complement of members from both sides of the house.

Is there any other item that anyone wishes to bring up at
this time? If not, we will consider the meeting adjourned.
Thank you very much for attending and thank you for your
help and support.

The committee adjourned.

Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Le point n° 13 concerne les déplacements. Une motion est
prévue sous cette rubrique, portant que le Comité autorise le
président a désigner, au besoin, un ou plusieurs membres du
Comité et (ou) les membres du personnel devant participer a
des voyages pour le compte du Comité.

Nous avons déja utilisé cette motion I’an dernier, n’est-ce
pas, June?

Mme June Dewetering, Direction de la Recherche, Biblio-
théque du Parlement: Oui, c’est vrai.

Le président: Un mot d’explication: lorsqu’une réunion a
lieu et que 1'objet de I’étude de ce comité est réparti entre deux
ou trois comités, par exemple une question environnementale,
les personnes qui voyagent au nom de notre Comité, qu’il
s’agisse du personnel ou autres, sont partagées entre les autres
comités. Cela réduit les dépenses de tous les comités, y compris
le notre. Le systéme est trés bien organisé. Quelqu’un peut-il
proposer la motion prévue au point 13?

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Je propose la motion. Je tiens a
signaler, pour ceux qui n’ont pas fait partie de notre Comité
par le passé, que méme si, au vu de nos budgets, on pourrait
croire que le Comité n’a rien fait pendant deux ans, nous avons
eu en fait un programme législatif trés bien rempli a Ottawa.

Le président: Nous avons fait une étude en vue de mettre 4
jour I’examen du revenu agricole que nous avions effectué un
an et demi auparavant.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Oui, mais nous n’avons tout simple-
ment pas fait beaucoup de bruit a ce sujet.

Le président: On peut parfois travailler autant chez soi qu’a
Washington.

Le sénateur Macquarrie: Vous avez fait du bon travail.

Le président: Merci beaucoup. Nous transmettrons ce com-
pliment & tous les sénateurs qui étaient membres du Comité
I’an dernier, car c’est 4 eux qu'il revient. L’article 13 est-il
approuvé?

Des voix: Approuvé.

Le président: Article 14, autres questions. Il y en a effecti-
vement une autre, mais je vais user de ma prérogative pour la

reporter jusqu’a ce que tous les membres du Comité représen-
tant les deux partis aient été choisis.

Y a-t-il un autre point que I'un ou I'une d’entre vous sou-
haite soulever maintenant? Sinon, la séance est levée. Merci
beaucoup de votre présence et de votre aide.

La séance est levée.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE
Extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,
Tuesday, October 22, 1991:
“Second reading of Bill C-23, An Act to amend the
Canadian Wheat Board Act.
The Honourable Senator Ross moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Forrestall, that the Bill be read the
second time.

After debate,
The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Ross moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Forrestall, that the Bill be referred to
the Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and
Forestry.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.”

Extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,
Wednesday, October 23, 1991:

“Second reading of Bill C-16, An Act to amend the
Agricultural Products Marketing Act and to provide for
other matters in relation thereto.

The Honourable Senator Forrestall moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Ottenheimer, that the Bill be
read the second time.

After debate,

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourabale Senator Forrestall moved, seconded
by the Honourable Senator Everett, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Agricul-
ture and Forerstry.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.”

ORDRES DE REFERENCE

Extrait des procés-verbaux du Sénat du mardi 22 octobre
1991:

«Deuxiéme lecture du Projet de loi C-23, Loi modifiant
la Loi sur la Commission canadienne du blé.

L’honorable sénateur Ross propose, appuyé par 1’hono-
rable sénateur Forrestall, que le projet de loi soit lu la
deuxiéme fois.

Aprés débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le projet de loi est alors lu & deuxiéme fois.

L’honorable sénateur Ross propose, appuyé par I’hono-
rable sénateur Forrestall, que le projet de loi soit déféré
au Comité sénatorial permanent de I'agriculture et des
foréts.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extrait des procés-verbaux du Sénat du mercredi 23 octobre
1991:

«Deuxiéme lecture du Projet de Loi C-16, Loi modifiant
la Loi sur la commercialisation des produits agricoles et
édictant des dispositions connexes.

L’honorable sénateur Forrestall propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Ottenheimer, que le projet de loi soit
lu la deuxiéme fois.

Aprés débat,

La motion, mis aux voix, est adoptée.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois.

L’honorable sénateur Forrestall propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Everett, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et
des foréts.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Gordon Barnhart
Clerk of the Senate
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[Text] [Traduction)

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and Fores-
try met this day in Room 356-S, at 5:30 p.m., the Chairman,
the Honourable Senator Barootes, presiding.

Members of the Committee Present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Barootes, Fairbairn, Forrestall, Olson, Ross, DeWare and
Spivak. (7)

In Attendance: From the Research Branch, Library of Par-
liament: Mr. Jean-Denis Fréchette and Ms. June Dewetering.

Also in Attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.
Witnesses:
For Bill C-23:

From Agriculture Canada:

Mr. Harold Hedley, Acting Director, Cereal Grains Divi-
sion, Grains and Oilseeds Branch.

For Bill C-16:

From Agriculture Canada:

Mr. Dave Cuthbertson, Acting Director General, National
Programs Directorate, Agri-Food Development Branch;

Mr. Des Doran, Senior Coordinator, Program Assessment
and Evaluation, National Programs Directorate, Agri-
Food Development Branch.

The Chairman made opening remarks.

The Honourable Senator Fairbairn moved, that the Honour-
able Senator Olson be elected Deputy Chairman of the Com-
mittee.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

The Honourable Senator DeWare moved, that the Sub-com-
mittee on Agenda and Procedure be composed of the Chair-
man, the Deputy Chairman and one other member of the
Committee, to be designated by the Chairman after the usual
consultations.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative

The Committee, in compliance with its Order of Reference
dated October 22, 1991, commenced consideration of Bill C-
23, intituled: “An Act to amend the Canadian Wheat Board
Act.”

Senator Olson made a statement.

The Honourable Senator Ross moved, that Bill C-23 be
reported to the Senate without amendment.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de l'agriculture et des
foréts se réunit aujourd’hui dans la salle 356-S 4 15 h 30, sous
la présidence de I’honorable sénateur Barootes (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Barootes, Fairbairn, Forrestall, Olson, Ross, DeWare et Spi-
vak. (7)

Présents: Du Service de recherche, Bibliotheque du Parle-
ment: M. Jean-Denis Fréchette et M™ June Dewetering.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.
Témoins:
Concernant le projet de loi C-23:

De Agriculture Canada:

M. Harold Hedley, directeur intérimaire, Direction des
céréales, Direction générale des céréales et oléagineux.

Concernant le projet de loi C-16:

De Agriculture Canada:

M. Dave Cuthbertson, directeur général intérimaire, Direc-
tion des programmes nationaux, Direction générale du
développement alimentaire;

M. Des Doran, coordinateur principal, Examen et évalua-
tion des programmes, Direction des programmes natio-
naux, Direction générale du développement agro-alimen-
taire.

Le président fait des remarques préliminaires.

L’honorable sénateur Fairbairn propose, que I’honorable

sénateur Olson soit élu président suppléant du Comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur DeWare propose, que le Sous-comité
du programme et de la procédure soit composé du président,
du président suppléant et d’un autre membre du Comité dési-
gné par le président aprés les consultations habituelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le Comité, conformément a son ordre de renvoi du 22 octo-
bre 1991 entreprend I'étude du projet de loi C-23: Loi modi-
fiant la Loi sur la Commission canadienne du blé.

Le sénateur Olson fait une déclaration.

L’honorable sénateur Ross propose qu'il soit fait rapport au
Sénat du projet de loi C-23 sans amendement.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.
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The Committee, in compliance with its Order of Reference
dated October 23, 1992, commenced consideration of Bill C-
16, intituled: “An Act to amend the Agricultural Products
Marketing Act and to provide for other matters in relation
thereto.”

The witnesses answered questions.

The Honourable Senator Ross moved, that Bill C-16 be
reported to the Senate without amendment.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.

At 5:55 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

Le Comité, conformément 4 son ordre de renvoi du 23 octo-
bre 1991 entreprend I’étude du projet de loi C-16: Loi modi-
fiant la Loi sur la commercialisation des produits agricoles et
édictant des dispositions connexes.

Les témoins répondent aux questions.

L’honorable sénateur Ross propose, qu’il soit fait rapport du
projet de loi C-16 au Sénat sans amendement.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

A 17 h 55, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convocation
du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Heather Lank
Clerk of the Committee
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REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, October 29th, 1991

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and Fores-
try has the honour to table its

FIRST REPORT
Your Committee, which was authorized by the Senate to
incur expenses for the purpose of its examination and consider-
ation of such legislation and other matters as were referred to
it, reports, pursuant to Rule 105, that the expenses incurred by
the Committee during the Second Session of the Thirty-Fourth
Parliament were as follows:

With respect to its examination and consideration of legisla-
tion:

Professional and other Service $ 2,722.80
Transportation and Communications 8,598.79
Other Expenditures 611.00

$11,932.59

Tuesday, October 29th, 1991

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and Fores-
try has the honour to present its

SECOND REPORT
Your Committee, to which was referred the Bill C-23, An
Act to amend the Canadian Wheat Board Act, has in obedi-
ence to the Order of Reference of Tuesday, October 22, 1991,
examined the said Bill and now reports the same without
amendment.

Tuesday, October 29th, 1991

The Standing Senate Committee Agriculture and Forestry
has the honour to present its

THIRD REPORT
Your Committee, to which was referred the Bill C-16, An
Act to amend the Agricultural Products Marketing Act and to
provide for other matters in relation thereto, has in obedience
to the Order of Reference of Wednesday, October 23, 1991,
examined the said Bill and now reports the same without
amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

RAPPORTS DU COMITE

Le mardi 29 octobre 1991

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de Pagriculture et des
foréts a I’honneur de déposer son

PREMIER RAPPORT
Votre Comité, qui a été autorisé par le Sénat a engager des
dépenses aux fins d’examiner les mesures législatives et autres
questions qui lui ont été déférées, dépose, conformément a
I'article 105 du Reéglement, le relevé suivant des dépenses con-
tractées a cette fin par le comité au cours de la deuxiéme ses-
sion de la trente-quatriéme législature:

Relatif a son étude des mesures législatives:

Services professionnels et autres 2722808

Transports et communications 8 598,79

Autres dépenses611,00 s i S
11,932,59 $

Le mardi 29 octobre 1991

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et des
foréts a I’honneur de présenter son

DEUXIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité, auquel a été déféré le Projet de loi C-23, Loi
modifiant la Loi sur la Commission canadienne du blé, a, con-
formément a 1'Ordre de renvoi du mardi 22 octobre, étudié
ledit projet de loi et en fait maintenant rapport sans amende-
ment.

Le mardi 29 octobre 1991

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I'agriculture et des
foréts a I’honneur de présenter son

TROISIEME RAPPORT
Votre Comité, auquel a été déféré le Projet de loi C-16, Loi
modifiant la Loi sur la commercialisation des produits agrico-
les et édictant des dispositions connexes, a, conformément a
I’ordre de renvoi du mercredi 23 octobre 1991, étudié ledit pro-
jet de loi et en fait maintenant rapport sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le président
E. W. (STAFF) BAROOTES

Chairman
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, October 23, 1991

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and Fores-
try, to which was referred Bill C-23, to amend the Canadian
Wheat Board Act; and Bill C-16, to amend the Agricultural
Products Marketing Act and to provide for other matters in
relation thereto, met this day at 5.30 p.m. to give consideration
to the bills.

Senator Efstathios W. Barootes (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: I have two remarks to make under Opening
Remarks. First, I want to introduce our clerk to those who do
not know her, Heather Lank: Miss Efficiency herself. I want
you to know that. Through her good offices, we have been sup-
plied with a little booklet called “An Introduction to the
Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and Forestry,”
and it is an excellent résumé of what has been going on up
until this session of Parliament. If you do not have it, please
ask for and obtain it. Miss Lank, we thank you for that.

We will now proceed to the second item on this agenda,
which is the election of the Deputy Chairman. It is moved—

Senator Fairbairn: I would like to nominate Senator Olson.

The Chairman: Senator Fairbairn nominates Senator Olson.
Any other nominations? If I may proceed quickly, all those in
favour, please raise their hands.

Senator Olson: Mr. Chairman, I have—

The Chairman: It should be noted that it is unanimous
before you speak.

Senator Fairbairn: For goodness sake, do not decline to
serve.

Senator Olson: No, I am not. I have already agreed to do
that some time ago, as most of you know. I just want to put in
this caveat, because there will be a day or two, I am sure, when
there will be a problem if you are uncomfortable with me
retaining my first responsibility. I am a member of the opposi-
tion with all the responsibilities that go with that, which
includes criticizing on the floor of the Senate, criticizing the
committee, the committee’s decisions, maybe on occasion the
committee’s chairman. So I really would not want you to feel
uncomfortable with that, because that is my first priority, and
I cannot relinquish any of that responsibility.

Senator Spivak: Will there be one small time when you
might say something nice about the committee?

Senator Olson: I want the committee to be successful. This
is only half serious, but the half that is serious is fairly impor-
tant. I would not want any members of the committee to feel
abused. Having been part of the establishment here, it may
happen that I do severely criticize someone here, including the
chairman, on the floor of the Senate from time to time.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, mercredi le 23 octobre 1991
[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de l'agriculture et des
foréts, 4 qui ont été renvoyés le projet de loi C-23, Loi modi-
fiant la Loi sur la Commission canadienne du blé, et le projet
de loi C-16, Loi modifiant la Loi sur la commercialisation des
produits agricoles et édictant des dispositions connexes, s’est
réuni aujourd’hui a4 17 h 30 pour examiner les projets de loi.

Le sénateur Efstathios W. Barootes (président) occupe le
fauteuil.

Le président: Avant d’entrer dans le vif du sujet, j’aimerais
faire deux observations. Je veux d’abord présenter notre gref-
fier 4 ceux qui ne la connaissent pas, Heather Lank, I’efficacité
en personne. Je veux que vous le sachiez. Grice a ses bons
soins, nous avons regu une petite brochure intitulée «Une intro-
duction au Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et des
foréts», qui résume trés bien nos travaux jusqu’a la présente
session du Parlement. Si vous n’avez pas cette brochure, n’hési-
tez pas 4 la demander. Mademoiselle Lank, merci.

Passons maintenant au deuxiéme point de I'ordre du jour,
soit I'élection du vice-président. Il est proposé—

La sénatrice Fairbairn: J’aimerais proposer le sénateur
Olson.

Le président: Le sénateur Fairbairn propose le sénateur
Olson. D’autres propositions? Procédons rapidement, je vous
en prie. Tous ceux qui sont en faveur, s’il vous plait, levez la
main.

Le sénateur Olson: Monsieur le président, j’ai—

Le président: Je fais remarquer que nous avons I'unanimité,
avant que vous ne preniez la parole.

La sénatrice Fairbairn: Pour I’amour de Dieu, ne refusez
pas la nomination.

Le sénateur Olson: Non, je ne refuse pas. J'ai déja accepté il
y a quelque temps, comme la plupart d’entre vous le savent. Je
veux simplement vous prévenir qu’il y aura certainement un ou
deux jours ou cette nomination posera des difficultés si vous
avez des objections a ce que je continue d’assumer ma pre-
miére responsabilité. Je fais partie de I'opposition, avec toutes
les responsabilités que cela comporte, notamment exprimer des
critiques au Sénat, critiquer le comité, les décisions du comité
et peut-étre méme, a I’occasion, le président du comité. Je ne
voudrais donc pas que cela vous mette dans I'embarras, parce
que c’est ma premiére priorité et que je ne peux me soustraire
a cette responsabilité.

Le sénateur Spivak: Vous arrivera-t-il un jour de dire du
bien du comité?

Le sénateur Olson: Je veux que le comité réussisse. Nous ne
sommes qu’a moitié sérieux, mais cette moitié est assez impor-
tante. Je ne voudrais pas que les membres du comité se sentent
lésés. Comme je suis ici depuis longtemps, il se peut que je cri-
tique vivement certains d’entre vous, notamment le président,
au Sénat.
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[Text]

The Chairman: Senator Olson, we have all been used to
rejection in the past. I might add we would as soon stop you
from speaking your mind as we would stop the Niagara Falls
from flowing. We would be very pleased to hear from you at
any time, and with any opinions that you have arrived at
through your vast experience.

Senator Olson: Okay. You have been warned. That is all.

The Chairman: You warned me beforehand, so I am doubly
warned now. The other—

Senator Olson: Thank you very much for the vote.

The Chairman: It is a pleasure. Item Number 3 on the
agenda refers to the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure.
I will read the resolution. If anybody wishes to move it, I
would be delighted. The resolution is as follows:

THAT the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
composed of the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman and
one other member of the Committee, to be designated by
the Chairman after the usual consultations . . .

Senator DeWare: So moved, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator DeWare. Are we
agreed?
Hon. Members: Agreed.

The Chairman: Those who disagree, please stand. I note for
the record that no-one is standing.

We now have before us two items of legislative business. We
have Bill C-23, which is a bill to amend the Canadian Wheat
Board Act, which has been referred to this committee. There
has been extensive discussions about it in the Senate, both pro
and con. We have with us today Mr. Harold Hedley, who is
the Acting Director of the Cereal Grains Division of the Grain
Marketing Bureau, Grains and Oilseed Branch. If there are
questions which you wish to put to him, or discussion, I open
up this item for discussion. Senator Olson?

Senator Olson: Mr. Chairman, I do not wish to ask any
questions about this bill. It is a fairly simple bill in its objec-
tives. There are some political questions respecting how we got
into this situation that I would like to ask, but I think the only
person of whom I would like to ask those is the Minister.
When he is here, I will raise the matter then.

The Chairman: On another occasion.
Senator Olson: As far as today is concerned, I have no
objection to passing the bill without amendment.

The Chairman: Any other discussion or questions? If not,
would someone move that we report the bill back to the Senate
without amendment?

Senator Ross: [ so move.

The Chairman: Moved by Senator Ross, seconded by Sena-
tor Spivak.

We also have before us for our consideration a second bill
which was referred to us today and which I have on my agenda

[Traduction)

Le président: Sénateur Olson, nous avons tous connu le rejet
par le passé. Nous n’avons pas plus I'intention de vous empé-
cher de vous exprimer que je peux arréter les chutes du Nia-
gara de couler. Nous serons toujours trés ravis d’entendre,
quand il vous plaira, toute opinion que vous pourrez formuler
et qui sera le fruit de votre vaste expérience.

Le sénateur Olson: D’accord. Vous avez été prévenus. C’est
tout.

Le président: Comme vous m’aviez déja prévenu a I’avance,
je le suis prévenu maintenant. L’autre—

Le sénateur Olson: Merci beaucoup de m’avoir choisi.

Le président: Le plaisir est pour nous. Passons maintenant
au point n° 3, concernant le Sous-comité du programme et de
la procédure. Je vais vous lire la résolution. Si quelqu’un sou-
haitait la proposer, j’en serais ravi. La résolution se lit comme
suit:

QUE le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure se
compose du président, du vice-président et d’un autre
membre du comité que le président désignera aprés les
consultations d’usage.

Le sénateur DeWare: Je propose la résolution, monsieur le
président.

Le président: Merci, sénateur DeWare. Sommes-nous
d’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Que ceux qui ne sont pas d’accord se lévent.
Qu’il soit noté que personne ne s’est levé.

Nous avons maintenant deux projets de loi a étudier. Il y a
d’abord le projet de loi C-23 visant & modifier la Loi sur la
Commission canadienne du blé, et qui a été renvoyé a notre
comité. Il a fait I’objet de longues discussions au Sénat, pour le
défendre ou le critiquer. Si vous le permettez, nous entendrons
M. Harold Healey, directeur intérimaire, Division des céréales,
Direction de la commercialisation des céréales, Direction géné-
rale des céréales et oléagineux. Si vous avez des questions a lui
poser ou si vous voulez discuter avec lui du projet de loi, c’est
le moment. Sénateur Olson?

Le sénateur Olson: Non, monsieur le président, je n’ai pas
de questions a poser sur ce projet de loi dont I'objectif est assez
simple. J’aimerais poser des questions politiques au sujet de la
facon dont nous en sommes arrivés 14, mais la seule personne a
qui je voudrais les poser c’est le Ministre. Quand il viendra, je
I'interrogerai.

Le président: Une autre fois.

Le sénateur Olson: Pour le moment, je n’ai aucune objection
a adopter le projet de loi sans amendement.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres remarques ou d’autres ques-
tions? Dans la négative, est-ce que quelqu’un peut proposer de
rendre compte du projet de loi au Sénat, sans amendement?

Le sénateur Ross: Je le propose.

Le président: La motion est proposée par le sénateur Ross et
appuyée par le sénateur Spivak.

Nous devons également étudier un deuxiéme projet de loi,
qui nous a été renvoyé aujourd’hui et qui est inscrit au crayon
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[Text]
in pencil. Bill C-16, an Act to amend the Agricultural Prod-
ucts Marketing Act. This was discussed in the Senate today.

We have with us from that branch David Cuthbertson, Act-
ing Director General, National Programs Director at Agri-
Food Development Branch; and Des Doran, Senior Coordina-
tor, Program Assessment and Evaluation, National Programs
Directorate, Agri-Food Development Branch.

I believe that this bill is the one that deals with the inclusion
of wood into the agricultural group. There was a discussion
today in the Senate by three senators—

Senator Olson: Senator Hays.

The Chairman: Yourself, and the gentleman who sponsored
the bill today, Senator Forestall. I open this matter up to dis-
cussion or questions that anyone wishes to raise about it.

Senator Olson: I would like to ask one question. I would like
to hear the officials reply if they could, as to the need for this
bill. It appears that the purpose of the bill is merely to call
wood an agricultural product. I guess there have been some
orders passed where the provincial marketing agency set up
something to do with the marketing of wood products under
the Agricultural Marketing Act, but I do not understand how
it came to be before the Senate, requiring an amendment to
the act. It is just the definition of it.

Jurisdiction respecting the setting of production and market-
ing quotas and prices and so on is all within the purview of the
provinces in any event, unless there has been some changes
that I am unware of. Someone, whether it was the Auditor-
General, or some regulations committee, I guess it was,
decided that wood is not an agricultural product; therefore, we
must change the act in order to make it so. Is that all that we
are responding to, or were the provincial ministers worried that
you were doing something that might not stand the test in
court?

The Chairman: Mr. Cuthbertson and Mr. Doran, if you
would take your seats, then we will have your evidence
recorded through our reporting staff. So, if you could answer
that question, we would be most grateful.

Senator Spivak: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if, in the interests
of time, I could just tack on something to that question, if you
would permit me?

The Chairman: By all means, Senator Spivak.

Senator Spivak: It is a very simple question. This does not
mean that the word “tree” refers to an agricultural product.
Just the word “wood.” Is that correct? It is a very important
distinction.

Mr. Dave Cuthbertson, Acting Director General, National
Programs Directorate, Agri-Food Development Branch: As I
understand it, this is simply adding wood as a product for the
purpose of this act alone. It would not include, as far as I am
concerned, a living tree. Perhaps Mr. Doran would like to
clarify if I am wrong on that.

[Traduction]

sur mon ordre du jour. Il s’agit du projet de loi C-16, Loi
modifiant la Loi sur la commercialisation des produits agrico-
les. Le Sénat en a discuté aujourd’hui.

Nous accueillons aujourd’hui M. David Cuthberson, direc-
teur général intérimaire, Direction des programmes nationaux,
Direction générale du développement agro-alimentaire; et Des
Doran, coordonnateur principal, Examen et évaluation des pro-
grammes, Direction des programmes nationaux, Direction
générale du développement agro-alimentaire.

Ce projet de loi est celui qui traite de I'inclusion du bois.
Trois sénateurs en ont discuté au Sénat aujourd’hui—

Le sénateur Olson: Le sénateur Hays.

Le président: Vous-méme et celui qui a parrainé le projet de
loi aujourd’hui, le sénateur Forestall. Nous pouvons mainte-
nant en discuter ou poser des questions a son sujet.

Le sénateur Olson: Je voudrais simplement poser une ques-
tion. Est-ce que les fonctionnaires pourraient nous expliquer la
nécessité de ce projet de loi? Si je comprends bien, le projet de
loi vise seulement a ce que le bois soit désigné produit agricole.
Je suppose qu’on a regu des instructions aprés qu’un office de
commercialisation du bois a pris des mesures afin de commer-
cialiser du bois dans le cadre de la Loi sur la commercialisa-
tion des produits agricoles, mais je ne comprends pas comment
on en est arrivé & demander au Sénat de modifier la loi. Il
s’agit simplement de la définition.

L’établissement des quotas de production et des prix de
vente, par exemple, reléve des provinces de toutes fagons, a
moins que des changements m’aient échappé. Quelqu’un, le
vérificateur général ou un comité de réglementation, si je ne
m’abuse, a décidé que le bois n’est pas un produit agricole et
donc, qu’il faut modifier la loi. Réagissons-nous simplement a
cette décision ou est-ce que les ministres provinciaux s’inquié-
taient 4 propos de mesure de votre part qui ne résisteraient pas
a une contestation devant les tribunaux?

Le président: Messieurs Cuthbertson et Doran, si vous
prenez place ici, vos propos seront enregistrés. Je vous saurais
gré ensuite de répondre a cette question.

Le sénateur Spivak: Monsieur le président, me permettriez-
vous d’ajouter quelque chose a cette question, étant donné que
nous n’avons pas beaucoup de temps a notre disposition?

Le président: Je vous en prie, sénateur Spivak.

Le sénateur Spivak: Ma question est trés simple. Un «arbre»
n'est pas un produit agricole, uniquement le «bois», n’est-ce
pas? La distinction est trés importante.

M. David Cuthbertson, directeur général intérimaire,
Direction des programmes nationaux, Direction générale du
développement agro-alimentaire: Si je comprends bien, il s’agit
simplement d’inclure le bois parmi les produits agricoles uni-
quement pour I'application de cette loi. Cela ne comprendrait
pas, en ce qui me concerne, un arbre vivant. M. Doran pourra
me corriger si je me trompe.
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The Chairman: Mr. Doran?

Mr. Des Doran, Senior Coordinator, Program Assessment
and Evaluation, National Programs Directorate, Agri-Food
Development Branch: Mr. Chairman, my interpretation would
agree with the one just given. I think an agricultural product,
as a harvested product, would be the wood, and it is the har-
vested product that we are concerned with.

The Chairman: What do you have to say about Senator
Olson’s questions with respect to the definition and why it has
to be included?

Mr. Cuthbertson: My understanding of the act is that the
original intention of the Agricultural Products Marketing Act
was to include wood. This amendment is simply to clarify that
it is included in the definition for the purposes of the act.

As far as the other question relative to provincial power and
federal power, the Agricultural Products Marketing Act sim-
ply extends the powers of a provincial marketing board for
inter- provincial and export trade, so it just extends the power
that they have already been given under provincial legislation.

Senator Olson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Are there other questions?

Senator Spivak: What is the benefit of this change? Who
benefits from the inclusion of wood as an agricultural product?

Mr. Cuthbertson: The one part of the act allows for the set-
ting of levies. The other part is to allow enforcement of those
levies. The levies go for the improvement of the entire industry.
It allows the industry to become more self-sufficient in that
they can do some research and some marketing development
activities for the benefit of the entire industry.

Senator Spivak: Very well. It is to set levies. Where do those
levies go?

Mr. Cuthbertson: The levies go back to the marketing
board.

Senator Spivak: To the marketing board, very well.

The Chairman: Are there any other questions? If not, I want
to thank our witnesses for helping us with these explanations.
If there are no other questions, perhaps we could have a
motion that Bill C-16, an Act to amend the Agricultural Prod-
ucts and Marketing Act, be reported back without amend-
ment.

Senator Ross: I so move.

The Chairman: Senator Ross. All in favour?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: There is nothing further on our agenda,
other than the adjournment.

The Committee adjourned.

[Traduction)
Le président: Monsieur Doran?

M. Des Doran, coordonnateur principal, Examen et évalua-
tion des programmes, Direction des programmes nationaux,
Direction générale du développement agro-alimentaire: Mon-
sieur le président, mon interprétation concorde avec celle qui
vient d’étre donnée. Je crois qu’un produit agricole, en tant que
produit récolté, serait le bois, étant donné que c’est le produit
récolté qui nous intéresse.

Le président: Et que répondez-vous 4 la question du séna-
teur Olson sur la définition et les motifs de sont ajout?

M. Cuthbertson: Si je comprends bien la loi, I'intention
premiére de la Loi sur la commercialisation des produits
agricoles était d’inclure le bois. Cet amendement vise simple-
ment a clarifier ce qui est inclus dans la définition pour
’application de la loi.

Quant aux autres questions relatives aux pouvoirs des pro-
vinces et du gouvernement fédéral, la Loi sur la commerciali-
sation des produits agricoles élargit simplement les pouvoirs
d’un office de commercialisation provincial en vue du com-
merce interprovincial et de I’exportation; elle se borne donc a
élargir les pouvoirs que conférent déja les lois provinciales.

Le sénateur Olson: Je vous remercie, Monsieur le président.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres questions?

Le sénateur Spivak: Quel est 'avantage de tout cela? Qui
profite du fait que le bois est désigné produit agricole?

M. Cuthbertson: Un aspect de la loi permet d’imposer des
taxes. L’autre permet de percevoir ces taxes afin d’améliorer
I’ensemble du secteur. Ces taxes permettent au secteur de
s’autosuffire davantage, puisqu’il peut effectuer des recherches
et des travaux d’expansion des marchés dont profite I’ensemble
du secteur.

Le sénateur Spivak: D’accord. La loi permet d’imposer des
taxes. Ou vont ces taxes?

M. Cuthbertson: Elles sont remises a I'office de commercia-
lisation.

Le sénateur Spivak: A I'office de commercialisation; trés
bien.

Le président: D’autres questions? Je remercie les témoins de
nous avoir fourni ces explications. S’il n’y a pas d’autres ques-
tions, est-ce que quelqu’un proposerait que le comité rende
compte du projet de loi C-16, Loi modifiant la Loi sur la com-
mercialisation des produits agricoles, sans amendement?

Le sénateur Ross: Je le propose.

Le président: Tout le monde est d’accord?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Il n’y a pas d’autre point a I’ordre du jour.

La séance est levée.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE
(Extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,
Thursday 7th May, 1992).

“Second reading of Bill C-54, an Act to amend the
Farm Products Marketing Agencies Act and other Acts in
consequence thereof.

The Honourable Senator Berntson moved, seconded
by the Honourable Senator Forrestall, that the Bill be
read the second time.

After debate,

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Berntson moved, seconded
by the Honourable Senator Forrestall, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Agricul-
ture and Forestry.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.”

ORDRE DE RENVOI
(Extrait des Procés-verbaux du Sénat, le jeudi 7 mai 1992).

«Deuxieme lecture du Projet de loi C-54, Loi modifiant
la Loi sur les offices de commercialisation des produits
de ferme et d’autres lois en conséquence.

L’honorable sénateur Berntson propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Forrestall, que le projet de loi soit lu
la deuxieme fois.

Apres débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxie¢me fois.

L’honorable sénateur Berntson propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Forrestall, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et
des foréts.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Gordon L. Barnhart
Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, MAY 12, 1992
3

[Text]

The Senate Standing Committee on Agriculture and For-
estry met in camera at 9:35 o’clock a.m. this day, in Room
256-S, Centre Block, the Chairman, the Honourable Senator
Barootes, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Barootes, Hays, Lewis, Olson, Ross and Rossiter. (6)

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Jean-Denis Fréchette, Research Officer.

Also in attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

The Committee commenced consideration of its future busi-
ness.

The Chairman presented the First Report of the Sub-Com-
mittee on Agenda and Procedure which reads as follows:

The Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure of the
Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and Forestry
has the honour to present its

FIRST REPORT

Your Sub-Committee met on Tuesday, May 5, 1992 to
consider the future business of the Committee and agreed
to make the following recommendations:

1. That the following budget application for the fiscal
year ending March 31, 1993 be concurred in, and that
the Chairman submit same to the Standing Senate
Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and
Administration for consideration.

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES:

Professional and other services $ 9,250
Transport and communications 14,793
All other expenditures 800
TOTAL $24,843

2. That the Committee try to be represented by one Sena-
tor and one Researcher from the Library of Parliament
to the Earth Summit which will be held at Rio de
Janeiro, from June 3rd to June 14th, 1992 and, subject
to obtaining such representation, in the case there is a
charge, the Committee will be ready to share the cost
of their expenses.

3. That, after Bill C-54, An Act to amend the Farm Prod-
ucts Marketing Agencies Act and other Acts in conse-
quence thereof, is referred to the Committee, the Min-
ister and Officials of the Department of Agriculture
and Officials of the National Farm Products Marketing
Council be invited to appear.

PROCES-VERBAL

LE MARDI 12 MAI 1992
3)

[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et des
foréts se réunit a huis clos a2 9 h 35 aujourd’hui dans la salle
256-S de I'édifice du Centre, sous la présidence de
I’honorable sénateur Barootes (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Barootes, Hays, Lewis, Olson, Ross et Rossiter. (6)

Présent: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: Jean-Denis Fréchette, chargé de recherche.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Le Comité commence I’étude de ses travaux futurs.

Le président présente le premier rapport du Sous-comité du
programme et de la procédure qui se lit comme suit:

Le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure du
Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et des foréts
a I’honneur de présenter son

PREMIER RAPPORT

Votre Sous-comité s’est réunit le mardi 5 mai 1992
pour étudier les travaux futurs du Comité et est convenu
de faire les recommandations suivantes:

1. Que la demande de budget suivante pour I’exercice se
terminant le 31 mars 1993 soit acceptée et que le prési-
dent la soumette au Comité sénatorial permanent de la
régie interne, des budgets et de I’administration pour
étude.

RESUME DES DEPENSES:

Services professionnels et autres 9250%
Transports et communications 14793
Toutes autres dépenses 800
TOTAL 24843 $

2. Que le Comité essaie d’étre représenté par un sénateur
et un chargé de recherche de la Bibliothéque du Parle-
ment au Sommet de la terre qui se tiendra a Rio de
Janeiro du 3 au 14 juin 1992 et que, sous réserve
d’obtenir cette représentation, en cas de frais, le
Comité sera prét a partager le codt de leurs dépenses.

3. Qu’aprés que le projet de loi C-54, Loi modifiant la
Loi sur les offices de commercialisation des produits
agricoles et d’autres lois en conséquence, aura €€ ren-
voyé au Comité, le Ministre et des représentants du
ministére de I’Agriculture et des représentants du
Conseil national de commercialisation des produits
agricoles soient invités & comparaitre.
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The Honourable Senator Olson moved,—That item 1 of the
Report be concurred in.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

It was agreed,—That subject to obtaining authorization of
the Committee budget for the fiscal year ending March 31,
1993, two senators travel to Regina to the conference “Our
Future: An Action Conference on Agricultural Safety and
Rural Health”.

It was agreed,—That items 2 and 3 of the First Report of
the Sub-Committee on Agenda and Procedure be adopted.

It was agreed,—That the following organisations be invited
to appear on the study of Bill C-54:

~—the Canadian Federation of Agriculture along with
other supply management organisations;

—the Canadian Cattlemen’s Association along with the
Alberta Cattlemen’s Association;

—the Canadian Wheat Board;

—the National Farmers Union;

—the Canadian Horticultural Council; and
—the Fresh for Flavour Foundation.

At 10:30 o’clock a.m., the Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

TUESDAY, MAY 19, 1992
(C))

The Senate Standing Committee on Agriculture and For-
estry met at 4:13 o’clock p.m. this day, in Room 257, East
Block, the Chairman, the Honourable Senator Barootes, pre-
siding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-

tors Barootes, Bernston, Hays, Olson, Riel, Rossiter, Sparrow
and Spivak. (8)

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: June Dewetering, Research Officer.

Also in attendance: The Official reporters of the Senate.
Witnesses:
From Agriculture Canada:

Frank Claydon, Assistant Deputy Minister;

Eric Johannsen, Acting Director, Government Services and
Incentives Division.

From the National Farm Products Marketing Council:

Cliff Mclsaac, Chairman;
Carola McWade, Public and Regulatory Affairs.

L’honorable sénateur Olson propose,—Que la rubrique 1 du
Rapport soit adoptée.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Il est convenu,—Que sous réserve d’avoir obtenu
I’approbation du budget du Comité pour I’exercice se termi-
nant le 31 mars 1993, deux sénateurs se rendent 2 Regina a la
conférence sur la sécurité agricole et la santé rurale.

1l est convenu,—Que les rubriques 2 et 3 du premier rapport
du Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soient adop-
tées.

Il est convenu,—Que les organisations suivantes soient
invitées a comparaitre pour I’étude du projet de loi C-54:

—la Fédération canadienne de I’agriculture ainsi que
d’autres organisations de gestion de I’offre;

—1I’Association canadienne des éleveurs de bétail ainsi
que la Alberta Cattlemen’s Association;

—Ila Commission canadienne du blé;
—1le Syndicat national des cultivateurs; et
—Ile Conseil horticole canadien; et

—Ila Fresh for Flavour Foundation.

A 10 h 30, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convoca-
tion du président.

LE MARDI 19 MAI 1992
)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et des
foréts se réunit a 16 h 13 aujourd’hui dans la salle 257 de
I’édifice de I’Est, sous la présidence de I’honorable sénateur
Barootes (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Barootes, Bernston, Hays, Olson, Riel, Rossiter, Sparrow et
Spivak. (8)

Présent: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement: June Dewetering, chargée de recherche.

Aussi présents: Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.
Témoins:

De Agriculture Canada:
Frank Claydon, sous-ministre adjoint;

Eric Johannsen, directeur adjoint, Services gouvernemen-
taux et incitatifs

Du Conseil national de commercialisation des produits agri-
coles:

M. CIiff Mclsaac, président;
Carola McWade, Affaires publiques et réglementation.
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Pursuant to the Order of Reference adopted by the Senate
on Friday May 1, 1992, the Committee began its examination
of Bill C-54, An Act to amend the Farm Products Marketing
Agencies Act and other Acts in consequence thereof.

Frank Claydon made an opening statement and along with
Eric Johannsen and Cliff Mclsaac answered questions.

At 6:15 o’clock p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call
of the Chair.

ATTEST:

Conformément a I’Ordre de renvoi adopté par le Sénat le
vendredi 1°" mai 1992, le Comité commence son étude du pro-
jet de loi C-54, Loi modifiant la Loi sur les offices de commer-
cialisation des produits de ferme et d’autres lois en consé-
quence.

Frank Claydon fait une déclaration préliminaire et, avec
Eric Johannsen et Cliff Mclsaac, répond aux questions.

A 18 h 15, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convoca-
tion du président.

ATTESTE:

La greffiere du Comité

Marie Louise Paradis

Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Tuesday, May 19, 1992

(Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and For-
estry, to which was referred Bill C-54, to amend the Farm
Products Marketing Agencies Act and other Acts in conse-
quence thereof, met this day at 4:00 p.m. to give consideration
to the bill.

Senator Efstathios William Barootes (Chairman) in the
Chair.

The Chairman: Having summoned a quorum, I think we
should call the meeting to order. We are giving consideration
to Bill C-54, an act to amend the Farm Products Marketing
Agencies Act and other acts in consequence thereof. We have
with us, from the Department of Agriculture, Mr. Frank
Claydon and Mr. E. Johannsen, whom we have met before.
We thank them for being here. We also have with us, from the
National Farm Products Marketing Council, the chairman, Mr.
Cliff Mclsaac, whom we welcome.

Is there any reason why he should not sit at the table? Is
there some precedent or rule about this, Frank? I would like
Mr. Mclsaac to sit at the table because he is from Saskatche-
wan. With Mr. Mclsaac is Carola McWade. Please come and
sit with us at the table so that we can commune together.

We want you to explain to us the nature of the bill, how it is
going to work and the thinking behind it. We will leave it to
you. You will probably want to talk to us and then, hopefully,
there will be time left over for some of us to ask some ques-
tions.

Mr. Frank Claydon, Assistant Deputy Minister, Agricul-
ture Canada: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I will try to keep my
remarks brief so that there will be lots of time for questions
and discussion.

The Chairman: Some of us were briefed about the nature
of the bill by your associate last week. Please proceed.

Mr. Claydon: Thank you very much Mr. Chairman, sena-
tors, ladies and gentlemen. As you know, Bill C-54 is an act to
amend the Farm Products Marketing Agencies Act. It pro-
vides for the establishment of national promotion and research
agencies for farm products.

The legislation is strictly enabling. It does not create agen-
cies, but only the mechanisms for their subsequent creation.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 19 mai 1992

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de 1’agriculture et des
foréts, auquel a été soumis le projet de loi C-54, Loi modifiant
la Loi sur les offices de commercialisation des produits de
ferme et d’autres lois en conséquence, se réunit aujourd’hui 2
16 h, afin d’étudier le projet de loi.

Le sénateur Efstathios William Barootes (président)
occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Etant donné que le quorum est constitué, je
pense que nous devrions rappeler le Comité a I’ordre. Nous
sommes ici pour étudier le projet de loi C-54, Loi modifiant la
Loi sur les offices de commercialisation des produits de ferme
et d’autres lois en conséquence. Nous comptons parmi nous,
du ministére de I’Agriculture, M. Frank Claydon et M. E.
Johannsen, que nous avons déja rencontrés. Nous les remer-
cions de leur présence. Nous comptons également parmi nous,
du Conseil national de commercialisation des produits agri-
coles, le président, M. Cliff Mclsaac, auquel nous souhaitons
la bienvenue.

Y a-t-il une raison pour laquelle il ne devrait pas étre parmi
nous? Existe-t-il un précédent ou une régle a cet effet, Frank?
J’aimerais que M. Mclsaac soit parmi nous parce qu’il vient
de la Saskatchewan. M. Mclsaac est accompagné de Carola
McWade. Veuillez prendre place parmi nous afin que nous
puissions discuter ensemble.

Nous aimerions que vous nous expliquiez la nature du pro-
jet de loi, la fagon dont il va étre mis en application et les
raisons pour lesquelles il a été élaboré. Nous vous laissons
faire. Vous voudrez probablement tout d’abord nous en parler,
puis, s’il reste assez de temps, ce que nous espérons, nous
pourrons poser des questions.

M. Frank Claydon, sous-ministre adjoint, Agriculture
Canada: Merci Monsieur le président. J’essaierai d’étre bref,
de fagon a laisser beaucoup de temps pour les questions et la
discussion.

Le président: Certains d’entre nous ont été informés de la
nature du projet de loi par votre collégue, la semaine derniére.
Veuillez continuer.

M. Claydon: Merci beaucoup, monsieur le président, séna-
teurs, Mesdames et Messieurs. Comme vous le savez, le projet
de loi C-54 est une loi modifiant la Loi sur les offices de com-
mercialisation des produits de ferme. Il prévoit I’ établissement
d’offices fédéraux de promotion et de recherche pour les pro-
duits agricoles.

Il s’agit strictement d’une loi d’autorisation. Elle ne crée
pas les offices, mais uniquement les mécanismes nécessaires 2
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Commodity groups will have to design and propose promo-
tion-research agencies that are in their best interests.

Promotion and research agencies will be funded by
check-offs, which is a kind of levy, paid by domestic produc-
ers and, where included in a promotion and research plan,
check-offs on imports as well. Check-offs can be mandatory
or they can be refundable depending on the plan developed by
an industry group. Small producers could, for example, be
exempted altogether.

Bill C-54 allows all farm products to be eligible for
check-offs except wheat and barley produced in the Canadian
Wheat Board designated area. Check-offs can be applied to
imports of raw and processed farm products, for example, cat-
tle and beef.

Check-offs respond to requests from the agricultural sector
to have legislation for a national check-off system. Consulta-
tions with agri-food groups and provinces have been held to
ensure that the proposed check-off system will best meet the
needs of the industry.

Activities funded by the agencies are designed to comple-
ment and not replace existing government funding of promo-
tion and research for farm products. Agriculture Canada rec-
ognizes that research is essential to the long-term economic
and environmental health of the agri-food sector.

The Farm Products Marketing Agencies Act provides ena-
bling legislation for the establishment of national marketing
agencies and has been used to create supply management
agencies for poultry and for eggs. Bill C-54 adds an entirely
new and distinct section to the act to provide for national pro-
motion and research agencies. Except for a few minor amend-
ments introduced at committee stage in the House of Com-
mons, existing provisions of the act concerning supply
management agencies are not revised. Also, farm products
will still have to be specifically named in the act to be eligible
for supply management.

Producer groups can request that the National Farm Prod-
ucts Council inquire into the merits of establishing a promo-
tion and research agency for one or more farm products. The
council must conduct a public hearing before making its rec-
ommendations. However, the council will not recommend the
establishment of an agency unless satisfied that a combined
majority of producers of one or more farm products, or a com-
bined majority of producers and importers in the case where
imports are included, is in favour.

[Traduction)

leur création subséquente. Les groupements de producteurs
spécialisés devront concevoir et proposer des offices de pro-
motion et de recherche qui sont dans leur intérét.

Les offices de promotion et de recherche seront financés au
moyen de déductions, qui sont en quelque sorte des préleve-
ments, imposées aux producteurs nationaux, et également de
déductions sur les importations, lorsqu’elles sont inclues dans
un plan de promotion et de recherche. Les déductions peuvent
étre obligatoires ou peuvent étre remboursables selon le plan
élaboré par un groupe de producteurs. Les petits producteurs,
par exemple, pourraient étre exemptés globalement.

Selon le projet de loi C-54, tous les produits agricoles peu-
vent étre admissibles a des déductions sauf le blé et I’orge pro-
duits dans la région désignée par la Commission canadienne
du blé. Les déductions peuvent étre appliquées aux importa-
tions de produits agricoles bruts et transformés par exemple,
les bovins et le boeuf.

Le déductions ont été créées a la demande du secteur agri-
cole qui souhaitait I’établissement d’une loi sur un systéme
national de déductions. On a organisé des consultations avec
les groupes agro-alimentaires et les provinces dans le but de
déterminer si le systtme de déductions proposé était celui qui
répondrait le mieux aux besoins de I’industrie.

Les activités financées par les offices sont congues pour
compléter et non pas remplacer les activités de promotion et
de recherche liées aux produits agricoles qui sont actuellement
financées par le gouvernement. Agriculture Canada reconnait
que la recherche est essentielle a la santé économique et envi-
ronnementale 2 long terme du secteur agro-alimentaire.

La Loi sur les offices de commercialisation des produits de
ferme est une loi d’autorisation portant sur I’établissement
d’offices nationaux de commercialisation; elle a servi a créer
des offices de gestion des approvisionnements pour la volaille
et les oeufs. Le projet de loi C-54 ajoute un article entierement
nouveau et distinct 2 la Loi, prévoyant des offices nationaux
de promotion et de recherche. A I'exception de quelques chan-
gements mineurs apportés par un comité a la Chambre des
communes, les dispositions actuelles de la Loi concernant les
offices de gestion des approvisionnement n’ont pas €té modi-
fiées. Par ailleurs, les produits agricoles devront encore étre
nommés de fagon précise dans la Loi pour pouvoir étre admis-
sible a la régulation de I’offre.

Les groupes de producteurs peuvent demander que le Con-
seil national des produits agricoles se renseigne sur le bien
fondé de I'établissement d’un office de promotion et de
recherche pour un ou plusieurs produits agricoles. Le Conseil
doit mener des audiences publiques avant de faire ses recom-
mandations. Toutefois, il ne recommandera pas la création
d’un office 3 moins d’étre convaincu que la majorité de
I’ensemble des producteurs d’un ou de plusieurs produits agri-
coles, ou que la majorité de I’ensemble des producteurs et
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If the council is unable to determine whether the necessary
majority support exists, the Governor in Council may request
that each province carry out a plebiscite of producers and,
where imports are to be included, of importers as well.

Promotion-research agencies will be accountable to produc-
ers. For agencies without check-offs on imports, a majority of
agency members shall be primary producers. Where imports
are levied, producers and importers will together comprise a
majority of agency members and be represented in proportion
to their respective market shares. Agency members can be
appointed by the Governor in Council or in any other manner.
Producers will propose how this should be done. In order to
verify check-off revenues on imports, authority will be
granted under the Customs Act to access customs information.

The provinces play an important role in this system as well.
Provinces have authority over intraprovincial trade in farm
products, so their participation is necessary to create a truly
national check-off system. Provincial legislation will likely
need to be revised or created.

Careful consideration has been given to Canada’s interna-
tional trade obligations in drafting Bill C-54. The GATT and
the Canada-U.S. Free Trade Agreement permit check-off
schemes as long as imports are treated no less favourably than
domestic production. This implies that check-offs can be
applied to imports of a given product only where equivalent
levies are applied to domestic farm products.

The government introduced a number of amendments to
Bill C-54 at committee stage in the House. One of these
amendments would have allowed wheat and barley produced
in the Wheat Board designated area to be declared eligible for
check-offs by Order in Council. However, this amendment
was ruled beyond the scope of the bill and therefore inadmis-
sible. The government then sought, but was unable to obtain,
unanimous consent of the House to accept this amendment at
the report stage.

Mr. Chairman, I will conclude my brief comments at this
point. My colleagues and I, including Mr. Mclsaac, who I am
glad is here because, given that the bill passes, he will have

28162-2

[Traduction]

importateurs dans le cas ou les importations sont visées, sont
en faveur d’une telle mesure.

Lorsque le Conseil est incapable de déterminer si la majo-
rité nécessaire appuie le projet, le gouverneur en conseil peut
demander a chaque province de procéder a un référendum
aupres des producteurs et, dans le cas ol les importations sont
visées, aupres des importateurs également.

Les offices de promotion et de recherche devront rendre des
comptes aux producteurs. Dans le cas des offices qui
n’établissent pas de déductions sur les importations, la majo-
rité de leurs membres devront étre des producteurs du secteur
primaire. Lorsque les importations font I'objet de préleve-
ments, les producteurs et les importateurs constitueront la
majorité des membres de I’office et seront représentés propor-
tionnellement a leurs parts respectives du marché. Les
membres de I’office peuvent étre nommés par le gouverneur
en conseil ou de toute autre maniére. Ce sont les producteurs
qui proposeront la fagon dont les membres seront nommés.
Afin qu’on puisse vérifier les recettes venant des prélévements
sur les importations des pouvoirs seront accordés en vertu de
la Loi sur les douanes, qui permettront d’avoir acces aux ren-
seignements douaniers.

Les provinces jouent également un réle important dans ce
systeme. Elles exercent un pouvoir sur le commerce interpro-
vincial des produits agricoles; leur participation est donc
nécessaire a la création d’un systeme de déductions réellement
national. Il faudra vraisemblablement modifier ou créer les
lois provinciales.

Lors de la rédaction du projet de loi C-54, on a apporté un
attention particuliere aux obligations du Canada a I’égard du
commerce international. Le GATT et I’Accord de libre-
échange entre le Canada et les Etats-Unis permettent
I’établissement de systémes de déductions du moment que les
importations sont traitées de fagon aussi favorable que les pro-
duits nationaux. Cela signifie que des déductions ne peuvent
étre appliquées aux importations d’un produit donné qu’a la
condition que des prélevements équivalents soient effectués
sur les produits agricoles nationaux.

Le gouvernement a proposé plusieurs amendements au pro-
jet de loi C-54 a I’étape de I’étude en comité a la Chambre.
L’un de ces amendements aurait permis de déclarer le blé et
I’orge produits dans la région désignée par la Commission du
blé admissibles a des déductions en vertu d’un décret. Cepen-
dant, il a été décidé que cet amendement sortait du champ
d’application de ce projet de loi et qu’il était donc inadmissi-
ble. Le gouvernement a ensuite tenté, mais en vain, d’obtenir
de la Chambre qu’elle accepte cet amendement a I’unanimité a
I"étape du rapport.

Monsieur le président, je terminerai sur ce mes brefs com-
mentaires. Mes collegues et moi-méme, y compris M. Mcl-
saac, dont la présence ici me réjouit, puisque si le projet de loi
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the primary responsibility for its implementation, would all be
glad to respond to your concerns and questions. Thank you
very much.

The Chairman: Should the bill pass, I assure you it will be
in good hands if it is in those of Mr. Mclsaac.

Mr. Claydon: It certainly will.

Senator Olson: Mr. Claydon, would you deal with the
other amendments that were proposed in the Commons? I
think it would save us a lot of time if you told us what they
are. I have a list of them taken from the House of Commons
Hansard. Tell us why they were rejected by the minister or by
the government. For example, Motion No. 2 reads:

That Bill C-54 be amended in clause 10 by striking out
lines 21 to 23 at page 8 and substituting the following
therefor:

39(1) The Governor in Council may, upon request by
producers, or producers and importers, as the case may
be, establish a promotion-research agency by proclama-
tion with powers relating to one or more.

That motion was apparently defeated, or at least not
accepted either in the committee or in the House. Why?

Mr. Claydon: Mr. Chairman, a number of amendments
were accepted. Perhaps I could go through those and then we
could go to the ones that were rejected and provide the basis
for this rejection. Mr. Johannsen has a list of all those that
were rejected.

Senator Olson: I think that would save a lot of time. Oth-
erwise we will get into re-debating the same things. I presume
you had a good reason for not accepting those amendments.
Could you please tell us what it was.

Mr. Claydon: Mr. Chairman, turning then to the amend-
ments that were accepted and given third reading—

The Chairman: Are these amendments that came from the
committee or amendments that were raised at third reading?

Mr. Claydon: They are amendments that came from the
committee.

Senator Olson: They were all raised in the committee, I
think.

Mr. Claydon: The first amendment had to do with the first
part of the Act. This is in terms of the over-all definition of
the products that we are talking about. There was a change in
the definition of *“agricultural product” to include the idea of
either “processed or unprocessed”, to be consistent with the
new Part III, which has that “processed or unprocessed” defi-
nition. That was done because of the interest of a number of

[Traduction)

est adopté, il sera le principal responsable de sa mise en oeu-
vre, serions tous heureux de répondre a vos questions. Merci
beaucoup.

Le président: Si le projet de loi est adopté, je vous assure
qu’il sera entre bonnes mains s’il est confié a M. Mclsaac.

M. Claydon: Strement.

Le sénateur Olson: Monsieur Claydon, pourriez-vous par-
ler des autres amendements proposés a la Chambre des com-
munes? Je pense qu’on gagnerait beaucoup de temps si vous
nous disiez quels sont ces amendements. J’ai une liste de ces
amendements, tirée du hansard de la Chambre des communes.
Dites-nous pourquoi ils ont été rejetés par le ministre ou par le
gouvernement. Par exemple, la motion n°® 2 se lit comme suit:

Qu’on modifie le projet de loi C-54, a I'article 10, en
retranchant les lignes 27 a 30, page 9, et en les rempla-
¢ant par ce qui suil:

39(1) Le gouverneur en conseil peut, par proclamation,
a la demande des producteurs, ou des producteurs et des
importateurs, selon le cas, créer un office de promotion et
de recherche pour un ou plusieurs produits agricoles.

Apparemment, le comité ou la Chambre a rejeté cette
motion, ou du moins ne I’a pas approuvée. Pourquoi?

M. Claydon: Monsieur le président, plusieurs amende-
ments ont été approuvés. Je pourrais peut-étre commencer par
ceux-13, puis passer ensuite aux amendements qui ont été
rejetés et indiquer les motifs de leur rejet. M. Johannsen a une
liste de tous les amendements rejetés.

Le sénateur Olson: Je crois qu’on gagnerait beaucoup de
temps. Autrement, les mémes questions seraient débattues plu-
sieurs fois. Je suppose que vous aviez une bonne raison de ne
pas approuver ces amendements. Maintenant, pourriez-vous
nous dire quelle était cette raison.

M. Claydon: Monsieur le président, au sujet alors des
amendements qui ont été approuvés et adoptés en troisieme
lecture. . .

Le président: Ces amendements viennent-ils du comité ou
ontils été proposés en troisieme lecture?

M. Claydon: Il s’agit d’amendements venant du comité.

Le sénateur Olson: Je pense qu’ils ont tous €€ proposés
par le comité.

M. Claydon: Le premier amendement concerne la premiére
partie de la Loi. Il s’agit de la définition générale des produits
dont nous parlons. On a modifié la définition d’un «produit
agricole» pour y inclure I'idée d’un produit «transformé ou
non transformé», de fagon 2 ce qu’elle soit conforme a la Par-
tie 111 qui comprend cette définition d’un produit «transformé
ou non transformé». Ce changement a été apporté parce que
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commaodity groups in being able to include processed products
under a check-off system.

The Chairman: Is it understood by everyone that that is a
processed product that contains more than 50 per cent of orig-
inal raw material? Is that the basis?

Mr. Claydon: There was no specific definition in terms of
a percentage.

Senator Olson: Is this the amendment to clause 3?

Mr. Claydon: There was an amendment to change Part I of
the act.

Senator Olson: What I have before me is clause 3 on page
2. The amendment says, “...eggs and poultry, whether
processed or unprocessed, and any part of such product.” Is
that the one we are talking about?

Mr. Claydon: I am sorry, senator, that is Part II. There was
a proposal to change Part II to make it the same as Parts I and
I11, but that was not passed. The reason for that was that Part
II deals with supply management agencies and Part III deals
with the new promotion and research agencies. In the case of
promotion and research, there was an explicit request to be
able to include the processed product under the promotion and
research agencies. In the case of Part II, which deals with the
creation of supply management agencies, the idea of
extending it to processed product was not part of the concept
of check-offs, so Part II was not amended in the same way.

The Chairman: Just to clarify, the wording of “processed
and unprocessed” that was put in Part I was done to be consis-
tent with what was in Part III, which are the new agencies.

Mr. Claydon: Exactly.

The Chairman: But that section which had to do with sup-
ply management that is, the feather industries only and not the
dairy industries was proposed but not accepted, because Part
II of the act, which is the supply management section, was not
touched in the concept of these amendments. Am I correct in
that?

Mr. Claydon: Yes, you are.
The Chairman: Thank you.

Mr. Claydon: The second amendment that was accepted
from the committee at third reading was an amendment which
would change the Act in line with one of the recommenda-
tions of the Poultry Task Force that was set up a year and a
half or so ago. That had to do with the composition of the
council itself.

[Traduction)

des groupements de producteurs voulaient pouvoir inclure les
produits transformés dans un systeéme de déductions.

Le président: Tout le monde comprend qu’il s’agit d’un
produit transformé qui contient plus de 50 p. 100 de produit
brut original. Est-ce bien cela?

M. Claydon: Aucun pourcentage n’est précisé.

Le sénateur Olson: Cet amendement porte-t-il sur I’article
39

M. Claydon: Un amendement a été proposé pour changer
la Partie I de la Loi.

Le sénateur Olson: Ce que j’ai devant moi, c’est I’article 3
de la page 2. L’amendement porte sur les «oeufs et la volaille,
que ces produits soient transformés ou non, et sur toute partie
de ces produits». Est-ce bien de celui-ci dont nous parlons?

M. Claydon: Je suis désolé, Monsieur le sénateur, c’est la
Partie II. On avait présenté une proposition afin de modifier la
Partie II de telle sorte qu’elle soit identique aux Parties I et III,
mais cette proposition a été rejetée. La raison invoquée est que
la Partie II a trait aux offices de gestion des approvisionne-
ments, alors que la Partie III concerne les nouveaux offices de
promotion et de recherche. Dans le cas de la promotion et de
la recherche, on a demandé explicitement qu’il soit possible
d’inclure les produits transformés dans les produits qui rele-
vent de la compétence des offices de promotion et de recher-
che. En ce qui concerne la Partie II, qui porte sur la création
des offices de gestion des approvisionnements, I'idée d’y
inclure les produits transformés ne faisait pas partie du con-
cept des déductions; donc, la Partie II n’a pas été modifiée de
la méme fagon.

Le président: Juste pour éclaircir les choses, les termes
«transformés et non transformés» qui figurent dans la Partie I
ont été utilisés par souci d’uniformité avec la Partie III qui
concerne les nouveaux offices.

M. Claydon: Exactement.

Le président: Mais cet article qui a trait a la gestion des
approvisionnements et qui ne concerne que les industries avi-
coles, et non pas I’industrie laitiere, a été proposé puis rejeté,
parce que la Partie II de la Loi, celle qui traite de la gestion
des approvisionnements, n’était pas touchée par ces modifica-
tions. Ai-je bien compris?

M. Claydon: Oui, vous avez raison.

Le président: Je vous remercie.

M. Claydon: Le deuxieme amendement soumis par le
comité qui a été accepté lors de la troisieme lecture visait a
intégrer dans la Loi les recommandations formulées par le
Groupe de travail sur la politique avicole qui a été constitué il
y a prés d’un an et demi. Cet amendement touchait la compo-
sition du conseil lui-méme.
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The amendment provides that, not counting the Chair, at
least 50 per cent of the members of the council shall be pri-
mary producers at the time of appointment. This is in line with
the recommendation from the Poultry Task Force to balance
the composition of the council so that there will be equal
members from producers and non-producers. That also passed
through third reading.

Senator Spivak: Who are the non-producers?

Mr. Claydon: This would be processors, consumers and
further processors. It could extend to members of the banking
community and others appointed to provide balance to the
council.

The third item had to do with the maximum size of a mar-
keting agency as defined under Part II of the Act. This is the
part that deals with supply management. In this case the size
was increased from 12 to a maximum of 16 members. This
allowed for increased participation from non-producers again,
in terms of these agencies. For example, the chicken agency
had already decided to increase the size of its agency by two
non-producers. As well, it allowed for expansion in terms of
the number of provinces and territories that could be repre-
sented on these agencies.

Again, 16 is a maximum number. It is an enabling concept.
It does not require that any agency be comprised of 16 rather
than 10, or whatever number seems appropriate, but it sets a
maximum and, in the case of the chicken agency, raising the
ceiling allows them to increase their participation from
non-producers, as they were wishing to do.

I should mention as well that this maximum of 16 also
applies to the marketing and promotion agencies. So the idea
of a maximum of 16 applies to both Part II for supply manage-
ment agencies and Part III for promotion and research agen-
cies.

Are there any questions on that one in particular?
The Chairman: No.

Mr. Claydon: The other amendment that was passed had to
do with the way inspection was carried out. There was con-
cern about inspectors having to enter the farmers’ premises to
be able to access records and so on. That was changed so that
it was a question of having the power to ensure that records
are made available rather than having to enter premises to
seize them. This was just a more reasonable way of operating
that particular inspection function.

The Chairman: Are there any questions on that?

[Traduction)

L’amendement prévoit qu’au moins 50 p. 100 des conseil-
lers, sans compter le président, soient des producteurs du sec-
teur primaire au moment de leur nomination. Cela va dans le
sens de la recommandation soumise par le Groupe de travail
sur la politique avicole qui vise a instaurer une représentation
équilibrée au sein du conseil, soit un nombre égal de représen-
tants des producteurs et des non-producteurs. Cet amendement
a également été adopté en troisiéme lecture.

Le sénateur Spivak: Qui sont les non-producteurs?

M. Claydon: Il s’agit des transformateurs, des consomma-
teurs et des transformateurs de second cycle. Cela pourrait
englober les membres de I’industrie bancaire et d’autres
nommés pour assurer une représentation équilibrée au sein du
conseil.

Le troisitme amendement concerne la taille maximale d’un
office de commercialisation telle que définie dans la Partie Il
de la Loi. Il s’agit de la partie qui traite de la gestion des
approvisionnements. Dans ce cas, le nombre maximal de
membres a été porté de 12 a 16. Cette modification permet
encore une fois aux non-producteurs de participer davantage
au fonctionnement de ces offices. Par exemple, I’office de
commercialisation du poulet a déja décidé d’ajouter deux
non-producteurs parmi ses membres. Cela a également per-
mis d’accroitre le nombre de provinces et de territoires qui
peuvent étre représentés au sein de ces offices.

Le nombre maximal encore une fois est de 16. Il s’agit d’un
principe habilitant. 1l n’est pas nécessaire qu’un office compte
16 plutdt que 10 membres ou tout autre nombre jugé appro-
prié, mais cette disposition établit un maximum et, dans le cas
de l'office de commercialisation du poulet, cela lui permet
d’accroitre comme il voulait la participation des
non-producteurs.

Je devrais en outre mentionner que ce maximum de 16
s’applique également aux offices de promotion et de commer-
cialisation. Ainsi, le plafond de 16 vaut aussi pour les offices
de gestion des approvisionnements dont il est question 2 la
Partie II et pour les offices de recherche et de promotion
décrits a la Partie III

Y a-t-il d’autres questions sur ce sujet précis?
Le président: Non.

M. Claydon: L’autre amendement qui a été adopté avait
trait aux modalités d’inspection. On s’inquiétait du fait que les
inspecteurs puissent pénétrer dans les bitiments des agricul-
teurs pour avoir acces 2 des registres ou autres documents.
L’amendement prévoit que I'inspecteur pourra faire en sorte
que les documents soient mis 2 sa disposition plutdt que
d’avoir A pénétrer dans les locaux pour les saisir. Il s’agit tout
simplement d’une fagon plus raisonnable d’exercer cette fonc-
tion particuliere d’inspection.

Le président: Y a-t-il des questions a ce sujet?
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Senator Olson: What led to this? Was there some problem
with people withholding records? I suppose there would be
some small producers who did not have any.

Mr. E. Johannsen, Chief, Government Services and
Incentives: When we were meeting to discuss Bill C-54 with
representatives of the national supply management agencies,
they brought this issue to our attention. I guess there had been
an instance in the past when their hands were tied because
they wanted access to records contained in a dwelling house
but there was no power under the act for the inspectors either
to enter a dwelling house or to compel production of docu-
ments and records contained within a dwelling house. So it
was an issue that had been brought to our attention by the sup-
ply management industry itself.

Senator Olson: The note I have in front of me says that,
“Under section 34, an inspector may enter any place that he
believes is occupied (other than a dwelling house).” So he still
cannot go into a dwelling; or can he?

Mr. Johannsen: That is correct. He can, however, compel
production of documents or records relating to the regulated
product that may be contained within a dwelling house. If the
owner-occupant refuses to provide that documentation, that
person is in contravention of the Act.

Senator Olson: But the amendment did not give him the
authority to get a warrant to go looking for the person in the
dwelling house, did it?

Mr. Johannsen: That is correct.

Senator Olson: I have a problem understanding why you
did it, then. If the problem was that he could not get at them
because they were in a dwelling and you did not amend it to
allow him to have a search warrant in the dwelling, then what
did you do?

Mr. Johannsen: We allowed for inspectors to compel pro-
duction of that information. If there is a refusal to do so, then
that person is in contravention of the act and subject to the
fines of the act, whereas in the past, if they said no, there was
nothing that could be done at all.

Senator Olson: I understand.
The Chairman: It is protection of the privacy of the home.
Senator Olson: I understand that.

The Chairman: But at the same time, if your office had
records that they had removed to somebody’s home, they
could compel that office to produce those records which had
been spirited away to the home. Am I correct in that?

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Olson: Quelles sont les raisons a I’origine de
cet amendement? Y avait-il des problemes de
non-communication de documents? J’imagine que certains
petits producteurs ne détenaient aucun registre.

M. E. Johannsen, chef, Services gouvernementaux et
incitatifs: Lorsque nous nous sommes réunis pour discuter du
projet de loi C-54 avec les représentants des offices canadiens
de gestion des approvisionnements, cette question a été portée
a notre attention. Je pense qu’il y a eu un cas dans le passé ou
on a voulu avoir acceés a des documents conservés dans un
logement privé, mais ou I’on avait les mains liées, la Loi ne
prévoyant pas que les inspecteurs puissent pénétrer dans un
logement privé ou obliger quelqu’un a produire des docu-
ments et des registres conservés dans un logement privé. C’est
donc un probléme qui a été soulevé par I’industrie de la ges-
tion des approvisionnements elle-méme.

Le sénateur Olson: La note que j’ai devant moi indique
que «en vertu de I’article 34, un inspecteur peut entrer dans
tout lieu, s’il a des motifs de le croire occupé (a I’exception
d’un logement privé). Donc, il ne peut toujours pas entrer dans
un logement privé, est-il vrai?

M. Johansen: C’est vrai. Il peut, toutefois, obliger une per-
sonne a produire des documents ou registres touchant le pro-
duit réglementé qui peut se trouver dans un logement privé. Si
le propriétaire-occupant refuse de fournir cette documentation,
cette personne contrevient a la Loi.

Le sénateur Olson: Mais I’amendement ne lui accordait
pas le pouvoir d’obtenir un mandat pour chercher la personne
en question jusque dans un logement privé, n’est-ce pas?

M. Johannsen: Vous avez raison.

Le sénateur Olson: Alors, j’ai de la difficulté 2 compren-
dre pourquoi vous avez proposé cet amendement. Si le pro-
bleme était qu’il ne pouvait pas les suivre dans un logement
privé et que vous n’avez pas proposé un amendement pour lui
permettre d’obtenir un mandat de perquisition pour le faire,
quelle est la nature de I’amendement en question?

M. Johannsen: Notre amendement autorise les inspecteurs
a exiger la production de cette information. Si la personne
refuse, elle contrevient a la loi et est passible des amendes pré-
vues par la loi. Auparavant, si la personne refusait, on ne pou-
vait rien faire du tout.

Le sénateur Olson: Je vois.
Le président: Il s’agit de la protection de la vie privée.
Le sénateur Olson: Je comprends.

Le président: Toutefois, si un bureau avait des dossiers qui
ont été cachés dans un logement privé, on pourrait forcer ce
bureau a produire ces dossiers, n’est-ce pas?
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Senator Olson: I do not know; I guess you are. I guess it is
a useless discussion, because I do not intend to try to do any-
thing about it anyway. Was it some Hutterite colonies or some
producers that had some marketing or production records that
they thought they needed that they could not get at?

Mr. Johannsen: I do not know the specifics of it. Perhaps
representatives of the council will, though.

Mr. Cliff MclIsaac, Chairman, National Farm Products
Marketing Council: I can go back to the Canadian Dairy
Commission Act, which was amended several years ago to
enable the production of records without having to get a war-
rant, and, then, as the chairman mentioned, when one returned
to the dwelling perhaps they were off in an apartment or
somewhere elsewhere.

In the case of these agencies I know one of the uses of
information. All producers are asked to make available
records to determine, for example, cost of production data,
and other related data. If you got to the home and nothing was
there, they said, “Fine. Provide the data.” It was worked out
with the Department of Justice some years ago on the Dairy
Commission and I believe that a similar stipulation was put in
this Act.

Mr. Johannsen: The difference is that the Canadian Dairy
Commission Act does allow for inspectors to enter dwellings,
but then there is a set of provisions in there about the condi-
tions under which warrants must be obtained, and so on. We
have not touched that; that is part of this amendment.

Senator Olson: You are just responding to the chicken
agency asking for this. What I am trying to get at is why they
asked you for it. That is all. Did they have some problems that
they could not deal with and thought that someone was carry-
ing on an action in violation of the terms of the Act and they
could not find it?

Mr. Johannsen: That is my understanding. There was a
case in the past where they had wanted to get access to docu-
ments or records and were unable to because of the powers of
the Act.

Senator Olson: But you do not know how severe it was
violated. Was it one or two cases?

My problem—and maybe I should keep going because I do
not intend to move an amendment anyway—is with the gov-
ernment’s wanting to enact rules so heavy-handed that you
can go and do some of these things. I have never been a
chicken farmer but I have been a small storekeeper. Inspectors
have entered the store with all the authority to rip into all the
books and make you feel bad if you do not have all the records
that they want, and so on. It is a pretty depressing feeling to

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Olson: Je ne sais pas; je crois que vous avez
raison. Mais, je crois que c’est une discussion inutile, car je
n’ai pas I'intention de faire quoi que ce soit a ce sujet de toute
fagon. S’agit-il de colonies huttériennes ou de producteurs en
possession de dossiers de commercialisation ou de production
dont on pensait avoir besoin et qu’on n’a pas pu obtenir?

M. Johannsen: Je ne connais pas les détails. Les représen-
tants du conseil pourront peut-étre vous renseigner.

M. CIiff Mclsaac, président, Conseil national de com-
mercialisation des produits agricoles: Je peux citer la Loi
sur la Commission canadienne du lait, qui a été amendée il y a
plusieurs années, qui permet d’obtenir des dossiers sans qu’il
soit nécessaire d’obtenir un mandat et, comme le président I’a
fait remarquer, il est possible qu’en retournant au logement,
les dossiers aient ét¢ déménagés dans un appartement ou ail-
leurs.

Dans le cas de ces offices, je sais a quoi sert cette informa-
tion, entre autres. Tous les producteurs doivent tenir des dos-
siers renfermant, par exemple, des données sur les cofits de
production et d’autres données connexes. Si vous vous rendez
au logement et que rien ne s’y trouve, vous dites «Treés bien,
fournissez les données.» On a discuté de la chose avec le
ministére de la Justice il y a quelques années a propos de la
Commission du lait; je crois que la présente Loi renferme une
disposition semblable.

M. Johannsen: La différence est que la Commission cana-
dienne du lait autorise les inspecteurs a pénétrer dans les loge-
ments privés, mais il y a des dispositions concernant des situa-
tions ol un mandat doit étre obtenu, etc. Nous n’avons pas
abordé cela; cela fait partie de I’amendement.

Le sénateur Olson: Vous ne faites qu’accéder a la
demande de I’office de commercialisation du poulet. Ce que je
veux savoir, ¢’est pourquoi ils vous ont demandé cela. C’est
tout. Ont-ils eu 2 affronter un probléme qu’ils n’ont pas résolu
et pensé que quelqu’un violait la Loi, mais sans savoir déter-
miner comment?

M. Johannsen: C’est ce que je crois. Il est arrivé dans le
passé qu’ils ont voulu avoir acces a des documents ou a des
dossiers, mais la Loi ne le permettait pas.

Le sénateur Olson: Mais, vous ne savez pas combien de
fois la Loi a été violée—une ou deux fois?

Ce que je me demande—mais je devrais passer outre car je
pas I'intention de proposer un amendement de toute
fagon—n’ai c’est pourquoi le gouvernement veut mettre en
vigueur des régles si séveres. Je n’ai jamais été producteur de
poulet, mais j’ai déja tenu un petit magasin. Des inspecteurs
ont pénétré dans mon magasin avec le droit de consulter tous
les livres et m’ont mis mal a I’aise lorsque je ne pouvais pas
fournir tous les dossiers, etc. C’est assez déprimant quand des
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have inspectors come around and do that to you. That is why I
was curious as to why it happened and how badly it was
abused; apparently they needed the act changed to have that
oppressive authority when they come to check the books.
That is all.

Mr. Johannsen: It is not so much a question of whether
there was one case in the past where it was a significant prob-
lem. Rather, it is just a more general concern that in the farm
community you are unlikely to have a situation in which the
regulated product is kept in the same place as the documents
relating to that product. As a more general concern, the Act as
it is interpreted now is virtually powerless in terms of
allowing access to documents and records, except in the very
fortuitous case that those would be kept in a barn.

Senator Olson: I accept all those reasons. However, if they
were not having any problems, why give the inspectors this
much additional authority? That is what troubles me. But I
will pass on that for now. Maybe we could find out why they
needed this authority. Perhaps it is just to make life miserable
for some farmers so that they can be as intrusive as possible.
Now you cannot get a search warrant, but if the inspector
believes that there are some records there that the producer
does not want to give to him, then he can be charged and he
will be guilty of a violation or infraction under the Act.

My problem is that you have given the inspectors too much
authority.

The Chairman: Is it your position, Senator Olson, that
there should be no monitoring or inspection of these undertak-
ings under the Act and that it just be left up to the willingness
of the producer?

Senator Olson: Yes, unless you have a problem with them.

The Chairman: It is the honour system. We used to have it
at boys’ school, too. Is that what you mean? On the other
hand, it is a little more favourable to obtain a search warrant
than to go through everyone’s things. You just say to him,
“Look, you do not have the records here. Do you have them at
home?” And the person can then say, “Yes, I keep those
records at home. My wife is my bookkeeper.” You then say,
“Would you mind bringing the records down so that we can
have them and inspect them?” It is better than obtaining
seizure warrants and going to their house and turning things
upside down. Do you feel that that is better or worse?

Senator Olson: I do not anticipate that that will happen at
all. T asked a simple question. I appreciate that the witnesses
are unable to give us an answer other than what they have
already said, namely, that they received a request from this
agency to amend the act like this. That is clear. So I am not

[Traduction)

inspecteurs pénétrent ainsi chez vous et que tout cela vous
arrive. C’est pourquoi je suis curieux de savoir ce qui s’est
passé et comment la loi a-t-elle ainsi été contournée; apparem-
ment, une telle modification s’imposait pour donner des pou-
voirs si étendus aux inspecteurs qui viennent vérifier vos
livres. C’est tout.

M. Johannsen: Il ne s’agit pas tellement de savoir s’il s’est
déja présenté un cas grave. Il s’agit plutét d’une question
d’ordre général. Dans le milieu agricole, il est rare que les pro-
duits réglementés soient tenus au méme endroit que les docu-
ments qui s’y rattachent. En termes plus généraux, la loi, dans
son interprétation actuelle, ne donne essentiellement aucun
pouvoir aux inspecteurs lorsqu’il s’agit d’avoir acces a des
documents et a des dossiers, sauf dans les cas trés rares ol ces
derniers seraient tenus dans I’étable.

Le sénateur Olson: J’accepte toutes ces raisons. Toutefois,
je ne vois pas pourquoi il faudrait donner tous ces pouvoirs
supplémentaires aux inspecteurs si I’on n’a constaté aucun
probleme. C’est ce qui me dérange. Mais je vais passer outre
pour le moment. C’est peut-étre seulement pour faire la vie
dure a certains producteurs, une fagon de les géner le plus pos-
sible. On ne peut pas obtenir un mandat de perquisition a
I’heure actuelle, mais si I’inspecteur pense que le producteur
ne veut pas lui remettre certains dossiers, il peut le faire incul-
per et le producteur sera coupable d’infraction a la Loi.

Ce qui me dérange, c’est que vous avez donné trop de pou-
VOIr aux inspecteurs.

Le président: Selon vous, sénateur Olson, il ne devrait y
avoir aucune surveillance ou inspection de ces entreprises
dans le cadre de la Loi et on devrait s’en remettre a la bonne
volonté du producteur?

Le sénateur Olson: Oui, 2 moins que ces producteurs ne
soient sources de problémes.

Le président: Vous en appelez a leur sens de I’honneur.
C’est également le systeme qui était en usage a la petite école.
C’est bien ce dont vous parlez? Par ailleurs, il est un peu plus
recommandable d’obtenir un mandat de perquisition que de
fouiller dans les affaires de tout le monde. Vous n’avez qu’a
dire au producteur: «Le dossier n’est pas ici, est-il 2 la mai-
son?» Et le producteur peut dire: «Oui, je garde ces dossiers a
la maison. Ma femme s’en occupe.» Vous lui dites alors:
«Pourriez-vous aller chercher ces dossiers pour qu’on puisse y
jeter un coup d’oeil?» C’est préférable que d’obtenir un man-
dat de saisie et mettre toute la maison sens dessus dessous.
Quel est votre avis?

Le sénateur Olson: Je ne crois pas qu’une telle chose
puisse arriver. J'ai posé une simple question. Je vois que les
témoins ne peuvent pas préciser davantage ce qu’ils nous ont
dit déja, c’est-a-dire qu’ils ont regu une demande de cet orga-
nisme pour modifier la loi dans ce sens. Cela est clair. Je ne
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being critical of that. I just do not like government inspectors
to have all that authority to go out there and use it. That is why
I want to know what the problem is. Do we have a problem?

The Chairman: We could ask the deputy minister to see if
he could get some information for us as to the basis for this
amendment. Were there some examples of evasion or avoid-
ance in the past?

Mr. Claydon: I would be glad to do that, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: This is concerning the Canadian Chicken
Marketing Agency.

Senator Olson: Well, whoever it was. I do not believe gov-
ernment inspectors should have more authority than they
need, ever.

Senator Spivak: I agree.

The Chairman: Senator Olson, you are a libertarian today.

Do you have a comment to make on this, Senator Riel?

Senator Riel: No. I was supporting Senator Olson in his
remarks concerning the protection of freedom.

Senator Olson: You call it “libertarian”
The Chairman: It is the same thing.

Senator Spivak: Are we open for question now?

The Chairman: On this aspect of it. There are some other
amendments that Mr. Claydon wants to speak to, though.
Please go ahead.

Mr. Claydon: I should like to turn now to the suggested
amendments which were not approved at third reading. There
are several of those. I will just go through them and we could
have comments on them as we go.

The first one that I have is an amendment which would
require that the Governor in Council establish a promotion-
research agency only when requested by producers, or produc-
ers and importers, as the case may be.

In terms of explaining the reason why that was not
accepted, as set out in Part I of the bill, the National Farm
Products Council shall inquire into the merits of establishing a
promotion-research council. There are then three different cir-
cumstances stated. First, at the request of a producer associa-
tion; secondly, if directed to do so by the Minister of Agricul-
ture; and thirdly, on its own initiative. There are these three
ways, then, that an investigation could be launched. However,

[Traduction)

critique pas ce point. Mais, je ne suis pas d’accord pour que
des inspecteurs du gouvernement aient tant de pouvoirs et s’en
servent n’importe comment. C’est pourquoi je veux savoir
quel est le probleme. Y a-t-il un probléme?

Le président: On pourrait demander au sous-ministre
d’obtenir de I’information sur la raison de cet amendement.
A-t-on des exemples de contournement de la loi ou de tac-
tiques d’évitement de la loi?

M. Claydon: Je me ferai un plaisir d’accéder a votre
demande, M. le président.

Le président: Cela concerne I’Office canadien de commer-
cialisation du poulet.

Le sénateur Olson: Peu importe, je ne crois pas que les
inspecteurs du gouvernement devraient avoir plus de pouvoirs
qu’il n’en ont besoin.

Le sénateur Spivak: Je suis d’accord avec vous.

Le président: Sénateur Olson, vous étes libertaire
aujourd’hui.

Avez-vous un commentaire a formuler, sénateur Riel?

Le sénateur Riel: Non. J’appuie le sénateur Olson dans ses
observations concernant la protection de la liberté.

Le sénateur Olson: Vous appelez ¢a du «libertarisme».
Le président: C’est la méme chose.

Le sénateur Spivak: Sommes-nous préts pour la période
des questions?

Le président: Sur cet aspect seulement. Il y a d’autres
amendements que M. Claydon veut aborder. Poursuivez.

M. Claydon: J’aimerais vous parler maintenant des amen-
dements proposés qui n’ont pas été adoptés a la troisieme lec-
ture. Il y en a plusieurs. Je vais les énumérer et nous pourrons
les commenter au fur et & mesure.

Le premier est un amendement demandant au gouverneur
en conseil de créer un office de la promotion et de la recherche
uniquement lorsque les producteurs, ou les producteurs et les
importateurs, en font la demande.

Afin d’expliquer la raison pour laquelle cet amendement
n’a pas été accepté, comme il est stipulé dans la partie I du
projet de loi, le Conseil national des produits agricoles doit
examiner les avantages qu’il y a de créer un office de promo-
tion et de recherche. Trois situations peuvent se présenter. Le
Conseil peut enquéter sur la pertinence de créer un tel office a
la demande d’une association de producteurs, sur I’ordre du
ministre de I’Agriculture ou de sa propre initiative. Une
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an agency can then be established only when there is a major-
ity of support of producers, or producers and importers, as the
case may be. It was for that reason that the amendment was
not approved.

Senator Spivak: A majority of producers within an area or
on the board? What is that proposal in the Act?

Mr. Claydon: The majority of producers would have to be
the majority of producers to which the promotion and research
agency would apply.

Senator Spivak: In general in the field, so that there would
be a vote?

Mr. Claydon: There are two possibilities. One is where the
council, through the kind of interest that was shown, could
demonstrate that there was a strong majority in favour; and if
they feel that it is too hard to tell whether there is a majority,
then there is a provision for a plebiscite to be held as well to
establish that.

Senator Olson: The consequence is that the three methods
of initiating an agency still exist.

Mr. Claydon: That is right, senator. There was then an
amendment that would require that the Canadian Wheat Board
manage all check-offs collected by wheat and barley produced
in the Wheat Board’s designated area. That is related to the
other amendment concerning applying check-offs to wheat
and barley. It did not succeed when the other amendments
about check-offs for wheat and barley were not successful.

There was another amendment related to the collection of
check-offs by customs officials. This amendment would per-
mit promotion-research agencies to enter into agreements with
the Crown for the collection of check-offs on imports. The
intention is that customs officials would do the collection.
That was not accepted, because these amendments would not
add to the existing legal authority, since the Crown may
already enter into this sort of agreement if it so chooses. The
amendment would therefore mislead by appearing to convey
additional authority when in fact it does not. It was more tech-
nical than otherwise, in that the power was there to do that.

The Chairman: Is that it?
Mr. Claydon: No, there is more.

The Chairman: May I ask a question concerning the cus-
toms one? You say that the power exists with the Department
of Customs and Excise. They do have the power or the author-
ity to collect these at the border if they wish to, do they?

Mr. Claydon: Yes.

[Traduction)

enquéte peut donc étre amorcée de ces trois fagons. Toutefois,
un office ne peut étre créé que lorsque la majorité des produc-
teurs, ou la majorité des producteurs et des importateurs, sont
en faveur de la création d’un tel organisme. C’est pour cette
raison que ’amendement n’a pas été adopté.

Le sénateur Spivak: Une majorité de producteurs dans une
région ou dans toutes les régions relevant de la commission?
Quelle est la teneur de la proposition?

M. Claydon: Il s’agit de la majorité des producteurs qui
seraient touchés par I’office de promotion et de recherche.

Le sénateur Spivak: En général sur le terrain, il y aurait
donc un vote?

M. Claydon: Il y a deux possibilités. La premiere est lors-
que le Conseil, en se basant sur I’intérét suscité, est en mesure
de démontrer qu’une forte majorité est en faveur; lorsque le
Conseil estime qu’il est trop difficile de déterminer s’il y a
majorité, il est possible de tenir un référendum pour le déter-
miner.

Le sénateur Olson: Par conséquent, les trois méthodes de
création de I’office existent toujours.

M. Claydon: Oui, monsieur le sénateur. Il y a également un
amendement pour que la Commission canadienne du blé
s’occupe de tous les préleévements sur le blé et I’orge produits
dans les régions désignées par la Commission. Cet amende-
ment est lié aux autres amendements concernant I’application
de prélevements sur le blé et I’orge. Il n’a pas été adopté, pas
plus que les autres amendements concernant les prélévements
sur le blé et I'orge.

Il y avait également un amendement pour que les préleve-
ments soient effectués par les agents des douanes. Cet amen-
dement permettrait aux offices de promotion et de recherche
de conclure une entente avec I’Etat pour que ce dernier effec-
tue les prélévements pour les importations. Cet amendement a
pour but de faire effectuer les prélévement pas les agents des
douanes. Il a été rejeté, car I’Etat a déja ce pouvoir; en effet,
I'Etat peut déja conclure une telle entente s’il le juge bon.
L’amendement pourrait donc laisser croire 2 une augmentation
des pouvoirs dans ce domaine, ce qui n’est pas le cas. C’est
avant tout une question technique.

Le président: Avez-vous terminé?
M. Claydon: Non, j’ai autre chose a ajouter.

Le président: Puis-je poser une question concernant
I’amendement sur les douanes? Vous dites que le ministere
responsable des douanes et des accises a déja ce pouvoir. Il
peut déja percevoir ces droits 2 la frontiere s’il le désire, n’est-
ce pas?

M. Claydon: Oui.
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The Chairman: So that this was superfluous and redun-
dant?

Mr. Claydon: Yes, sir.
The Chairman: Did they so agree?
Mr. Johannsen: I am sorry, did they agree to that?

The Chairman: Have they so agreed to do it on imports?

Mr. Johannsen: To do the collection?
The Chairman: Yes.
Mr. Johannsen: No.

Mr. Claydon: The next motion relates to a maximum
check-off of one-half of one per cent. This would be one-half
of one per cent on the value of the regulated product, subject
to check-off. This was not accepted because the promotion-
research agencies will be accountable to producers and many
producers may view check-offs as a tax on their business. Pro-
ducers will therefore ensure for themselves that check-offs are
not set at exorbitant levels.

It was felt that it would be difficult, if not impossible, to set
in advance a maximum check-off level that would be appro-
priate in all circumstances for all different types of products.

Finally, the National Farm Products Council will be
required to review and approve all levy orders that would
establish the check-offs before they came into effect. So there
is, as well, a process of review to look at those. For those rea-
sons it was felt that it would not be appropriate to have a max-
imum set in the legislation.

The Chairman: We have now reviewed the four amend-
ments accepted at third reading in the House and those not
acepted. How many were not accepted? Was it three, four, or
five?

Mr. Claydon: We have gone through six so far and there
are three more that I have here.

There was another amendment that would require that at
least 80 per cent of check-off revenues be spent on promotion
and research of farm products. In other words, at most, 20 per
cent of revenues could be spent on other activities. However,
it is not clear whether these “other activities” would include
administrative and overhead costs directly associated with
promotion and research.

It is very difficult to specify in advance, and for all com-
modities, the correct minimum percentage of revenue that
would have to be spent on promotion and research, but the
most important thing is that these agencies are accountable to
producers and it is in the producers’ best interests to get the

[Traduction]

Le président: Cet amendement est donc superflu et redon-
dant?

M. Claydon: Oui, monsieur.
Le président: Ont-ils accepté?
M. Johannsen: Pardon?

Le président: Ont-ils accepté de le faire pour les importa-
tions?

M. Johansen: De percevoir le montant des prélévements?
Le président: Oui.
M. Johannsen: Non.

M. Claydon: La prochaine motion a trait a un prélévement
maximal d’un demi-pour cent, c’est-a-dire un demi-pour cent
de la valeur du produit réglementé qui doit faire I’objet d’un
prélevement. Cette motion n’a pas été acceptée parce que les
offices de recherche et de promotion devront rendre des comp-
tes aux producteurs et bon nombre de producteurs peuvent
considérer ces prélevements comme une taxe d’affaire. Les
producteurs prendront donc des mesures pour s’assurer que le
niveau des prélévements ne soit as exorbitant.

On estimait qu’il serait difficile, voire impossible, de fixer a
I’avance un pourcentage maximal qui conviendrait dans toutes
les circonstances a tous les types de produits.

Enfin, le Conseil national des produits agricoles devra exa-
miner et approuver toutes les ordonnances de préleévement
fixant le montant des prélevements avant leur entrée en
vigueur. Il y a donc également un mécanisme établi pour
I’examen de ces préleévements. On jugeait donc pour ces rai-
sons qu’il ne serait pas indiqué de prévoir un maximum dans
la Loi.

Le président: Nous avons maintenant passé en revue les
quatre amendements adoptés en troisiéme lecture 2 la Cham-
bre, ainsi que ceux qui ne I’ont pas été. Combien n’ont pas €té
adoptés? Trois, quatre ou cing?

M. Claydon: Nous en avons examiné six jusqu’a mainte-
nant; il en reste encore trois.

Il y a un autre amendement qui prévoit qu’au moins
80 p. 100 des revenus provenant des prélévements soient con-
sacrés aux activités de promotion et de recherche liées aux
produits agricoles. En d’autres termes, 20 p. 100 des revenus,
au maximum, pourraient étre dépensés pour d’autres activités.
Il n’est pas clair cependant si ces «autres activités» inclue-
raient les frais généraux et les frais d’administration directe-
ment associés a la promotion et a la recherche.

Il est tres difficile de préciser a I’avance, et pour tous les
produits, le pourcentage minimum de revenus qui devrait étre
consacré 2 la promotion et a la recherche, mais ce qui importe
au plus haut point, c’est que ces offices doivent rendre des
comptes aux producteurs et que les producteurs ont tout intérét
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biggest bang for their buck in terms of the kind of work that
can be done with their dollars.

Basically, we felt that it would not be necessary to specify
in the act a percentage that might not fit all circumstances.

Senator Olson: May I ask what the mechanism is with
respect to being accountable to the producers? On a
year-by-year basis I understand that the producers have a lot to
say in the set-up and in the membership, and all of that, but
with each budget is there a mechanism that they be accounta-
ble to the producers, or is it just when it is time for their whole
career to be reviewed?

Mr. Claydon: There are a couple of angles on that. First,
each of these agencies would have some responsibilities to the
National Farm Products Council. There would have to be
reports put in front of Parliament, and so on, that would report
on the operations of these agencies.

Again, we are talking about enabling legislation that would
give the producers latitude in terms of how it was established
and the kind of accounting they might want. For example,
having a report sent each year to every producer covered
under a check-off system might be a fairly expensive way of
getting that accountability back to producers and there might
be some other methods that producers would like to see used.
There is flexibility in the setting up of an agency for the kinds
of accountability that the producers who establish it would
like to see put in place.

It is not a legislative, “You must do this” approach; it is on a
case-by-case basis, as the producers see a need for a particular
kind of accountability in relation to their activities under the
check-offs.

Senator Olson: It seems to me we heard that there was an
estimate. Is that the right word, Mr.Johannsen? Did you not
tell us that they expected that a check-off might be one-fifth of
one per cent in most cases?

Mr. Johannsen: That was an example drawn specifically
from the horticulture sector.

Senator Olson: Just the horticulture sector? I see. Do you
have some estimates from other sectors?

Mr. Johannsen: No, I do not, senator. If you look, for
example, at the cattle sector, at the moment there are provin-
cial check-off schemes for cattle. They are all at different
levels.

Senator Olson: But they are nowhere near half of one per
cent, are they?

[Traduction)

a essayer d’obtenir le meilleur rendement pour leur investisse-
ment, c’est-a-dire la plus grande somme de travail pour leur
argent.

Nous estimions fondamentalement qu’il ne serait pas néces-
saire de préciser dans la Loi un pourcentage qui pourrait ne
pas convenir 2 toutes les circonstances.

Le sénateur Olson: Quel est le mécanisme prévu pour la
reddition de comptes aux producteurs? Chaque année, si je
comprends bien, les producteurs jouent un réle important dans
I’établissement de ce mécanisme et dans la formation du con-
seil, etc, mais y a-t-il un mécanisme prévu dans chaque budget
pour la présentation de rapports par les offices aux produc-
teurs ou cela ne se fait-il que lorsqu’il est temps de faire une
remise en question générale de leur avenir?

M. Claydon: Plusieurs aspects interviennent ici. Tout
d’abord, chacun de ces offices devrait rendre compte au Con-
seil national des produits agricoles. Des rapports devraient étre
soumis au Parlement, etc., qui porteraient sur les activités de
ces offices.

Encore une fois, nous parlons d’une loi habilitante qui lais-
serait aux producteurs une certaine latitude en ce qui concerne
la fagon d’établir ce mécanisme et le type de rapports qu’ils
souhaiteraient voir soumis. Par exemple, I’envoi chaque année
d’un rapport a chacun des producteurs visés par un syst¢me de
prélévement est une fagon assez cofiteuse de rendre des comp-
tes aux producteurs et il est possible que ces derniers préferent
utiliser d’autres méthodes. Lors de I’établissement d’un office,
une certaine marge de manoeuvre est laissée aux producteurs
qui créent cet office quant au syst¢tme de production de rap-
ports qu’ils aimeraient voir institué.

Il ne s’agit pas d’une approche prescriptive, législative; cela
se fait au cas par cas, lorsque les producteurs voient la néces-
sité d’établir un type particulier de mécanisme se rapportant 2
leurs activités visées par les prélévements.

Le sénateur Olson: Il me semble avoir entendu qu’une
estimation avait été effectuée. Ai-je bien entendu mon-
sieur Olson? Ne nous avez-vous pas dit qu’on s’attendait a ce
qu’un prélévement d’un cinquieme a 1 p. 100 soit effectué
dans la plupart des cas?

M. Johannsen: C’était un exemple provenant du secteur de
I’horticulture.

Le sénateur Olson: Le secteur de I’horticulture seulement?
Je vois. Avez-vous des estimations pour d’autres secteurs?

M. Johannsen: Non, monsieur le sénateur, je n’en ai pas.
Prenons par exemple le secteur de I’élevage: a I'heure
actuelle, il y a pour ce secteur des systémes provinciaux de
déduction. Les taux sont tous différents.

Le sénateur Olson: Mais ils sont loin d’approcher un demi
de un pour cent, n’est-ce pas?
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Mr. Johannsen: I believe the maximum is about $1.35 a
head. I would have to work out what the percentage would
be, but it is lower than that in many provinces as well. It is
hard for me to anticipate what the level might be once they set
up an agency. In some cases for example, in the case of cattle
it will be on a per-head or per-unit basis rather than on the
basis of a percentage of value.

Senator Olson: Yes.

Mr. Claydon: Mr. Chairman, there are just two other
amendments I should deal with. We have covered them in dis-
cussion, but I will just read them to you and you will see what
I mean.

One amendment would provide that *...a minimum of §
per cent of producers or 50 per cent of importers contributing
to a promotion-research agency may petition the Governor in
Council to review the activities of the agency, and the Minis-
ter of Agriculture shall then conduct such a review.” I guess I
have covered that to some extent in terms of the fact that there
could be provisions in any particular check-off arrangement
for a review as the producers saw fit. As well, the National
Farm Product Council has powers of review that they can use,
if they are requested to do so, to look into the operations of
one of these agencies. Again, it was felt that adding additional
requirements here was not necessary.

The final amendment was somewhat similar, in that it said
it was an amendment which would provide for mandatory dis-
tribution of an agency’s audits and annual reports to all per-
sons contributing check-offs to the agencies. Again, it was
part of the review and control function in terms of the opera-
tions of these agencies.

As I mentioned, it was thought that this might, in fact, end
up being a fairly expensive way of achieving a reasonable
level of accountability in some cases and that it would be bet-
ter to leave those kinds of discussions to the producers setting
up the agency, remem bering that there are those powers of
inquiry with the council. As well, there are also requirements
in terms of tabling reports with Parliament. Perhaps I could
just ask Mr. Johannsen if there were other amendments that
we have missed in this process.

The Chairman: The last one you spoke of was Motion No.
9?

Mr. Claydon: Yes. There were nine motions that were
presented in the House at report stage.

The Chairman: Senator Spivak had a question.

Senator Spivak: Yes. This is a general question, Mr. Chair-
man. May I go on to general questions?

[Traduction]

M. Johannsen: Je crois que le maximum est d’environ
1,35 $ par téte. Il faudrait que je fasse le calcul pour connaitre
le pourcentage que cela représente. Mais il est plus bas que
cela dans plusieurs provinces. Il m’est difficile de prévoir quel
pourrait étre le taux de déduction une fois qu’ils auront créé
un office. Dans certains cas, celui des bovins par exemple, ce
sera un montant fixe par téte ou par unité plutdt qu'un pour-
centage.

Le sénateur Olson: Oui.

M. Claydon: Monsieur le président, il y a seulement deux
autres amendements dont je voudrais parler. Il en a déja été
question lors de la discussion. Je vais simplement les lire et on
comprendra ce que je veux dire.

Un de ces amendements prévoit que si au moins S p. 100
des producteurs ou 50 p. 100 des importateurs inscrits auprés
d’un office de promotion et de recherche en font la demande
au gouverneur en conseil, le ministre de I’agriculture exercera
un contrdle des activités de I’office en question. Je suppose
que j’ai déja donné mon avis sur cette question, en faisant
valoir que tout systéme de déduction pourrait comporter des
modalités de contrdle des offices a la demande des produc-
teurs. Rappelons que le Conseil national des produits agricoles
est habilité a jouer ce role lorsqu’on lui en fait la demande. Il
ne semblait donc pas nécessaire d’ajouter des exigences sup-
plémentaires.

Le dernier amendement revenait a peu prés a la méme
chose, en ce sens qu’il prévoyait la diffusion obligatoire des
rapports de vérification comptable et des rapports annuels des
offices a toutes les personnes qui leur versent des contribu-
tions. Cela devait étre une des modalités de contréle des opé-
rations de ces offices.

Comme je I'ai déja dit, il semblait que dans certains cas,
cela pourrait devenir un moyen assez cofiteux d’obtenir un
niveau de responsabilité raisonnable et qu’il était préférable de
laisser ce genre de discussions aux producteurs mémes, €étant
donné que le Conseil a la compétence d’exercer les contrdles
voulus et que les offices sont tenus de faire rapport au Parle-
ment. Permettez-moi seulement de demander a Mon-
sieur Johannsen si nous n’aurions pas oublié d’autres motions
d’amendement.

Le président: Le dernier était celui de la neuvieme motion?

M. Claydon: Oui. Neuf motions ont été présentées 2 la
Chambre a I’étape du rapport.

Le président: Le sénateur Spivak voulait poser une ques-
tion.

Le sénateur Spivak: Oui. C’est une question d’ordre géné-
ral, monsieur le président. Puis-je passer aux questions d’ordre
général?
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The Chairman: Yes.

Senator Spivak: I want to know two things: First, where
did the demand for this bill arise? Was there a huge
grass-roots movement asking for this to happen? Were there
riots in the streets demanding this?

Secondly, what is the level of processing of products to
which levies would be applied? Would we be promoting
McCain’s chips or McNuggets or products like that? How
does that go with the private advertising? I am just curious. It
is a question that is written down here, and I think it is a very
good question that was prepared for us.

Mr. Claydon: I will deal with the first one and perhaps Mr.
Johannsen can tackle the second one.

"On the first question, I think the impetus for the check-off
legislation to a large extent was related to similar kinds of
measures being put in place in the United States. There were a
number of commodity sectors in Canada that saw—

The Chairman: Excuse me. I want to interrupt there to
clarify. You are saying that it was the Americans that asked us
to do this? No, you did not mean that.

Mr. Claydon: No, I did not quite mean that.

The Chairman: It was the commodity groups themselves,
the producer groups.

Mr. Claydon: It was the producer groups in Canada who
asked for it, but they were looking at the American experi-
ence. We tended to get a fair amount of interest from the cattle
industry and the horticulture industry. For example, even in
the supply-management area, one of the recommendations of
the Dairy Task Force, which was strongly supported by the
Dairy Farmers of Canada, was the establishment of a
check-off system for the dairy industry.

The Chairman: Is it fair to say some of these check-offs
already existed in some of the provinces or provincial market-
ing boards?

Mr. Claydon: Certainly, there was a long history of check-
offs at the provincial level. The big advantage of the national
check-off from a number of commodity organization points of
view was the fact that imports would be included under the
check-off.

Senator Spivak: It is because of trade necessity that the
importers have to be treated the same. Why we would want to
promote imports?

The Chairman: We are not. We are putting a penalty on
imports.

[Traduction)
Le président: Oui.

Le sénateur Spivak: Il y a deux choses que je voudrais
savoir. D’abord, qui a demandé ce projet de 10i? Y a-t-il eu un
vaste mouvement de la base? Y a-t-il eu des manifestations
sur la place publique?

Deuxieémement, de quel niveau de transformation est-il
question? S’agit-il de promouvoir les croustilles de McCain’s,
les McNuggets et autres produits de ce genre? Quel est le rap-
port avec la commercialisation privée? Je pose la question par
simple curiosité. C’est une question qui figure dans ce texte, et
je crois que c’est une trés bonne question.

M. Claydon: Je vais tenter de répondre a la premiére et je
vais laisser M. Johannsen répondre a la deuxieme.

Je crois que I'idée d’une loi pour établir un systeme de
déduction est venue en grande partie de I’exemple des
Etats-Unis, qui se sont dotés de mesures de cette nature.
Divers producteurs agricoles canadiens ont vu que—-

Le président: Permettez, mais je voudrais éclaircir un
point. Etes-vous en train de dire que ce sont les Américains
qui nous ont demandé de prendre ces dispositions? Ce n’est
pas ce que vous voulez dire, n’est-ce pas?

M. Claydon: Non, ce n’est pas tout a fait cela.

Le président: Ce sont les groupements de producteurs agri-
coles eux-mémes.

M. Claydon: Ce sont les groupements de producteurs agri-
coles canadiens qui ont demander une loi a cet effet, aprés
avoir vu I’exemple américain. Les éleveurs et les horticulteurs
se sont montrés assez intéressés. Par exemple, méme en ce qui
a trait a la gestion de I'offre, une des recommandations du
Groupe de travail sur la politique laitiere qui a été fortement
appuyée par la Fédération canadienne des producteurs de lait,
concernait I’adoption d’un systeme de déduction pour
I’industrie laitiere.

Le président: Pourrait-on dire que certaines provinces ou
certains offices provinciaux de commercialisation pratiquent
déja ce genre de déduction?

M. Claydon: Certainement, et depuis longtemps. Le grand
avantage d’avoir un systéme national de déduction, de I'avis
de diverses organisations de producteurs agricoles, est le fait
que les produits importés y seraient aussi assujettis.

Le sénateur Spivak: Ce sont les exigences du commerce
qui obligent a traiter les importateurs de la méme maniere que
les producteurs locaux. Pourquoi voudrions-nous favoriser
I’importation?

Le président: Nous ne favorisons pas I’importation. Nous
la pénalisons.
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Senator Spivak: We are putting a penalty on them? There
is a levy on them?

Mr. Claydon: Mr. Chairman, I have just one clarification
on that. It is very important from our international trading per-
spective that we treat imports and domestic product equiva-
lently. In a sense, if we are doing promotion, then it has to be
generic promotion of all beef, or whatever. If we try to differ-
entiate between imported and domestic, then we do run up
against problems with our trading partners.

The Chairman: Is it true to say that, if a marketing agency
of this nature were set up, the levy placed on our domestic
producers could also be placed on those who import that simi-
lar product or commodity from other countries?

Mr. Claydon: Exactly.
Senator Spivak: But the real question—

Senator Olson: But it is not quite the way you worded the
question. You said a marketing agency. It has to be a research
and promotion agency.

Senator Spivak: What I am basically getting at, though, is
this: Does this mean we are going to promote more processed
foods as opposed to promoting “Drink Milk” and, “No, we
want to have yogurt?” What is going to happen? What is the
real impact of this? That is the question I really want
answered. Are we going to promote McCain’s potato chips,
which really are not good for you anyway?

The Chairman: Just a minute. We are getting into the
nutrition end. This has nothing to do with nutrition.

Senator Spivak: I understand that, but in the end every-
thing has an impact on the consumer. I am wondering if the
consumer—

The Chairman: You are asking, essentially if we are going
to be promoting name brands, then?

Senator Spivak: What are we going to be promoting in
terms of the level of processing according to this legislation?
That is the basic question.

Mr. Johannsen: There are two aspects to the question. The
first aspect is: What products will be subject to the check-off?
The original intent of this would be, to use the example of
cattle, to have at the domestic level basically a check-off on
cattle. That would be where the collection occurs. In terms of
imports, then, you would also have check-offs on imported
cattle. However, in order to make sure that you have a level
playing field so that importers do not simply import beef
instead of cattle in order to avoid the check-off, you would

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Spivak: Les importations sont frappées d’une
pénalité, d’un prélévement?

M. Claydon: Monsieur le président, j*aimerais apporter un
éclaircissement a ce sujet. Il est trés important pour nos rela-
tions commerciales avec I’extérieur que nous considérions les
produits importés au méme titre que les produits locaux. Dans
un certain sens, si nous faisons la promotion d’un produit, le
boeuf par exemple, il faut que ce soit la promotion du boeuf
en général. Si nous commengons a faire une différence entre
les produits d’ici et les produits importés, nous aurons des pro-
blémes avec nos partenaires commerciaux.

Le président: Est-il exact de dire que si un office de com-
mercialisation était créé aux termes du présent projet de loi,
les prélevements imposés aux producteurs canadiens pour-
raient étre imposés également aux importateurs des mémes
produits?

M. Claydon: Tout a fait.
Le sénateur Spivak: Mais la véritable question—

Le sénateur Olson: Mais ce n’est pas tout a fait comme
cela que vous avez formulé la question. Vous avez dit «un
office de commercialisation». Il faut que ce soit un office de
recherche et de promotion.

Le sénateur Spivak: Ce a quoi je veux vraiment en venir
est ceci: faut-il penser que nous ferons la promotion
d’aliments ayant subi une plus grande transformation au lieu
de faire la promotion du lait et du yogourt? Que se pas-
sera-t-il? Quel sera I’impact véritable de telles mesures? Voila
le sens de ma question. Allons-nous faire la promotion des
croustilles de McCain’s, qui en réalité ne sont pas vraiment
bonnes pour la santé?

Le président: Attention. Nous entrons dans des considéra-
tions de nutrition. Cela n’est pas notre sujet.

Le sénateur Spivak: Je comprends, mais en fin de compte,
tout a un impact sur le consommateur. Je me demande si le
consommateur —

Le président: Alors, ce que vous voulez savoir, c’est si
nous allons faire la promotion de marques de commerce?

Le sénateur Spivak: De quelle catégorie de produits, en
termes de niveau de transformation, allons-nous faire la pro-
motion? Voila la question fondamentale.

M. Johannsen: Il'y a deux volets a cette question. D’abord,
savoir quels produits seraient assujettis 2 une déduction. Pour
reprendre I’exemple du bétail, il s’agirait d’imposer sur le
marché national une déduction sur le bétail comme tel. C’est 2
ce niveau que ce ferait la perception des prélévements. Le
bétail importé serait alors aussi frappé d’une déduction. Pour
qu’il n’y ait aucune possiblité de déjouer le systéme en impor-
tant du boeuf plutdt que du bétail, il faudrait aussi imposer une
déduction sur le boeuf importé. Autrement dit, sur le marché
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then need an equivalent check-off on imported beef. In other
words, domestically, the check-off would only be on cattle. In
terms of imports, the check-off would be on cattle as well as
on beef.

Senator Spivak: So what this will really mean is that we
are going to be promoting processed food which is imported
through the moneys raised this way.

Mr. Johannsen: If I could just continue. That is in terms of
the actual collection. Essentially, in that case you would have
a check-off scheme for cattle. Now, the question then becomes
one of what you use those funds to do. If the beef or cattle
industry chooses to do promotion with those funds, you would
not promote cattle. You promote beef, basically. You promote
the processed product, which is beef. However, as Mr.
Claydon has mentioned, in order to avoid antagonizing our
trading partners, the promotion would be a generic promotion
of beef so that importers would benefit equally from that pro-
motion.

Senator Spivak: That decision, then, is made by a market-
ing promotion-research agency.

With 50 per cent and 50 per cent, where is the majority?
What is going to be the majority in terms of representation of
processors versus representation of producers? You say there
is 50 per cent, but then there is 50 plus one or what is the
situation?

Mr. Claydon: I think maybe I could clarify this.

The Chairman: You have to clarify the percentage of
importers who are allowed to be on these boards. It is not
50-50.

Mr. Claydon: I think there was some confusion there. On
the 50-50, we were talking about the National Farm Products
Council. The amendment dealt with the council and was more
in relation to the supply-management side of things, although
it does apply in this case as well. In the case of these research
and promotion agencies, it simply says that a majority of the
members of these agencies would be producers, if there were
no imports involved, or producers and importers in proportion
to their share of the product, if both were involved. There
would be a majority representing production, or production
and imports.

Senator Spivak: Your answer is not quite clear, because
then some of these agencies could have a majority of import-
ers on them, if that was the market share. Is that what you are
saying?

Mr. Claydon: Yes.

Senator Spivak: Therefore, that majority would naturally
vote to promote the imports, would it not? I do not quite
understand this.

[Traduction)

intérieur, seulement le bétail serait visé, alors que sur le mar-
ché d’importation, une déduction s’appliquerait au boeuf
comme au bétail.

Le sénateur Spivak: Cela revient a dire que nous ferons la
promotion de produits transformés importés avec |’argent
ainsi pergu.

M. Johannsen: Permettez-moi de continuer. Je parlais
donc de la perception comme telle. Dans ce cas, on aurait en
somme un systéme de déduction pour le bétail. Reste a savoir
quoi faire avec les fonds. Si le secteur de la viande bovine ou
du bétail choisit de les utiliser pour la promotion, il ne fera pas
la promotion du bétail. Mais plutét du boeuf, au fond. On fait
la promotion du produit traité, c’est-a-dire la viande bovine.
Mais, comme I’a dit M. Claydon, afin de ne pas provoquer
I’antagonisme de nos partenaires commerciaux, cette promo-
tion devra étre générique de manitre que les importateurs
puissent en profiter, également.

Le sénateur Spivak: Cette décision, alors, est prise par un
office de promotion et de recherche.

Avec 50 p. 100 et 50 p. 100, ol est la majorité? Qui formera
la majorité en termes de représentation des traiteurs et de
représentation des producteurs. Vous dites qu’il y a 50 p. 100,
mais alors s’il y a 50 plus un, ol cela nous méne-t-il?

M. Claydon: Je crois pouvoir éclaircir ce point.

Le président: Veuillez éclaircir le pourcentage
d’importateurs admis a siéger a I’un de ces offices. La propor-
tion n’est pas égale.

M. Claydon: Je crains qu’il n’y ait un peu de confusion ici.
Pour ce qui est du 50-50, nous parlions du Conseil national de
produits agricoles. L’amendement concernait ce Conseil et
touchait davantage I’aspect gestion de I’approvisionnement,
bien qu’il s’applique également a ce cas-ci. Dans le cas des
offices de promotion et de recherche, il dit simplement que
I’office devra étre formé majoritairement de membres parmi
les producteurs, s’il n’y a pas d’importation. Si des produc-
teurs et des importateurs sont représentés, la répartition des
sieges devra étre proportionnelle a leur part de la totalité du
marché. Il y aura une majorité représentant soit les produc-
teurs, soit les producteurs et les importateurs.

Le sénateur Spivak: Ceci n’est pas trés clair, parce que,
dans certains cas, il se pourrait que la majorité soit détenue par
les importateurs, selon leur part du marché. Est-ce correct?

M. Claydon: Oui.

Le sénateur Spivak: Donc, la majorité votera bien sir en
faveur des importations, n’est-ce-pas? Ceci ne m’est pas trés
clair.
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The Chairman: Excuse me. May I try to clarify this? If
you are setting up one of these promotion marketing boards
and it is going to include importers, the number of importers
involved will be proportionate to the amount of commodity
they are importing. For example, if it was a board of 16, at
least eight of those people would have to be producers. Now,
if it was 12, it would be six. However, if you had an importer,
you might have one or two importers on such a board. Am I
right in this?

Senator Spivak: As a proportion of the eight, or as a pro-
portion of the rest?

The Chairman: If you listened earlier when he was
explaining, when they went from 12 to 16, it was not only to
allow perhaps two importers to be placed on the board, but
also to make room for two others who are non-importers. Am
I correct in that?

Mr. Claydon: In terms of the 16, the requirement would be
that at least more than eight would have to be producers, if
there were no imports in the scheme, or producers and import-
ers in proportion to their share of production.

Senator Spivak: That is what I thought you said. It could
very well be that on these agencies there is not a majority of
producers at all. There might be a minority of producers.
Exactly.

Senator Hays: Lamb, for instance. Lamb would be a good
example.

Senator Spivak: Yes. What is the good of this check-off if
in the end it winds up promoting imports?

Mr. Johannsen: To use the senator’s example, if there
were an agency for lamb, it would be promoting lamb. The
hope of domestic producers would be that they would benefit
from the promotion of lamb. If domestic producers are a
minority in the domestic market-place, they may look at that
situation and simply say, “We are not interested in forming an
agency.” There would not be an agency.

Senator Spivak: In the first instance, it is the producers
who decide whether an agency should be formed, not any
importers.

Mr. Johannsen: That is correct.

Senator Spivak: So they have to recognize that, I suppose.

Senator Sparrow: What are the provisions for winding up
an agency, then?

Mr. Johannsen: There is a wind-up provision in the act at
present, and that wind-up provision will apply to both types of
agencies. It simply sets up general conditions under which the

[Traduction)

Le président: Excusez-moi. Peut-étre pourrais-je éclaircir
ce point. Si on créait I'un de ces offices de promotion ou
seraient représentés des importateurs, alors le nombre de
ceux-ci serait proportionnel a la part de marché qu’ils impor-
tent. Par exemple, dans un office de 16, au moins huit
devraient étre des producteurs. Dans le cas de 12, il y en
aurait 6. Mais, s’il y avait aussi des importateurs, un ou deux
siéges iraient alors aux importateurs. Est-ce correct?

Le sénateur Spivak: Proportionnellement aux 8 ou au
reste?

Le président: Si vous aviez écouté plus t6t pendant
I’explication, quand le nombre a passé de 12 a 16, ce n’était
pas seulement pour permettre a deux importateurs de siéger,
mais c’était aussi pour faire de la place a deux autres qui ne
seraient pas des importateurs. Ai-je raison?

M. Claydon: Dans le cas de 16, il faut que le nombre de
producteurs soit plus que huit, lorsqu’il n’y pas
d’importateurs, ou que le nombre de producteurs et
d’importateurs soit proportionnel a leur part respective du
marché.

Le sénateur Spivak: C’est bien ce que j’avais compris. Il
se pourrait bien que, au sein de certains offices, il n’y ait pas
de majorité de producteurs, du tout. Que ces derniers soient
minoritaires.

Le sénateur Hays: L’agneau, par exemple. L’agneau serait
un bon exemple.

Le sénateur Spivak: Oui. A quoi le syst¢tme de déduction
servirait-il si, en fin de compte, ce sont les importateurs qui en
profitent?

M. Johannsen: Reprenant I’exemple du sénateur, s’il exis-
tait un office de promotion de I’agneau, il ferait la promotion
de I’agneau. Les producteurs locaux pourront espérer profiter
de la promotion de I’agneau. Au cas ol les producteurs locaux
seraient en minorité sur le marché local, ils n’auraient simple-
ment qu’a dire «Nous ne sommes pas intéressés a créer un
office.» Et il n’y aurait pas d’office.

Le sénateur Spivak: D’abord, ce sont les producteurs qui
décident si un office sera créé ou non, et pas les importateurs.

M. Johannsen: C’est juste.

Le sénateur Spivak: Alors il faudra qu’ils s’en fassent une
raison, je crois.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Quelles sont les conditions pour
créer un office, alors?

M. Johannsen: Il y a une disposition de la loi applicable
aux deux types d’office. Elle stipule les conditions générales
par lesquelles le gouverneur en conseil peut créer un office
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Governor in Council can wind up an agency with 90 days’
notice. There is nothing specific about the conditions in which
an agency would be wound up.

Senator Sparrow: What about the producers?

Mr. Johannsen: We are suggesting to producer groups
that, if they want to review the operations of an agency, they
should build in a review after three or four years as part of the
promotion research plan. If they want, they can build in condi-
tions which say, “After a plebiscite, you agree to wind up the
agency.” Producers could establish in advance the kind of cri-
teria they would use in evaluating their own agency over time.

Senator Spivak: I have one final question. In terms of the
actual promotion, what regulatory agency is this subject to in
terms of the normal content as far as honesty and fair market-
ing practices? What agency will regulate this and monitor it?
Where is it situated?

Mr. Claydon: There would be the council. As well, in
terms of fairness and so on, I expect—

Senator Spivak: Honesty. Consumer protection is what I
am thinking of.

Mr. Claydon: I expect they would be subject to other kinds
of consumer protection measures as well. I do not think they
would be exempt from this.

Mr. Mclsaac: Mr. Chairman, on that, I think it is worth
remembering the purpose of these agencies is to promote and
do research for marketing.

Senator Spivak: Do research for marketing?

Mr. Mclsaac: Yes, but the objective of the agency is to
assist, if you like, in marketing and bettering that industry.
There is a pretty strong onus on the producers, or whoever
may be on that board, to ensure that they are complying and
working closely with either the Consumer Association of
Canada or any other group. That is the whole objective of
establishing an agency. I think one would have to assume that
they are going to be working pretty carefully with other
groups to enhance their sector of the industry.

Senator Spivak: But there is nothing in the legislation spe-
cifically; right? There is nothing in the legislation about that
aspect of it?

Mr. Johannsen: That is correct.
Mr. Claydon: Excuse me, Senator. There is one thing
explicit, in that the council does have supervisory powers over

these agencies. That is explicit in the legislation. The other is
that there is nothing in the legislation that would exempt such

[Traduction)

avec un préavis de 90 jours. Aucune condition particuliére n’a
été édictée au sujet de la création d’un office.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Mais alors les producteurs?

M. Johannsen: Notre suggestion aux groupes de produc-
teurs est que, s’ils veulent examiner le fonctionnement d’un
office, ils devraient prévoir un examen a tous les trois ou
quatre ans, au titre du plan de promotion et de recherche. S’ils
le désirent, ils peuvent poser des conditions par lesquelles, une
fois le référendum tenu, il sera créé un office. Les producteurs
peuvent établir a I’avance les criteres qu’ils souhaitent utiliser
pour examiner le fonctionnement de leur office au bout d’un
certain temps.

Le sénateur Spivak: Une derniére question. En matiére de
promotion, de quel bureau de réglementation I’office devra-t-il
relever pour rendre compte de son honnéteté et de sa loyauté?
Qui s’en occupera et en assurera le suivi? Ou se trouve-t-il?

M. Claydon: Il y aurait le Conseil. En ce qui concerne les
question d’équité et ainsi de suite, je m’attends aussi. . .

Le sénateur Spivak: Parlant d’honnéteté. C’est a la protec-
tion du consommateur que je pense.

M. Claydon: Je m’attends a ce qu’ils soient soumis égale-
ment a d’autres types de mesures de protection du con-
sommmateur. Je ne pense pas qu’ils puissent en étre exemptés.

M. Mclsaac: Monsieur le président, a ce propos, je pense
qu’il convient de se rappeler que ces offices ont pour objet de
mettre en oeuvre des plans de promotion et de recherche dans
un but de commercialisation.

Le sénateur Spivak: Faire de la recherche a des fins de
commercialisation?

M. Mclsaac: Oui, I'office a pour objectif, si ’on veut,
d’aider I’industrie a s’améliorer et 2 mieux commercialiser ses
produits. Les producteurs et quiconque d’autre fait partie du
conseil d’un office auraient une obligation morale passable-
ment forte de respecter les principes d’honnéteté, etc. et de
travailler en étroite collaboration avec I’Association cana-
dienne des consommateurs ou tout autre groupe analogue. Je
crois que 1’on supposer que ces gens vont s’efforcer de colla-
borer avec d’autres groupements pour favoriser I’essor de leur
secteur de I’industrie.

Le sénateur Spivak: Mais il n’y a aucune disposition pré-
cise 2 ce sujet dans la loi, n’est-ce pas? Il n’y a rien dans la loi
a ce propos?

M. Johanssen: C’est juste.

M. Claydon: Pardonnez-moi, monsieur le sénateur. Mais la
loi prévoit explicitement que le Conseil détient un pouvoir de
supervision de ces offices. Cela est dit en toutes lettres dans la
loi. Une autre chose est claire, ¢’est que rien dans la loi n’a
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an organization from the rules of the land in terms of normal
practices.

Senator Spivak: Yes, I understand that, but it is the vigi-
lante. It is the enforcement which, of course, is the whole
thing. I was just wondering where that fits into the scheme.
You are saying that it would be monitored like any other piece
of advertising or promotion.

The Chairman: Senator Berntson.

Senator Berntson: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have a
curiosity relative to the proposed clause 39(4), which deals
with the adding of one or more farm products under the juris-
diction of the Canadian Wheat Board by Order in Council. My
curiosity is this: If this were a desirable addition to this bill,
why was it not included in the original draft? If it only became
desirable at committee stage, was that communicated by the
Wheat Board? Was there some initial resistance by the Wheat
Board and they then changed their mind? I think it is a defi-
ciency in the bill not to have these particular commodities
included, and I am wondering why they were not included
from the beginning.

Mr. Claydon: Well, in answering that, senator, I will get
Mr. Johannsen to help me. He had some discussions with
them. When the bill was originally drafted, there was a sense
that certain provisions under the Wheat Board Act could
essentially be used in a similar vein. There was not the con-
cern about bringing them in under these amendments.

On closer examination, after the bill had been tabled, there
was some concern that maybe the best way to go was to
include them under this measure. That is why 39(4) was
brought in as an amendment rather than as part of the original
draft of the bill.

Senator Berntson: Was that conclusion arrived at within
the Department of Agriculture, or was it arrived at by the
Wheat Board and communicated to Agriculture? I am refer-
ring to the conclusion that, perhaps, it would be best to
include 39(4) in this legislation.

Mr. Claydon: There were discussions with the Wheat
Board in terms of what would be the most appropriate way to
go. It was not something that was imposed or anything like
that.

Mr. Johannsen: I think it is fair to say that it was not a
decision made by one party; it was not a decision which,
essentially, was forced on another, either from the Wheat
Board on us, or vice versa. It was more in the process of con-
sulting about Bill C-54 that the issue arose. It became apparent

[Traduction)

pour effet de soustraire ces organisations aux régles et pra-
tiques généralement admises.

Le sénateur Spivak: Oui, je comprends cela, mais tout
tourne autour des modalités d’application, de la création de
comités de surveillance. Je me demandais comment tout cela
s’articulera. Si je vous comprends bien, I’action de ces offices
ferait I’objet d’une surveillance au méme titre que toute autre
publicité ou promotion.

Le président: Le sénateur Berntson.

Le sénateur Bernston: Merci, monsieur le président. Le
nouveau paragraphe 39 (4) proposé, qui traite de I’ajout, par
décret en conseil, de certains produits de ferme a la liste des
produits régis la Commission canadienne du blé, a piqué ma
curiosité. Voici ce que j'aimerais savoir. S’il s’agit d’un ajout
utile au texte du projet de loi, comment se fait-il que cette dis-
position n’ait pas figuré dans la toute premiére version de
celui-ci? S’il I’on s’est apergu de la chose seulement a I’étape
de I’étude en comité, serait-ce attribuable a la Commission?
Se pourrait-il que cette Commission ait fait preuve d’une cer-
taine réticence au départ et qu’elle a changé d’idée depuis? Je
crois qu’il est mauvais que le projet de loi ne mentionne pas
expressément ces produits en particulier, et je me demande
pourquoi ils n’ont pas été inclus au départ.

M. Claydon: Bon, pour répondre a cette question, mon-
sieur le sénateur, je demanderai I’aide de M. Johannsen. Il a eu
certains entretiens avec la Commission. Au moment de la pre-
miere rédaction du projet de loi, on était d’avis que certaines
dispositions de la Loi sur la Commission canadienne du blé
pourraient servir a réaliser essentiellement la méme chose. La
question de savoir s’il serait opportun d’en traiter par la voie
des amendements n’avait pas été envisagée.

Si on regarde de plus pres, apres le dépdt du projet de loi,
on s’est rendu compte qu’il serait peut-&tre souhaitable
d’inclure ces produits. C’est pour cette raison que le para-
graphe 39 (4) a été proposé comme amendement et qu’il
n’était pas dans I’avant-projet de la loi.

Le sénateur Berntson: A quelle conclusion en est-on venu
au ministére de I’ Agriculture? Ou est-ce la Commission cana-
dienne du blé qui a tiré une conclusion et qui I’a communi-
quée au ministére? J'entends la conclusion selon laquelle il
valait mieux inclure le par. 39 (4) dans la présente législation?

M. Claydon: Des discussions ont eu lieu avec la Commis-
sion canadienne du blé sur la meilleure fagon de procéder.
Rien n’a été imposé a qui que ce soil.

M. Johannsen: La décision n’a pas été prise par I'une ou
I’autre partie, unilatéralement. Personne ne s’est fait forcer la
main. Ni la Commission, ni nous. C’est dans le cadre des con-
sultations sur le projet de loi C-54 que la question a été soule-
vée. On s’est alors rendu compte que les circonstances avaient
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that the circumstances had changed since this bill was first a
gleam in our eye, if you will. As a result the Wheat Board was
more amenable to the idea of potentially having their products
included under this legislation. Given that they were amena-
ble, it seemed like a reasonable idea to try to make that
amendment at committee stage.

Senator Berntson: Had it not been for this procedural
glitch, the Wheat Board would have been very happy to have
been part of this? I suppose it follows that if we could find a
way round the procedural glitch, it would still be very happy
to be part of this; is that right?

Mr. Claydon: Yes, that is my understanding.

The Chairman: Correct me if my interpretation is wrong.
This is purely enabling legislation, is it not? Only those pro-
ducer groups or marketing groups, or whatever you want to
call them, who wish to take advantage of it, or who feel that
there is an advantage in it, would avail themselves of this ena-
bling legislation; is that correct?

Mr. Johannsen: Yes, sir.

The Chairman: A producer group that decides there is an
advantage in having this promotion and research thing set up
for them would of their own accord consider it and say that
they would like to get in on it to do some—and I am about to
use the words “product promotion”—is that a bad term?

Senator Berntson: I love it.

The Chairman: Perhaps I should use producer or market-
ing promotion. Can they do primary research with this?

Mr. Johannsen: Yes.

The Chairman: By that I mean species research.

Mr. Johannsen: Yes, production research.
Senator Olson: What about production research?

Mr. Johannsen: Promotion research agencies will be able
to do any kind of research, including primary production
research.

The Chairman: For example, the Wheat Board could give
$5 million to the University of Saskatchewan to investigate a
new form of barley, could it not?

Mr. Johannsen: But that is outside the scope of this bill.
The Wheat Board has nothing to do with this legislation.

The Chairman: If it had one of these agencies, it could.

Let me give a different example. Let us consider lettuce,
beans or sugar beets. If the producers of these products went
into one of these marketing promotion deals, they could, from

[Traduction]

changé depuis le moment ol I’on a eu idée de ce projet de loi.
Aussi, la Commission était-elle plus favorable a la possibilité
d’inclure ses produits dans la présente législation. Cela dit, il
semblait raisonnable d’essayer de proposer un amendement a
I’étape de I’étude en comité.

Le sénateur Berntson: N’eit été ce pépin de procédure, la
Commission aurait été tout a fait favorable a I’ajout de ces
produits? Il s’ensuit, je suppose, que si nous réussissons a
régler le probleme, la Commission sera toujours favorable a
I’ajout de ses produits; est-ce juste?

M. Claydon: Oui, je le crois.

Le président: Je pense, et corrigez-moi si je fais erreur,
qu’il s’agit ici d’une loi d’autorisation, n’est-ce pas? Seuls les
groupes de producteurs ou de commercialisation, appelez-les
comme vous voulez, qui y voient un avantage vont s’en préva-
loir. C’est bien cela?

M. Johannsen: Oui, Monsieur.

Le président: Des producteurs qui pensent que ce serait
avantageux d’avoir un office de promotion et de recherche
n’auraient qu’a se regrouper et a indiquer qu’ils en veulent un
pour faire de la—j’ai envie d’utiliser I’expression promotion
produits— est-ce la mauvaise expression?

Le sénateur Berntson: Pas du tout!

Le président: Peut-étre devrais-je parler de promotion de
production. Pourraient-ils faire de la recherche sur des pro-
duits primaires?

M. Johannsen: Oui.

Le président: Par 12 j’entends des recherches sur des
especes.

M. Johannsen: Oui, de la recherche sur la production.
Le sénateur Olson: De la recherche sur la production?

M. Johannsen: Les organismes de promotion d’activités de
recherche vont pouvoir faire n’importe quelle sorte de recher-
che, y compris des travaux sur la production primaire.

Le président: Par exemple, la Commission canadienne du
blé peut allouer cing millions a I'université de la Saskatche-
wan pour que cette derniere fasse des recherches sur une nou-
velle espéce d’orge. C'est bien cela?

M. Johannsen: Mais cela déborde le champ de ce projet de
loi. La Commission n’a rien a voir avec cette législation.

Le président: Mais si la Commission avait un office, elle
pourrait le faire.

Permettez-moi de donner un autre exemple: la laitue, des
haricots ou des betteraves a sucre. Si les producteurs de ces
denrées voulaient profiter de cette promotion commerciale, ils
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their funds, supply money to a research organization, private,
university or academic, to do certain research for them. They
could do that, could they not?

Mr. Johannsen: That is correct.

The Chairman: That is more than marketing research, is it
not?

Mr. Johannsen: Correct.

The Chairman: That is what I call product research; cor-
rect?

Mr. Claydon: Yes.

The Chairman: So it could be an enhancing aspect, if they
wished to do it. If the sugar beet fellows said, “We don’t want
anything to do with this,” they would not have to have such an
agency; correct?

Mr. Johannsen: Yes.

The Chairman: Only if they feel there is merit in it for
their products or commodities do they have to do anything
about it.

Mr. Claydon: Yes.

The Chairman: That is where I was a little off. I wanted to
get that clear.

Does the Wheat Board handle barley and wheat?

Mr. Claydon: Yes.

The Chairman: If they wanted to get this kind of agency,
they could have it, if it were in the Act?

Mr. Claydon: Exactly.

The Chairman: But they cannot do it under the Wheat
Board Act.

Mr. Johannsen: I have just a point of clarification to make,
senator. Suppose the amendment were to be included in the
bill and passed into law and the Order in Council were given
at some point, then at that point wheat and barley in the desig-
nated area would be eligible commodities, just like any other
commodity. But it would be up to producers of those com-
modities to come forward with a proposal to create an agency.
The Wheat Board would be out of it entirely. It has nothing to
do with it.

The Chairman: I understand. You have clarified that for
my benefit.

Senator Hays: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask questions
involving two areas. One follows up on Senator Spivak's
questions. The other is in the area of the issue of off-loading
research responsibility onto producers, or this legislation
being an invitation to do that.

[Traduction)

pourraient prélever de I’argent sur leur fonds et le verser 2 un
organisme de recherche—que ce soit un organisme privé, une
université ou un autre type d’organisme—pour que ce dernier
entreprenne un travail de recherche. Est-ce possible?

M. Johannsen: Oui.

Le président: C’est plus que de la recherche commerciale,
n’est-ce pas?

M. Johannsen: Oui, c’est juste.

Le président: C’est ce que j'appelle de la recherche pro-
duits. Est-ce que j’ai raison?

M. Claydon: Oui.

Le président: Donc, cela pourrait étre un attrait, si cela les
intéresse. Si les producteurs de betteraves disent «Ca ne nous
intéresse absolument pas», personne ne les obligerait a avoir
un office. C’est bien cela?

M. Johannsen: Oui.

Le président: C’est uniquement s’ils estiment que leurs
produits vont bénéficier de la création d’un office qu’ils peu-
vent demander a en avoir un.

M. Claydon: Exactement.

Le président: Je n’étais pas sir d’avoir bien compris. Je
voulais tirer ¢a au clair.

Est-ce le mandat de la Commission comprend I’orge et le
blé?

M. Claydon: Oui.

Le président: Si elle voulait un office, elle pourrait en avoir
un dans la mesure ou cela serait dans la Loi?

M. Claydon: Précisément.

Le président: Mais c’est impossible en vertu de la Loi sur
la Commission canadienne du blé.

M. Johannsen: Si vous me permettez, je voudrais apporter
une précision, Sénateur. Si I'amendement devait étre inclus
dans le projet de loi, le projet adopté et le décret émis a un
moment quelconque, I'orge et le blé dans les régions dési-
gnées seraient alors des produits admissibles, au méme titre
que tout autre produit. Mais il appartiendrait aux producteurs
de ces denrées de déposer une proposition en vue de la créa-
tion d’un office. La Commission canadienne du blé n’y serait
pour rien. Pour rien du tout.

Le président: Je comprends. Vous avez éclairé ma lanterne.

Le sénateur Hays: Monsieur le président, j'ai deux ques-
tions A poser. La premidre touche aux questions du sénateur
Spivak. La seconde porte sur le transfert de la responsabilité
de la recherche aux producteurs ou, si I’on veut, le fait que la
loi est une invitation 2 effectuer ce transfert.
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We have generic advertising in my own province, where
there are big signs that read, “Eat. . .”, and if you look closely
you will see near the bottom of the sign that it says
“...Alberta made”. So we have provinces engaged generally
in promoting products produced in those provinces.

At one time, and I am not sure whether we have it still or
not, there was the promotion of fish through the Department
of Fisheries and Oceans. The signs read, “Eat Fish”. We have
generic advertising by producer groups now. The most obvi-
ous one that comes to mind is the Canadian Egg Marketing
“Get Cracking” ad.

It always occurred to me that every time you had eggs, fish
or beef you did not have something else in that particular
meal. So here, in the case of advertising a commodity, you
have a direct attempt to influence people’s eating of this prod-
uct or that.

In that context, will it be a fairly level playing-field here? I
think an egg ad or a beef ad paid for by the producer of the
commodity makes sense. But if it is paid for by the Govern-
ment of Alberta or the Government of Canada, then there are
tax dollars being used. In Alberta it is carefully structured so
that it is “Alberta-made” this or that.

Is it not true that the Government of Canada would not fund
generic commodity consumption, where our tax dollars would
be used to compete with producer dollars coming from a
check-off to encourage the consumption of their commodity,
whatever it is?

Mr. Claydon: Let me make sure I understand your ques-
tion first, senator.

Senator Hays: I am sorry. I have given you a speech.

Will the Government of Canada in association with this
type of initiative to allow producer groups to have a
check-off—and I support it—ensure that they are not encour-
aging in their marketing the consumption of their commodity
in competition with a government-funded program to
encourage consumption of another commodity? I use fish as
opposed to eggs as an example.

Mr. Claydon: In terms of agricultural products in general,
I cannot think of a program that Agriculture Canada runs that
is really into the promotion side. Some of the supply-manage-
ment agencies certainly are in terms of eggs, chicken and
beef.

Senator Hays: I cannot think of one either. I think of the
fish example. It seems to me that we should all be going in the
same direction. If we are going to make one commodity group

[Traduction)

Dans ma province, nous avons la publicité générique. Nous
avons de grands panneaux publicitaires qui disent: «Mangez
tel ou tel produit. Si nous y regardons de pres, nous voyons la
mention «. .. Produit d’Alberta». Nous avons donc des pro-
vinces qui font la promotion des denrées produites sur leur ter-
ritoire.

Il y a un certain temps, le ministeére des Péches et Océans
faisait de la promotion pour encourager la consommation de
poisson. Je ne sais pas si la publicité existe encore. L’affiche
disait: «Mangez du poisson». Maintenant, nous avons de la
publicité générique par des groupes de producteurs. La publi-
cité qui vient tout de suite a I’esprit est celle de I’Office cana-
dien de commercialisation des oeufs: «Je repars en oeuf».

Je me suis toujours dit que chaque fois qu’un consomma-
teur mange des oeufs, du boeuf ou du poisson a un repas, il ne
mange pas autre chose. Ce genre de publicité a donc pour but
d’amener les gens a consommer un produit plutdt qu’un autre.

Dans ce contexte, les régles du jeu seront-elles relativement
équitables? Je pense que si les producteurs de boeuf ou
d’oeufs paient pour leur publicité, cela a du sens. Mais si c’est
I’Alberta ou I’administration fédérale qui prend la note, c’est
en fait le contribuable qui paie. En Alberta, on a fait bien
attention d’inclure la mention «Produit d’ Alberta».

Est-il vrai que I’administration fédérale refuserait d’utiliser
des deniers publics pour faire de la publicité générique afin
d’encourager la consommation d’un produit quelconque si
cette publicité faisait concurrence 2 une autre publicité payée
par les producteurs, 2 méme leurs prélévements.

M. Claydon: Je ne suis pas sr d’avoir compris votre ques-
tion.

Le sénateur Hays: Excusez-moi, j’ai fait un discours.

Est-ce que dans le cadre d’un mesure semblable—que
j’appuie — I’administration fédérale va permettre aux produc-
teurs de faire des prélevements pour la publicité tout en pre-
nant soin de ne pas elle-méme faire de la publicité pour un
autre produit? Je reviens a I’exemple du poisson et des oeufs.

M. Claydon: Si nous parlons des produits agricoles en
général, je ne puis nommer un seul programme d’Agriculture
Canada dont I’objet est de faire la promotion d’un produit.
Certains organismes de gestion des approvisionnements font
de la promotion, que ce soit pour des oeufs, du poulet ou du
boeuf.

Le sénateur Hays: Moi non plus. Je reviens au cas du pois-
son. Je crois que nous devons tous oeuvrer dans le méme sens.
Si nous demandons a des groupes de producteurs d’assumer
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pay for its own promotion, then it seems unfair to have gov-
ernment funding in the promotion of other commodity groups.

I am wondering if you can say that Canada does not intend
to have that kind of counterproductive money spent on adver-
tising, a portion of which is funded by public money. Maybe
the answer is that you just have not thought of that or it is not
a concern. If it is not, it should be.

Mr. Claydon: I cannot give you that assurance. It is an
interesting idea. That is certainly something we could follow
up with Fisheries and Oceans. If the idea of a check-off gains
acceptance and we have good experience with it in terms of
Agriculture, then I think it would be something we could try
to promote with the fisheries department.

We have a great deal of exchange in terms of types of pro-
gramming, development and so on.

Senator Hays: It occurs to me that it is an important
Canada initiative not to use public money to compete with a
private sector group through a check-off, or whatever, in com-
modity promotion.

In the second part of my question I wish to use lamb as an
example. We consume in Canada something less than two
pounds of sheep meat per capita. Alberta went into a very
expensive exercise of promoting lamb. It funded a processing
plant at Innisfail which has since been disposed of. That pro-
motion got Alberta’s consumption up to seven pounds per
capita.

The fact of the matter is nobody is making any money pro-
ducing lamb, nor have they been making any money produc-
ing lamb for a few years. In my opinion, the reason they have
not is that we are now importing a lot of lamb from New Zea-
land, where it is produced at a big comparative advantage.
Now that the fresh product finds its way into our market
through air transport it is an interesting retrospective to see us
spend a huge amount of money to promote consumption of a
product and then see the value added all the way through go to
another country.

I do not know what the total consumption of Canadian pro-
duced lamb is compared to the amount we import. We must
import as much as, if not more, than we produce.

You could have an example here of a check-off in a com-
modity sector namely, lamb, where the majority of the product
is imported. Presumably, there will be a check-off going to
fund a huge campaign. This is a bit like parading the horrors,

[Traduction)

les frais de leurs activités de promotion, il semble alors injuste
de permettre a I’administration de financer la promotion d’un
autre groupe de produits.

Pouvez-vous affirmer que le gouvernement du Canada ne
va pas, ce serait d’aileurs contre-productif de sa part, investir
de I’argent, dont une partie provient des deniers publics, dans
des campagnes publicitaires. Vous n’avez peut-étre pas réflé-
chi a cette question. Peut-étre ne vous préoccupe-t-elle pas. Si
vous n’étes pas inquiet, vous devriez I'étre.

M. Claydon: Je ne suis pas en mesure de vous donner une
telle garantie. C’est une idée intéressante. C’est certainement
une question que nous pourrions soumettre 2 Péches et
Océans. Cette idée d’acceptation des gains des prélévements.
Cela fonctionne trés bien au ministére de I’ Agriculture et je
pense que c’est quelque chose que nous pourrions essayer de
promouvoir au ministéres des Péches.

Nous échangeons beaucoup sur différents types de pro-
grammes, sur des questions de développement, etc.

Le sénateur Hays: Il me semble que c’est une initiative
canadienne importante que de ne pas utiliser les deniers
publics pour concurrencer un groupe du secteur privé au
moyen d’un prélévement ou d’une autre méthode pour la pro-
motion des produits.

Dans la deuxiéme partie de ma question, j’aimerais parler
de I’agneau a titre d’exemple. Nous consommons, au Canada,
un peu moins de deux livres de viande d’agneau par personne.
L’Alberta a consacré des sommes importantes a la promotion
de I’agneau. Elle a financé la création d’une usine de transfor-
mation a Innisfail dont elle s’est départie depuis. Cette promo-
tion a permis de faire passer la consommation de I’Alberta 2
sept livres par personne.

Il reste que personne ne s’enrichit a produire de I’agneau, et
que cette situation dure depuis quelques années. A mon avis,
personne ne fait d’argent parce que nous importons mainte-
nant de grandes quantités de viande d’agneau de la Nou-
velle-Zélande ou les producteurs jouissent d’un avantage com-
paratif considérable. Maintenant que le produit frais est
disponible sur notre marché grice au transport aérien, il est
intéressant de constater en rétrospective que nous avons con-
sacré des sommes énormes A promouvoir la consommation
d’un produit pour ensuite en voir la valeur ajoutée aller a un
autre pays.

Jignore quelle est la consommation totale d’agneau produit
au Canada par rapport 2 la quantité que nous importons. Nous
devons en importer autant, sinon plus, que ce que nous produi-
sons.

Vous pourriez avoir un exemple ici d’un prélévement dans
une catégorie de produit, notamment I'agneau, ol le produit
est surtout importé. Il est probable qu’il y aura un prélévement
servant au financement d’une énorme campagne. La situation
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but it is a question which should be asked, because we must
think about whether or not it is a good idea. This is a case
where there could be a check-off on the imported as well as on
the domestic because it is promoting the consumption, in com-
petition with beef, pork or whatever, of a product that is
grown totally outside Canada. Is this something that concerns
you? It is not that we will all shift from beef to mutton, but I
personally like it. Notwithstanding that, they produce an
excellent product in New Zealand which is palatable and com-
petitive with what is produced here. Is that something which
has been thought through, or is it of concern to anyone?

Mr. Claydon: Mr. Chairman, in some ways this is part of
the idea of enabling legislation. It is voluntary. You are not
being told that you have to do it. Whether producers would
want to set up an agency in such a case remains to be seen. I
am not sure whether there has been interest expressed by the
lamb producers or not.

Mr. Johannsen: I have not talked to them about it.

Senator Hays: You are saying it would have to be a Cana-
dian initiative to get it under way and the fact that we import a
majority of this commodity would have a dampening effect on
the producers of that commodity to take the initiative. I do not
think that is the case. Even though we produce less than we
consume, the fact that we produce some of it will cause those
producers to be aggressive in marketing. I can see it happen-
ing, anyway.

I do not like the idea of it, because I am a beef producer.
The more lamb, fish or chicken people eat, the less beef they
eat. We see that in disappearance figures all along.

On these two questions, Mr. Chairman, it seems that from a
trading perspective we in Canada, as our friends in other
countries do, have to be thinking about Canada. I pick up the
spirit of my own provincial government, “Eat Alberta
Made. ..” or “Drink Alberta Made. . .”. It is not simply a par-
tisan thing that I am bringing forward. When we do something
like this it seems to me that we should have a game plan.

I do not know if Mr. Claydon has further comments on it. I
will drop it at this point. I have made my point.

I want to ask a question on one other area.

The Chairman: May I comment on that comment?

Senator Hays: After the witness, surely.

[Traduction]

peut sembler un peu difficile, mais c’est une question qui doit
étre posée parce qu’il faut déterminer si I’idée est bonne ou
non. Nous avons ici un cas ou il pourrait y avoir un préleve-
ment tant sur le produit importé que sur le produit canadien
parce que cela favorise la consommation de ce produit en con-
currence avec le boeuf, le porc ou tout autre produit provenant
entierement de I'étranger. Est-ce que cette question vous pré-
occupe? Ce n’est pas que nous allons tous passer du boeuf 2
I’agneau, mais personnellement, c’est quelque chose que
j'aime bien. Indépendamment de ce fait, la Nouvelle-Zélande
offre un excellent produit qui a un gott agréable et qui est
compétitif par rapport a ce qui est produit ici. A-t-on réfléchi a
ce point, revét-il un intérét pour quelqu’un?

M. Claydon: Monsieur le président, a certains égards, cette
question s’intégre a I’idée d’une loi d’autorisation. C’est
volontaire. On ne vous dit pas que vous devez le faire. Il reste
a voir si les producteurs seraient intéressés a créer une agence
dans un tel cas. Je ne sais pas si les producteurs d’agneau ont
manifesté de I’intérét pour ce sujet ou non.

M. Johannsen: Je ne leur en ai pas parlé.

Le sénateur Hays: Vous dites que cela prendrait une initia-
tive canadienne et que le fait que nous importons la majorité
de la viande d’agneau n’inciterait pas les producteurs cana-
diens a prendre I’initiative. Je ne crois pas que cela soit le cas.
Méme si notre production est inférieure 2 notre consomma-
tion, le fait que nous produisions quand méme une partie du
produit encouragera ces producteurs a faire une commerciali-
sation dynamique. Selon moi, c’est ce qui va se produire de
toute facon.

Je ne suis pas favorable a I’idée car je suis un producteur de
boeuf. Plus les gens mangent de I’agneau, du poisson ou du
poulet, moins ils consomment de boeuf. Les chiffres 2 la
baisse nous le confirment partout.

Sur ces deux questions, monsieur le président, il me semble
que sur le plan des échanges commerciaux, nous, au Canada,
tout comme nos amis d’autres pays, devons garder les intéréts
canadiens en téte. Je souscris a la position de ma propre admi-
nistration provinciale qui encourage les gens a consommer les
produits de I’Alberta. Il ne s’agit pas simplement d’une
mesure partisane que je préconise. Lorsque nous adoptons une
mesure de ce genre, il me semble que nous devrions avoir un
plan d’action.

Je ne sais pas si monsieur Claydon a quelque chose a rajou-
ter. Je ne parlerai plus de la question a ce stade. J’ai dit tout
ce que j'avais a dire.

J’aimerais poser une question sur un autre sujet.

Le président: Puis-je commenter sur ce que vous venez de
dire?

Le sénateur Hays: Aprés le témoin, sirement.
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The Chairman: You have not asked a question that I have
observed. You made a very nice statement.

Senator Hays: I did ask a question. The question is this.
Do we in Canada have a strategy which serves the Canadian
interest on a priority basis in terms of the potential for Cana-
dian production being hurt on both these counts?

Mr. Claydon: I have one brief comment, as does Mr.
Johannsen. Part of the idea behind the research promotion
agencies is that you are going to get the producers focusing on
these kinds of issues. In terms of setting up such an agency,
that would have to be something they would look at. There
would be marketing plans and so on associated with these
agencies. It could in fact be quite a benefit to getting the
industry to think about its plans and working together to have
a promotion and research strategy to go with it. In some cases
that may already be under way. In other cases there are some
fairly fragmented sectors where they have not thought in those
terms. This could be a way to help them think about it.

It might be that, if they felt New Zealanders would take
over the entire lamb market, then perhaps that would not be a
good strategy in that area. There might be other things they
could do. Maybe they would go just for provincial check-offs
on domestic production and use that to work on a domestic
basis, or some other approach. It seems to me that just work-
ing your way through the establishment of these agencies
would be a useful exercise for a number of commodities to go
through.

Mr. Johannsen: I think that the lamb producers will have
to answer that question. Under this legislation they could
choose to establish a purely domestic check-off, in which case
they could in fact have a promotion campaign for Canadian
lamb. They are not running the risk, then, of using imported
dollars to prejudice importers’ interests. But, of course, there
is a smaller kitty in that case. The available funds, if they have
a purely domestic check-off, are smaller.

That has to be weighed against having a check-off on the
imports. As soon as they do that, then the importers have to
benefit from the use of those funds. The question then is this:
If you are a domestic producer, is it better to have a generic
lamb campaign or a Canadian lamb campaign? I am not sure
of the answer, but, presumably, that is the type of question the
lamb industry will ask itself.

[Traduction)

Le président: Vous n’avez pas posé de question d’apres ce
que j’ai pu observer. Vous avez fait un trés bon exposé.

Le sénateur Hays: J’ai bien posé une question. La voici.
Avons-nous, au Canada, une stratégie qui dessert avant tout
les intéréts canadiens pour ce qui est de la possibilité que la
production canadienne soit défavorisée a ces deux points de
vue?

M. Claydon: J’aimerais faire un bref commentaire, comme
monsieur Johannsen. Une partie de I’idée a la base des orga-
nismes de promotion et de recherche est que vous allez appe-
ler I'attention des producteurs sur ces genres de questions.
Pour ce qui est de créer un tel organisme, c’est une possibilité
qu’ils devraient étudier. Il y aurait des plans de commerciali-
sation et autres points liés a ces organismes. Il pourrait en fait
étre trés avantageux d’amener I’industrie a songer a ses projets
et a travailler en collaboration afin de déterminer une stratégie
en matiere de promotion et de recherche qui pourrait étre liée
a ces plans. Dans certains cas, ce processus est peut-étre déja
entamé. Dans d’autres cas, il y a des secteurs passablement
fragmentés ol I’on n’a pas considéré la situation selon ces
termes. Il pourrait s’agir d’une fagon de les aider a y penser.

S’ils croient que les Néo-zélandais s’empareraient du mar-
ché de I’agneau au complet, il est possible que la stratégie ne
s’avérerait pas efficace dans ce domaine. Ils pourraient avoir
d’autres recours. Ils opteraient peut-étre simplement pour des
prélévements provinciaux sur la production intérieure et se
serviraient de cette mesure pour agir a I'intérieur du pays ou
pour utiliser une autre approche. Il me semble que plusieurs
produits pourraient profiter de la simple réalisation des diver-
ses étapes de I’établissement de ces agences.

M. Johannsen: Je crois que les producteurs d’agneau
devront répondre 2 cette question. En vertu de ce projet de loi,
ils pourraient décider d’imposer un prélévement uniquement
sur la production intérieure, et dans ce cas, ils pourraient en
fait faire une campagne de promotion de I'agneau canadien.
Ils ne courent pas le risque alors d’utiliser des dollars prove-
nant d’un produit importé pour porter préjudice aux intéréts
des importateurs. Mais, bien entendu, la cagnotte est moins
importante dans ce cas. Si le prélévement s’applique purement
A la production intérieure, les fonds disponibles sont plus
modestes.

Il faut tenir compte de ces facteurs lorsque I’on considere la
possibilité d’un prélévement sur les importations. Des qu’ils
choisissent cette mesure, les importateurs doivent profiter de
I'utilisation de ces fonds. La question que je pose donc est la
suivante: Si vous étes un producteur national, est-il préférable
d’avoir une campagne de promotion générale de I’agneau ou
de promotion de I’agneau canadien? Je ne suis pas sir de la
réponse, mais c¢’est probablement le genre de question que
I’industrie de I’agneau se posera.




19-5-1992

Agriculture et foréts ¥:33

[Text)

Many industries, and I think of honey and lamb, are such
that the producers would like to have a good, long-term strate-
gic plan that encompasses promotion and research. For many
of the commodities the funding base has not been adequate in
the past to do those sorts of things. This legislation provides
the opportunity to do that for some of those industries. If it
becomes law, I think they will start assessing whether they
can use it. Hopefully, that will enable them to put together
longer-term strategic plans that look at some of the issues that
the senator has raised.

Senator Sparrow: In the provision for the council, did I
understand, related to market, that the importers could actually
have a majority on the council? In this way there could be
fewer actual producers than importers on the council. Is that
correct?

Mr. Claydon: When you say a majority, there could be up
to 16 positions on an agency and there would have to be more
than a 50 per cent combination of producers and importers in
relation to their share of the value of the product. So it would
be hard to see that the importers would get to be the majority
of the whole agency, which could be comprised of up to 16.
However, under certain circumstances, if imports exceeded
domestic production, such as in the case of lamb, you could
have a situation where importers outnumbered producers, but
they would not necessarily be the majority on the whole
agency, because the other half of the agency could be proces-
sors or consumers. So you would still have a predominance of
Canadian interests on the agency.

Senator Sparrow: If you had only four or five on the
board, as an example, three of those could be importers and
one a producer, and one the Chair. Is that possible?

Mr. Claydon: That is a possibility, if that is the way it is
set up.

Senator Sparrow: If that is the case, the importer and the
Canadian producer may not be on the same wavelength. There
may be a conflict of interest there. The importer, who is in the
business of importing, is not really that interested in domestic
production. He is interested in importing from offshore. So
the conflict that we are talking about is that the promotion
could be on the import of the product rather than domestic
production. Is that not correct?

Mr. Claydon: One of the requirements to establish one of
these research and promotion agencies is that you have to have

[Traduction]

Les producteurs de nombreuses industries, notamment cel-
les du miel et de I’agneau, aimeraient avoir une bonne straté-
gie 2 long terme qui tient compte de la promotion et de la
recherche. Dans le cas de nombreux produits, la base de finan-
cement n’a pas été suffisante dans le passé pour permettre de
réaliser ce genre d’activités. Le présent projet de loi en fournit
I’occasion pour certaines de ces industries. S’il passe en loi, je
pense qu’ils chercheront a déterminer s’ils peuvent s’en servir.
Il est A espérer qu’il leur permettra d’élaborer une planifica-
tion stratégique a plus long terme qui tient compte de certains
des points soulevés par le sénateur.

Le sénateur Sparrow: D’aprés ce que j’ai entendu au sujet
du conseil, se pourrait-il que, en ce qui a trait au marché, les
importateurs soient majoritaires au conseil? De cette fagon, il
y aurait moins de producteurs que d’importateurs au conseil.
Est-ce que c’est exact?

M. Claydon: Lorsque vous parlez de majorité, il pourrait y
avoir jusqu’a 16 postes dans un office et il devrait y avoir une
combinaison de plus de 50 pour cent de producteurs et
d’importateurs par rapport a leur part de la valeur du produit.
Il serait donc difficile de voir que les importateurs arrivent a
représenter la majorité de tout I’office qui pourrait compren-
dre jusqu’a 16 membres. Toutefois, dans certaines circons-
tances, si les importations dépassent la production nationale,
comme dans le cas de I’agneau, vous pourriez avoir une situa-
tion ot les importateurs dépassent en nombre les producteurs,
mais ils ne seraient pas nécessairement la majorité dans
I’ensemble de I’office, parce que I’autre moitié de I’organisme
pourrait se composer de transformateurs ou de consomma-
teurs. Ainsi, les intéréts canadiens seraient encore prédomi-
nants a I’office.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Si vous aviez seulement quatre ou
cinqg membres au Conseil, par exemple, trois d’entre eux pour-
raient étre des importateurs et ’autre un producteur, plus la
présidence. Est-ce possible?

M. Claydon: C’est une possibilité, si un tel cas se présente.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Si tel est le cas, 'importateur et le
producteur canadien peuvent ne pas étre sur la méme longueur
d’onde. Il peut alors y avoir conflit d’intérét. L’importateur,
qui travaille dans le monde de I’importation, n’est pas vrai-
ment préoccupé par les affaires de la production nationale. Il
s’occupe de faire des importations d’outre-mer. Donc, avec le
conflit dont nous parlons, il se pourrait que la promotion soit
axée sur I'importation du produit plutét que sur la production
nationale. Est-ce exact?

M. Claydon: L’une des conditions de I’établissement de
I’'un de ces offices de recherche et de promotion consiste en
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the agreement of the Minister of Agriculture. If, for some rea-
son or other, a proposal was made with three-quarters import-
ers and one-quarter domestic producers, and it looked like it
was not in the best interests of Canadians to have this kind of
agency established, it would be at the discretion of the minis-
ter to say that that agency should not be established.

Senator Sparrow: You are telling us that ministers use
good judgment all the time, and I have indications that that is
not necessarily the case. Good judgment could be used at the
beginning and then, a year later, the reverse could take place.
If you have a philosophical approach to imports, we are going
to be back in that same process.

It seems to me that there should be a safeguard for Cana-
dian production, which does not appear to be indicated in
those provisions. I appreciate that you are saying that we rely
on ministerial good judgment, but, as I said, that does not nec-
essarily take place. It seems to me Canadians should always
be in a majority on the council and, in fact, they should be
producers, because processors may very well be on the same
wavelength as importers because their processing plants
would be made profitable by imports. It could be in the best
interests of a whole group of people to import rather than to
promote Canadian production. I do not know what the per-
centage is of what is actually produced in Canada, but would
one-third be close?

The Chairman: Of lamb? Less.

Senator Sparrow: Less than that is produced in Canada. Is
that scenario possible in the future?

Mr. Claydon: Let me make one other point on this issue. If
we set up a situation in which the Canadian interests were
seen to be predominant and the importer interests were some-
how subservient, the possibility of our being able to levy a
check-off on imports would be significantly reduced. Our
trading partners would say that we were not treating the
imported product on a comparable basis with the domestic
product and therefore we did not have a good case for being
able to continue with this check-off approach.

It is somewhat of a risk in that you have to treat imports
basically equivalently to domestic product if you want to be
able to put a check-off on the imported product. The scenario
you have painted is theoretically possible, but if you try to
safeguard against that you run into the situation of probably
not being able to have check-offs on imported products, which
is an objective of a number of commodities like horticulture
and cattle.

[Traduction)

I’obligation d’obtenir I’accord du ministre de I’Agriculture.
Si, pour une raison ou pour une autre, il y avait une proposi-
tion faite par trois quarts d’importateurs et un quart de produc-
teurs nationaux, et qu’il semble que la création d’un tel office
ne soit pas conforme aux meilleurs intéréts des Canadiens, le
Ministre a le pouvoir discrétionnaire de s’opposer a cette créa-
tion.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Vous nous dites que les ministres
font toujours preuve d’un bon jugement, mais j’ai certaines
raisons de penser que ce n’est pas nécessairement le cas. On
pourrait faire preuve d’un bon jugement au début, puis, un an
plus tard, I'inverse pourrait se produire. Si vous avez une
approche philosophique en matieére d’importations, nous
allons retourner dans ce méme processus.

Il me semble qu’il devrait y avoir une garantie pour la pro-
duction canadienne qui ne semble pas étre indiquée dans ces
dispositions. Je comprends parfaitement que vous dites que
nous nous fions au bon jugement de nos ministres, mais
comme je I’ai mentionné, cela ne se produit pas nécessaire-
ment. Il me semble que les Canadiens devraient toujours étre
en majorité au conseil et, en fait, ce devrait étre les produc-
teurs parce que les transformateurs peuvent étre trés bien sur
la méme longueur d’onde que les importateurs, étant donné
que leurs usines de transformation tireraient de grands profits
des importations. Un groupe entier de personnes aurait tout
intérét a importer plutdt qu’a promouvoir la production cana-
dienne. Jignore le pourcentage de la production réelle au
Canada, mais un tiers serait-il une bonne approximation?

Le président: Pour I’agneau? Moins.

Le sénateur Sparrow: La production canadienne est moins
d’un tiers. Ce scénario est-il possible dans le futur?

M. Claydon: Permettez-moi de faire une autre remarque a
ce sujet. Si nous nous trouvons dans une situation o les inté-
réts canadiens sont considérés comme prédominants et les
intéréts des importateurs, d’une certaine fagon, secondaires, la
possibilité pour nous d’imposer un prélévement sur les impor-
tations serait considérablement réduite. Nos partenaires com-
merciaux diraient que nous ne traitons pas le produit importé
sur une base comparable au produit national, et, par consé-
quent, il nous sera difficile de continuer cette approche de
taxation.

Il faut en quelque sorte prendre le risque de considérer les
importations sur une base fondamentalement équivalente aux
produits nationaux, si vous voulez étre en mesure de taxer les
produits importés. Le scénario que vous avez décrit est théori-
quement possible, mais si vous essayez de vous protéger, vous
courez le risque de ne plus pouvoir imposer de prélevements
sur les produits importés, ce qui est un objectif pour plusieurs
denrées comme |’horticulture et le bétail.
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Senator Sparrow: I do not follow that. The act says that, if
you levy it in Canada on Canadian production, you can levy it
on imports. That is what we are talking about.

Mr. Claydon: But that is if you treat the importers and the
domestic producers in basically equivalent fashion in terms of
the way the regime operates.

Senator Sparrow: I understand that.

Mr. Claydon: If you dictate that there has to be a majority
of Canadians on the agency, regardless of the proportion of
domestic and imported product, that could be seen by our trad-
ing partners as not equivalent treatment.

Senator Sparrow: I do not understand that argument at all.
I assume we are talking about Canadian importers, Canadian
processors and Canadian farmers. I am just saying that the
conflict is who benefits from that aspect. If they are all
Canadians and the import levies are the same, it could still be
dominated by the importers and the processors, who could
then do as they pleased with the check-offs.

The danger that we are getting into here is that there is no
longer protection for the Canadian farmer as such. We are
more concerned about the offshore producers and the consum-
ers in the country rather than the actual production capability
of the agricultural community itself. It seems to me that this
makes provision for a very healthy situation for the importers
and the processors, but not necessarily a healthy one for the
producers.

The Chairman: Especially the pineapple producers of
Canada. It would be very difficult for them, and for the cran-
berry producers.

Senator Sparrow: We are having difficulty with lobsters in
Saskatchewan too.

Mr. Mclsaac: I guess it is an element and an angle that
perhaps had not been thought through in that sense, but the
process calls for a group of Canadian producers to come for-
ward and ask for it. The council itself is under obligation in
law to hold a public hearing, and perhaps more than one pub-
lic hearing.

Senator Rossiter: Is it correct that it is only the producers
who can do that?

Mr. Mclsaac: Yes, I believe that to be correct. Certainly,
with regard to lamb, if there is going to be a national
check-off, if you like, to promote lamb, it could be either
Canadian or both importers and producers. However, that
would all have to be worked out and put together before the

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Sparrow: Je ne suis pas d’accord. La loi sti-
pule que si vous taxez la production canadienne au Canada,
vous pouvez taxer les importations. C’est ce dont nous par-
lons.

M. Claydon: Si vous traitez les importateurs et les produc-
teurs canadiens 2 peu prés de la méme maniére en ce qui con-
cerne le mode de fonctionnement du régime.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Je comprends cela.

M. Claydon: Si vous décidez que les Canadiens doivent
étre en majorité au sein de I’office, peu importe la répartition
entre les produits intérieurs et des produits importés, nos par-
tenaires commerciaux pourraient juger qu’il n’y a pas traite-
ment équivalent.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Je ne comprends rien a ce raisonne-
ment. Je suppose que nous parlons d’importateurs canadiens,
de transformateurs canadiens et d’agriculteurs canadiens. Tout
ce que je dis, c’est que j’essaie de savoir qui profite de cet
aspect. S’ils sont tous canadiens et que les prélevements 2
I’importation sont les mémes, les importateurs et les transfor-
mateurs pourraient quand méme étre en majorité et faire ce
qu’ils voudraient des prélevements.

Ce qui est dangereux dans tout cela, c’est que I’agriculteur
canadien n’est plus vraiment protégé. Nous nous préoccupons
plus des producteurs étrangers et des consommateurs de notre
pays que de la capacité réelle de production du milieu agricole
comme tel. Il me semble que cela engendre une situation trés
saine pour les importateurs et les transformateurs, mais pas
nécessairement pour le producteur.

Le président: Particulieérement pour les producteurs cana-
diens d’ananas. Ceux-ci et les producteurs de canneberges
éprouveraient beaucoup de difficulté.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Nous avons de la difficulté avec le
homard en Saskatchewan aussi.

M. Mclsaac: Je crois qu’il s’agit 1a d’un élément et d’un
point de vue auxquels on n’avait pas vraiment pensé, mais le
processus prévoit qu'un groupe de producteurs canadiens
prenne les devants et en fasse la demande. La loi oblige le
Conseil a tenir une audience publique, et peut-Etre plus
encore.

Le sénateur Rossiter: Est-il exact que seuls les produc-
teurs peuvent agir ainsi?

M. Mclsaac: Oui, je crois que c’est exact. C’est certaine-
ment le cas en ce qui concerne I’agneau, s’il doit y avoir
déduction au niveau national, disons, pour assurer la promo-
tion de I'agneau, elle pourrait étre imposée soit au niveau
national, soit aux importateurs et aux producteurs. Cependant,
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group came to the National Farm Products Council with a pro-
posal. Many of them will have held a good number of meet-
ings within their own circle before coming to council asking
for the formation of an agency with public hearings and so on.
So there will be ample opportunity for people involved to rec-
ognize the valid fears that my senator friend is pointing out.

The Chairman: I want you to shorten up these speeches, if
you can, because I want to get to the Senate at eight o’clock. If
you would not mind, please be brief.

Mr. Johannsen: The biggest safeguard against the situa-
tion you have painted is the fact that there has to be majority
support before an agency is created. In this particular case,
where you have a check-off on imports, under the legislation
you need to have the support of a combined majority of pro-
ducers and importers. In almost any commodity, domestic
producers will far outnumber importers in Canada. That is for
any commodity for which we are seriously discussing the pos-
sible formation of an agency, pineapples being an exception.

In any event, in practice that means, in a hypothetical situa-
tion, if there are 1,000 domestic producers of commodity X
and 100 importers, it would take a combined majority of that
1,100 persons before an agency could be established. In other
words, in almost all cases producers will have the final say
about the formation of an agency.

Senator Sparrow: Are you talking about numbers or dollar
values?

Mr. Johannsen: Numbers.
Senator Sparrow: Always?

Mr. Johannsen: In terms of the majority support, yes. It is
a combined majority of producers and importers. So importers
do not have a veto over the creation of an agency, nor can they
force the creation of an agency.

Senator Sparrow: It is a majority of the combination,
though.

Mr. Johannsen: So it could still be more importers than
farmers. I cannot think of a commodity where we would have
more importers than domestic producers.

Senator Sparrow: Lamb.

Mr. Johannsen: No, we would have more domestic pro-
ducers than there are importers.

Senator Sparrow: But still, by decision, the majority could
be importers. It says “a combined majority”.

[Traduction)

tout cela devrait étre organisé et constitué en un tout avant que
le groupe se présente devant le Conseil national des produits
agricoles avec une proposition en main. Beaucoup de
membres du groupe auront tenu de nombreuses réunions dans
leur propre milieu avant de se rendre demander au Conseil de
créer un office, avec les audiences publiques que cela com-
porte, et ainsi de suite. Donc, les personnes en cause auront
amplement I’occasion de reconnaitre les craintes fondées que
le sénateur souligne.

Le président: Je voudrais que vos interventions soient
moins longues parce que j’aimerais étre au Sénat a huit
heures. Alors, je vous prierais d’étre brefs.

M. Johannsen: La meilleure protection contre le genre de
situation que vous décrivez réside dans le fait que la création
d’un office nécessite I’appui de la majorité. Dans le cas qui
nous intéresse, pour une déduction visant les importations, la
loi exige I’appui de la majorité combinée des producteurs et
des importateurs. Pour presque n’importe quel produit, les
producteurs canadiens sont beaucoup plus nombreux que les
importateurs, au Canada. C’est le cas pour tout produit pour
lequel nous envisageons sérieusement de former un office; le
cas des ananas et une exception.

Quoi qu’il en soit, dans la pratique, si I’on suppose qu’il
existe 1 000 producteurs d’un produit X et 100 importateurs,
cela signifie que I'accord de la majorité combinée de ces 1
100 personnes serait nécessaire pour qu’un office puisse étre
créé. Autrement dit, dans presque tous les cas, les producteurs
auront le dernier mot quant a la mise sur pied d’un office.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Parlez-vous de nombres ou de mon-
tants d’argent?

M. Johannsen: De nombres.
Le sénateur Sparrow: Toujours?

M. Johannsen: En ce qui concerne I'appui de la majorité,
oui. Il s’agit de la majorité combinée des producteurs et des
importateurs. Donc, les importateurs ne peuvent ni empécher,
ni imposer la création d’un office.

Le sénateur Sparrow: C’est la majorité de I’ensemble tou-
tefois.

M. Johannsen: Il pourrait donc y avoir encore plus
d’importateurs que d’agriculteurs. Je ne peux penser a aucun
produit pour lequel nous avons plus d’importateurs que de
producteurs.

Le sénateur Sparrow: L’agneau.

M. Johannsen: Non, nous comptons, au Canada, plus de
producteurs que d’importateurs.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Mais, méme 12, la majorité pourrait
étre constituée d’importateurs. On parle de majorité combinée.
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Mr. Johannsen: If the producers in that case voted to go
ahead with an agency for lamb, then yes, they would be out-
numbered by importers on the agency. However, it would be
the producers’ decision to allow that situation to occur. In
other words, in terms of the majority support it would be their
voice that would be heard.

Senator Sparrow: Initially. But after a year or two years
what say would they have? They do not appoint the board.
They do not appoint the council.

Mr. Johannsen: They would be outnumbered, in that case,
by importers on the agency.

Senator Sparrow: Right. They lose their say once they
have made the request to have a council.

Senator Hays: The Minister of Agriculture would not let
that go ahead.

Senator Sparrow: I do not know about this government,
but I know that other governments would have.

Senator Rossiter: It is the producers who initiate the pro-
cess.

Senator Hays: They could still benefit if they were in a
minority. After all, they are producing a commodity that they
want to sell.

The Chairman: Agreed, but they would have to make the
decision that it would be helpful to their commodity or inter-
ests. If they did not, they would be crazy.

Senator Sparrow: What you are saying is correct, but ini-
tially they would think that they could apply—because it is
not covered here—and it would be a good deal for them. It
could, in their opinion, be good at this point. A year or two
later, when they are no longer in a majority, because they do
not have the power of appointment, it could be to the benefit
of the importers to actually import all the product rather than
have any produced in the country.

The Chairman: Your point has been well made, Senator
Sparrow. You have pointed out that down the line Canadian
importers and Canadian processors may outnumber, on this
board, Canadian producers. Thank you. Theoretically that
could happen.

Senator Sparrow: You said it was not necessarily to the
detriment of the producer and I am saying it could be.

The Chairman: It might be or it might not be.

[Traduction)

M. Johannsen: Si, dans ce cas, les producteurs décidaient
d’aller de I’avant et de créer un office pour I’agneau, alors oui,
ils pourraient étre moins nombreux que les importateurs au
sein de I'office. Toutefois, la décision de permettre une telle
situation dépendrait des producteurs. Autrement dit, pour ce
qui est de I’appui de la majorité, ce serait leur voix qui prime-
rait.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Pour commencer, oui; mais au bout
d’un an ou deux, quel pouvoir ont-ils? Ils ne nomment pas les
membres de la direction, ils ne participent pas a la nomination
du conseil.

M. Johannsen: Dans ce cas, les importateurs seraient plus
nombreux au sien de I'office.

Le sénateur Sparrow: C’est ¢, ils n’ont plus voix au cha-
pitre & partir du moment ot ils demandent la mise sur pied
d’un conseil.

Le sénateur Hays: Le ministre de I’ Agriculture intervien-
drait.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Je ne sais si le gouvernement actuel
le ferait, mais je sais que d’autres I’auraient fait.

Le sénateur Rossiter: Ce sont les producteurs qui enta-
ment le processus.

Le sénateur Hays: Méme s’ils sont en minorité, ils pour-
raient quand méme tirer avantage de la situation. Aprés tout,
ils veulent vendre ce qu’ils produisent.

Le président: Certes, mais il leur faudrait décider que cela
s’avérera utile pour leur produit ou leurs intéréts. Ils seraient
fous d’agir autrement.

Le sénateur Sparrow: C’est exact; toutefois, ils pense-
raient tout d’abord qu’ils pourraient présenter une demande,
parce qu’on n’en parle pas ici, et que cela serait a leur avan-
tage. Ils pourraient considérer cela comme une bonne chose, a
cette étape. Un an ou deux plus tard, lorsqu’ils ne détien-
draient plus la majorité parce qu’ils n’auraient aucun pouvoir
de nomination, il pourrait étre a I’avantage des importateurs
de favoriser une importation totale, au lieu d’encourager la
production au Canada.

Le président: Votre message est clair, sénateur Sparrow.
Vous avez indiqué qu’un jour, les importateurs canadiens et
les transformateurs canadiens pourraient étre plus nombreux
que les producteurs canadiens, au sein de cet office. Je vous
remercie. En théorie, cela pourrait arriver.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Vous avez dit que cela ne serait pas
nécessairement au détriment du producteur et moi, je dis que
cela pourrait I’étre.

Le président: Cela pourrait étre ou ne pas étre le cas.
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Senator Hays: Senator Sparrow is right and he has raised a
potential problem in terms of serving the Canadian interest of
using our resources and value adding here. Lamb is a good
example. It would compete with other products. Every time
you have lamb you do not have something else. He did not
mention that. That is the extension of it.

The Chairman: You mean we would eat less beef.
Senator Hays: Or chicken or fish or whatever.

The Chairman: I want to say something about lamb,
because I am the greatest lamb eater in this country. I go to
great lengths to find fresh Saskatchewan lamb. This weekend I
had lamb twice. I am not a two-pound eater, I am probably a
30-pound-a-year eater of lamb. I try to get fresh lamb and
sometimes I can get it. In the Safeway store you usually find
frozen legs of New Zealand lamb, which is also quite tasty,
but nowhere near as good as fresh lamb. If I raised fresh lamb
in Canada I would think pretty carefully about whether I
wanted to enter into an agency that might be promoting a
competitor’s product even more heavily than my own. If all of
you people would start eating fresh-killed Saskatchewan or
Ontario lamb, we might get a bigger lamb business in this
country.

There is one other subject totally extraneous to this that I
must raise. Mr. Claydon, did you have a helpful comment to
make?

Mr. Claydon: I have two comments. First, I had fresh lamb
this weekend too. I want to put that on the record.

The other point is that it is important to realize that if this
agency tended to run off the rails in the way that has been
suggested, there are remedies. There are two that I can think
of. One is that when the producers established the agency
they could include some kind of sunset provision. They could
say that they wanted to have a general vote every two years, or
whatever, in order to continue it if there was some thought
that they might have a problem in the future.

The other remedy is that the minister has the authority to
terminate an agency with 90 days notice. So there are some
other safeguards in the system if producers suddenly realize
that it is not operating in their interests any longer.

Senator Olson: I thought, Mr. Claydon, that I heard you
say in your opening comments that the check-off can be

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Hays: Le sénateur Sparrow a raison; il a sou-
levé le point qu’il a soulevé pourrait présenter certaines diffi-
cultés au chapitre des intéréts des Canadiens quant 2
I’utilisation de nos ressources et a la valeur ajoutée ici.
L’agneau est un bon exemple. Il ferait concurrence a d’autres
produits. Chaque fois que vous mangez de I’agneau, vous ne
mangez pas autre chose. Cela, il ne I’a pas mentionné; c’est
pourtant ce qui en découlerait.

Le président: Vous voulez dire que nous consommerions
moins de boeuf.

Le sénateur Hays: Ou de poulet, de poisson ou d’autre
chose.

Le président: En ma qualité de plus grand consommateur
d’agneau de ce pays, j’aimerais vous dire quelque chose a ce
sujet. Je me donne beaucoup de mal pour trouver de I’agneau
frais de la Saskatchewan. La fin de semaine derniére, jai
mangé de I’agneau a deux reprises. Je n’en consomme pas un
peu, j’en consomme beaucoup. J'essaie d’obtenir de I’agneau
frais, ce qui s’avere parfois impossible. Au marché
d’alimentation Safeway, on trouve généralement des gigots
congelés, importés de la Nouvelle-Zélande, qui ne sont pas
mauvais, mais qui n’ont rien a voir avec I’agneau frais. Si je
faisais I’élevage des agneaux au Canada, j’y penserais a deux
fois avant de créer un office qui pourrait commercialiser les
produits de mes compétiteurs plus activement que les miens.
Si vous commenciez tous a2 manger de I’agneau frais de la
Saskatchewan ou de I’Ontario, peut-étre aurions-nous plus de
producteurs d’agneau au Canada.

Il me faut aborder un sujet tout a fait étranger a ce dont
nous venons de parler. M. Claydon, aviez-vous quelque chose
d’utile a ajouter?

M. Claydon: J’ai deux observations. Tout d’abord, jai
aussi mangé de I’agneau frais au cours de la fin de semaine. Je
veux que cela figure dans le compte rendu.

Ensuite, il faut bien comprendre que si I’on prévoyait qu’il
pourrait arriver que I’on perde le contréle de cet office comme
cela a 616 suggéré, il existe des moyens de régler la situation.
Jen ai deux 2 Iesprit présentement. Premieérement, les pro-
ducteurs, lors de la création de I’office, pourraient prévoir un
genre de disposition de temporisation. Ils pourraient dire, par
exemple, que I’existence de I’office fera I’objet d’un vote tous
les deux ans ou d’une autre mesure, s'ils appréhendent cer-
taines difficultés pour I’avenir.

L’autre moyen consisterait 2 confier au ministre le pouvoir
de dissoudre I’office sur préavis de 90 jours. Il existe donc,
dans le systéme, d’autres mesures de protection 2 la disposi-
tion des producteurs, si ceux-ci découvraient tout a coup que
I’office ne sert plus leurs intéréts.

Le sénateur Olson: M. Claydon, je croyais vous avoir
entendu dire, lors de votre introduction, que la déduction
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mandatory. I was under the impression that in all cases there
was a refund available to anyone who wanted it.

Mr. Claydon: If there was a group that wanted to set up a
check-off scheme, then they would have the choice as to
whether to make it mandatory or have a voluntary refundable
arrangement or other voluntary arrangement. But there is pro-
vision in the act that the producers and others setting up such
an agency can agree to have a mandatory check-off.

The Chairman: Without refund?
Mr. Claydon: Without refund.

Senator Olson: That is news to me. I thought there was a
provision where it would be voluntary. I was trying to find it
in Senator Berntson’s notes, but it is not there. Somebody told
us that this would be voluntary. In other words, in some cases
it might be collected but a producer could apply for and get
his money back.

Senator Berntson: You probably heard that when I was
giving an example of the Saskatchewan beef model.

Senator Olson: Yes. It used to be true in Alberta, too, but
you say that, if you receive majority support from the produc-
ers that are covered and they decide that they will not have a
refund available, then 51 per cent, or whatever it may be, can
collect this check-off from the other 49 per cent and keep it
for these purposes whether or not those other 49 per cent like
it

Mr. Claydon: Yes.

Mr. Johannsen: The only point I would add is that
mandatory levies are already used under this Act for the sup-
ply management agencies. Those levies are mandatory.

Senator Olson: I understand that.

Mr. Johannsen: We are not adding something new to the
Act that is not there already.

Senator Olson: I misunderstood that. That is why I wanted
to be sure that I understood what you said.

Mr. Johannsen: Concerning the idea of majority support, I
consider that to be a necessary condition for the establishment
of an agency, but not a sufficient one. There are other judg-
ments that enter into the approval of an agency, including
whether that check-off should be mandatory or refundable.

Senator Olson: When it is being set up would it be known
then to the producers whether the check-off was to be volun-
tary with the mechanism that I talked about?

[Traduction)

pourrait étre obligatoire. J’avais I’impression qu’un rembour-
sement était offert 2 quiconque le voulait.

M. Claydon: S’il y a un groupe qui désire établir un méca-
nisme de contribution, alors il aurait le choix de le rendre obli-
gatoire ou d’avoir recours a une disposition de remboursement
ou 2 un arrangement de ce genre. Mais la loi prévoit que les
producteurs qui établissent un tel office peuvent s’entendre
pour établir un mécanisme de contribution obligatoire.

Le président: Sans remboursement?
M. Claydon: Sans remboursement.

Le sénateur Olson: Voild qui est nouveau. Je croyais
qu’une disposition prévoyait que cette mesure serait faculta-
tive. J'ai essayé de la retrouver dans les notes du séna-
teur Berntson, mais elle n’y est pas. Quelqu’un nous a dit que
cette mesure serait facultative. En d’autres termes, dans cer-
tains cas, le montant serait collecté, mais le producteur pour-
rait demander et obtenir un remboursement.

Le sénateur Berntson: Vous avez sans doute entendu par-
ler de cela lorsque j’ai présenté I’exemple du modele des pro-
ducteurs de boeuf de la Saskatchewan.

Le sénateur Olson: Oui. C’était vrai auparavant en
Alberta, également, mais vous affirmez que si vous recevez un
soutien majoritaire de la part des producteurs, et si ceux-ci
décident de ne pas accorder de remboursement, alors 51 %
d’entre eux, ou peu importe la proportion, peuvent collecter ce
montant chez les autres 49 % et le garder pour eux, que cela
plaise aux autres ou non.

M. Claydon: Oui.

M. Johannsen: J’ajouterai seulement que des prélévements
obligatoires sont déja prévus, aux termes de cette loi, dans le
cas des offices de gestion des approvisionnements. Ces préle-
vements sont obligatoires.

Le sénateur Olson: Cela, je le comprends.

M. Johannsen: Nous n’ajoutons rien de nouveau a la loi
qui ne s’y trouve déja.

Le sénateur Olson: Cela, je I’avais mal compris. C’est
pourquoi je désirais m’assurer que j’avais bien compris ce que
vous aviez dit.

M. Johannsen: En ce qui concerne la question du soutien
majoritaire, je considére qu’il s’agit d’une condition néces-
saire 2 I’établissement d’un office, mais qu’elle n’est pas suffi-
sante. Il existe d’autres facteurs qui doivent étre pris en
compte dans I’approbation de celui-ci, notamment on doit
décider si la contribution doit étre obligatoire ou remboursa-
ble.

Le sénateur Olson: Au moment de la création de I’office,
les producteurs sauraient-ils si la contribution est obligatoire
ou non, avec le mécanisme dont j’ai déja parlé?
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I understand that you have to collect it, because it would not
be possible to collect it from some and not from others. But
will they know at the time they are setting it up that there is a
chance for a refund if they are not happy with the way the
agency is using their money?

Mr. Johannsen: There is nothing in the legislation to say
exactly what the details of a proposal have to be before you
can solicit producer approval. Our advice to producer groups
is essentially that you cannot ask producers to approve a plan
when it is just an airy-fairy idea. They are to have some details
on paper concerning how it will operate, how its members
would be appointed, how levies would be set, and whether
they would be mandatory or refundable, before you can ask
them to approve the idea.

Senator Olson: Would all of that be public information by
way of meetings, or whatever?

Mr. Johannsen: Exactly.

Senator Olson: Prior to their asking for the vote?

Mr. Johannsen: The first step in terms of establishing an
agency would be for producer groups to come forward and ask
for an investigation into the establishment of an agency. They
would come forward presumably with a proposal saying that it
would operate in a certain way. In conjunction with the coun-
cil they would work out perhaps some details of that proposal.
At some point you have to establish whether or not producers
are in favour of that proposal. The more details that are estab-
lished about that proposal, the more producers will be able to
say whether or not they are in favour of it.

Senator Olson: Perhaps I could ask Mr. Mclsaac to
explain how he would satisfy himself and the council that
there was a fairly good understanding by the producers of
what they were getting into before he recommended the estab-
lishment of such an agency.

Mr. Mclsaac: Currently there is in place in each province a
provincial supervisory board similar to the national one which
we are a part of. They themselves do a good deal of the work
in connection with many associations that are out there now,
be it bean growers or beef, or whatever. Concerning the recent
apple one, which went through a lengthy hearing process and
is still in that stage now, a lot of that was done by provincial
agencies.

In terms of specifics, we would not need to have a vote nec-
essarily in each and every case, but we have to feel that we

[Traduction)

Je comprends que vous devez recueillir cette contribution,
parce qu’il ne serait pas possible de la prélever auprés de cer-
tains et pas des autres. Mais les producteurs sauront-ils, lors
de la création de I’office, qu’ils peuvent étre remboursés s’ils
ne sont pas satisfaits de la fagon dont celui-ci dépense leur
argent?

M. Johannsen: Rien dans la loi ne précise exactement que
tous les détails d’une proposition doivent étre connus avant
que celle-ci puisse étre présentée aux producteurs en vue
d’obtenir leur approbation. Essentiellement, nous disons qu’on
ne peut pas demander a un groupe de producteurs d’approuver
un plan lorsqu’il s’agit uniquement d’une idée en I'air. Il faut
auparavant leur fournir, par écrit, des détails sur la fagon dont
I’office va fonctionner; sur la manieére dont ses membres
seront nommés; sur la fagcon dont les prélevements seront éta-
blis; et décider si ces derniers seront obligatoires ou rembour-
sables, avant de demander aux producteurs d’approuver I’idée.

Le sénateur Olson: Tous ces détais seraient-ils diffusés par
des réunions d’information publique, ou par d’autres moyens?

M. Johannsen: Exactement.

Le sénateur Olson: Avant qu’on demande aux producteurs
de voter?

M. Johannsen: La premiere étape dans I’établissement
d’un office de commercialisation consiste, pour les groupes de
producteurs, 2 demander d’enquéter sur I’établissement d’un
tel office. On peut supposer que les producteurs se présente-
raient avec une proposition selon laquelle I’office fonctionne-
rait d’une certaine fagon. En collaboration avec le Conseil, ils
retravailleraient cette proposition dans les détails. A un
moment donné, il faut établir si oui ou non les producteurs
sont en faveur de la proposition. Plus on dispose de détails sur
cette derniére, mieux les producteurs sont en mesure de déci-
der si oui ou non ils sont en faveur.

Le sénateur Olson: J’aimerais demander 3 M. Mc Isaac de
nous expliquer comment vous-méme et le Conseil vous assu-
rerez que les producteurs ont bien compris dans quoi ils
s’engagent avant que vous recommandiez I’établissement d’un
tel office?

M. Mclsaac: Actuellement, dans chaque province, il existe
un conseil de surveillance semblable au conseil national dont
nous faisons partie. Ces conseils provinciaux font une bonne
partie du travail lié aux nombreuses associations qui existent
actuellement, qu’il s’agisse des producteurs de boeuf, de hari-
cots, ou d’autres choses. En ce qui concerne les producteurs
de pommes, qui sont passés par un long processus d’audiences
et qui en sont toujours a cette étape maintenant, une bonne
partie du travail est effectuée par les organismes provinciaux.

En ce qui concerne les détails, il n’est pas nécessaire de
passer au vote pour chaque cas, mais nous devons avoir
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have strong evidence, either from lists of names or from peo-
ple attending meetings, or from resolutions. This may not be
as specific as you would like, though. We spent a good deal of
time on how you would go about this, and it varies quite a bit
from an agency that might come forth, for example, involving
beef, which covers more area and more provinces than per-
haps mushrooms, which we understand is one that may be
forthcoming.

In the end, if we are not satisfied that we can stand a court
challenge—because this is subject to what happened in the
potato inquiry a few years ago—we can call a vote in each
province and go from there.

‘That is not as specific as you would like, I am sure, but
from the numbers of meetings held, from the attendees, from
the fact that we would ensure that certain information was
made available to every producer in advance of those meet-
ings so that they all had it before voting. We did that, for
example, in the apple proposal. We made sure that a certain
standard of information was available and left it up to each
province to ensure that they did receive it before conducting a
vote there. There are enough avenues to ensure that. At any
time somebody can call us and say that they are not sure.

Senator Olson: I am only asking about the one aspect of it
and that is whether the producer will know in advance
whether or not the check-off will be so-called voluntary, with
the method that I explained a minute ago, or will know in
advance that he will have to pay it, period. It will make a dif-
ference on how producers are involved in the campaign.

Mr. Mclsaac: I agree. That information will be in their
own marketing plan.

Mr. Johannsen: As I mentioned earlier, the legislation is
solid on the question, but as a matter of policy it would be
difficult to argue convincingly that producers are in favour of
a mandatory check-off, if they have never even been con-
fronted with the idea that it would be mandatory.

Senator Olson: Have the provinces agreed? You men-
tioned in your opening remarks, Mr. Claydon—although I am
not sure if you said this exactly—that it may not be absolutely
necessary but it would work a whole lot better. It is a little
stiffer than that, when you get to somebody taking you to
court over whether someone can legally take a check-off from
your product. That is why I am asking the question.

Have they all agreed that this is something that they are
willing to pass legislation on, or amend and delegate, and
whatever else they need to do—that is, something similar to

[Traduction]

I’impression que nous disposons d’une forte majorité, d’aprés
les listes de noms ou les personnes qui assistent aux réunions,
ou les résolutions. Cela n’est peut-étre pas aussi précis que
vous le voudriez, cependant. Nous avons consacré pas mal de
temps 2 étudier la fagon d’aborder ce sujet, et elle varie passa-
blement selon I’office considéré. Ainsi, les producteurs de
boeuf intéressent une plus grande superficie et un plus grand
nombre de provinces que, par exemple, les producteurs de
champignons.

A la fin, si nous ne sommes toujours pas certains de pouvoir
défendre notre cas en cours—ce qui s’est en fait produit lors
de I’enquéte sur I’industrie des pommes de terre menée il y a
quelques années—nous pourrions demander un vote dans
chaque province, et procéder apres selon les résultats obtenus.

Cela n’est pas aussi précis que vous le voudriez, j’en suis
certain, mais 2 partir du nombre de réunions tenues, des per-
sonnes présentes, du fait que nous nous assurerions de mettre
certaines informations 2 la disposition de tous les producteurs
avant les réunions—cela, par exemple, nous I’avons fait dans
le cas des producteurs de pommes, en d’autres termes nous
nous sommes assurés qu’un minimum de renseignements
étaient disponibles et que chaque province les avait regus
avant le vote—on peut sonder I’opinion de la majorité.
N’importe quand, quelqu’un peut nous appeler et nous dire
qu’il n’est pas certain.

Le sénateur Olson: Je vous demande simplement de
m’éclairer sur un aspect, celui-ci: les producteurs sauront-ils a
I’avance si leur contribution sera obligatoire ou non. Cela
influera certainement sur leur fagon de participer a la cam-
pagne.

M. Mclsaac: Je suis d’accord. Ce renseignement figurera
dans leur plan de commercialisation, un point c’est tout.

M. Johannsen: Comme je I’ai déja mentionné, la loi, sur
cette question, est claire, mais, pour des raisons de principe, il
serait difficile d’affirmer que les producteurs sont en faveur
d’une contribution obligatoire si on ne leur a jamais dit que
celle-ci le serait.

Le sénateur Olson: Les provinces sont-elles d’accord?
Vous avez mentionné au début de votre exposé,
M. Claydon—bien que je ne me souvienne pas exactement de
VoS propres mots—que ce ne serait pas absolument nécessaire
mais que cela irait bien mieux. La question est plus sérieuse
lorsque quelqu’un vous amene en cours et demande a celle-ci
de décider si un office a le droit ou non de prélever une contri-
bution sur ses produits. C’est pourquoi je vous pose cette
question.

Sont-elles toutes d’accord pour affirmer qu’il s’agit d’une
question sur laquelle elles acceptent de légiférer ou de modi-
fier la loi et de déléguer leurs pouvoirs, et de faire tout ce qui



3:42

Agriculture and Forestry

19-5-1992

[Text]
what they had to do with the marketing agency aspects of this
bill.

Mr. Claydon: All during the development of this bill were
discussions held with the provinces. They recognized that it
might require legislative change from their end. We worked on
the basis that, if there were provinces that had major problems
with the documents that sent to them, then they would raise
those issues. We have not heard concerns coming back from
them about it. We have heard only agreement. For example,
we have heard, “Let us go ahead; let us get it done”. We do
not foresee any difficulties there.

It may be that when we actually end up to getting every-
thing done down to the last detail of every piece of legislation,
and so on, there may be some issues that arise. But in terms of
the reasonable will to go ahead and make this work, that
seems to be there at the provincial level.

Mr. Johannsen: It is not essential that all provinces partici-
pate in order to have a national scheme. We look, for example,
at the Canadian Chicken Marketing Agency. B.C. is not a par-
ticipant in that scheme at the present time.

Senator Olson: I understand that, but you would have to
have provincial agreement before you could take a check-off
in that province.

Mr. Johannsen: Most definitely.
Senator Olson: There is no question about that.

The Chairman: I want to take a few minutes to go into the
Department of Revenue, Customs and Excise. If you are to
have collection of fees or levies, and if they are being done at
the border for imports, which is about the best place to do it,
what arrangements do you foresee for an agency to utilize?

Mr. Claydon: I will let Mr. Johannsen respond to this. He
has been talking to the customs and excise people.

Mr. Johannsen: As you have indicated, Mr. Chairman, the
legislation does not authorize Customs and Excise to collect
the check-offs on imports. In the absence of collection by cus-
toms officials it would be up to commodity groups to decide,
given their marketing system, where the most efficient place is
for collection to occur.

The Chairman: I just told you where the most efficient
place is and you admitted that it was at the border.

Mr. Johannsen: Not necessarily, because for some com-
modities it may be more efficient to have the collection on
imports occur at a later stage. It is conceivable that it could

[Traduction)

doit étre fait—en d’autres termes, quelque chose de semblable
a ce qu’elles ont di faire avec les aspects de ce projet de loi
concernant les offices de commercialisation.

M. Claydon: Au cours de la rédaction de ce projet de loi,
des discussions ont eu lieu avec les provinces. Celles-ci ont
reconnu qu’elles devraient peut-étre modifier leur propre loi.
Nous avons pris comme hypothése de travail que si certaines
provinces considéraient que les documents que nous leur
avons fait parvenir leur posaient de gros probleémes, elles nous
en parleraient. Cela ne s’est pas produit. Toutes sont d’accord,
et leurs remarques le prouvent. Par exemple: «allons de
I’avant; allons-y». Nous ne prévoyons pas de difficulté a ce
niveau.

Bien entendu, il est possible que certains problémes se
posent lorsque nous étudierons le détail des lois et réglements.
Mais il semble que, dans I’ensemble, les provinces souhaitent
raisonnablement aller de I’avant.

M. Johannsen: La participation de toutes les provinces
n’est pas nécessaire a I’établissement d’'un mécanisme natio-
nal. Prenons I’exemple de I'Office canadien de commerciali-
sation du poulet. Actuellement, la Colombie-Britannique n’en
fait pas partie.

Le sénateur Olson: Cela, je le comprends, mais vous
devez obtenir I’accord d’une province avant de pouvoir préle-
ver une contribution sur les produits générés par celle-ci.

M. Johannsen: Trés certainement.
Le sénateur Olson: Cela ne fait pas de doute.

Le président: Je désire prendre quelques minutes pour par-
ler des Opérations douanieres et des Opérations de I’accise du
ministére du Revenu. Si vous devez percevoir des droits ou
faire des prélévements et que cela doit se faire a la frontiere
pour les importations, ce qui est probablement le meilleur
endroit, quelle devrait étre la fagon de procéder pour un office
d’apreés-vous?

M. Claydon: Je vais laisser M. Johannsen répondre 2 cette
question. Il a eu des conversations avec le personnel des Opé-
rations douanieres et des Opérations d’accise.

M. Johannsen: Comme vous I’avez signalé, M. le Prési-
dent, la loi n’autorise pas le personnel des Opérations doua-
nieres et des Opérations d’accise de prélever les contributions
relatives aux importations. Dans ce cas, il reviendrait aux
groupes d’importateurs de marchandises de décider ol il serait
le plus pratique d’effectuer les prélevements.

Le président: Je viens de vous dire ou se trouve I’endroit le
plus efficace et vous avez admis que c’est 2 la frontiere.

M. Johannsen: Pas nécessairement; pour certaines mar-
chandises il pourrait étre plus efficace d’effectuer le préleve-
ment ultérieurement. Celui-ci pourrait avoir lieu au niveau de
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happen at the distribution level—that is, the wholesale or dis-
tributor level. They would then be at the point of a receiver-
ship, having been imported, because then it is a more central
focus for some of them. But that is not necessarily the case.

If you look at the example of the cattlemen, they know who
the importers are. If you do not know who the importers are,
this legislation provides the authority necessary to identify and
compel registration of participants in the marketing system so
that you can find out. You have legislative authority to find
out who the importers are and make them register.

The other point is that, for cattle, they are essentially
intending to use an honour system so that as importers are
importing they would remit their check-offs either on a quar-
terly or monthly basis, or however that would work. But the
legislation provides authority to access customs information
so that the agency, if they are operating on an honour system
with respect to imports, at least have the option of conducting
an audit of the customs information on an annual basis, or
even more frequently, so that they can verify who has been
importing what.

The Chairman: You are telling me that the most that an
agency can do is request the information from the customs
people at the border crossing point—that is, their information
on it?

Mr. Johannsen: In terms of access to customs informa-
tion?

The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Johannsen: Yes, access. In terms of legislative author-
ity, though, the act does allow the agency to identify the indi-
viduals who are compelled to pay the check-off or to identify
other individuals who would be compelled to remit the
check-off.

If that is confusing, think of a situation where, as a cattle
producer I am selling to a meat packer. The legislation
would-—

The Chairman: A cattle producer where? In the states?

Mr. Johannsen: I am just thinking domestically for the
moment. The legislation would allow a domestic agency to
say that meat packing plants are responsible for deducting the
amount of the check-off from a payment to a producer and
then remitting that check-off to the agency. The same could be
done with respect to imports, which gets back to my example
of wholesalers and distributors. The agency could designate
the wholesaler to deduct from an importer the amount of a
levy on imports and then the wholesaler would actually be
responsible for remitting the levy to the agency.

The Chairman: You do not see any leaks in the system,
then?

Mr. Johannsen: I am sure that these are problems.

[Traduction]

la distribution, en gros ou en détail. Cela se ferait alors a un
point de réception des marchandises aprés leur importation.
Mais cela n’est pas nécessairement le cas.

Prenons le cas des éleveurs de bétail: ils savent qui sont les
importateurs. Si vous ne savez pas qui sont les importateurs, la
loi vous permet d’identifier les participants dans le syst¢éme de
mise en marché et de les obliger a s’inscrire. Vous pourrez
alors les connaitre. La loi vous permet d’identifier les impor-
tateurs et d’obliger ceux-ci a s’inscrire.

Par ailleurs, dans le cas du bétail on espére avoir recours a
un régime de confiance: les importateurs remettraient leurs
contributions a la fin de chaque trimestre ou de chaque mois.
Mais la loi permet d’avoir acces a I’information recueillie par
les Opérations douanieres de sorte que I’office, s’il utilise un
régime de confiance pour ce qui a trait aux importations, peut
au moins effectuer une vérification de cette information sur
une base annuelle ou plus fréquemment et établir qui a
importé quoi.

Le président: Vous me dites que tout ce qu’un organisme
peut faire est de demander I'information recueillie par les
douaniers a la frontidre.

M. Johannsen: Vous parlez de I’acces a cette information?

Le président: Oui.

M. Johannsen: Oui. La loi permet a I’office d’identifier les
personnes qui doivent payer les contributions et celles qui doi-
vent effectuer les remboursements.

Si vous trouvez cela embrouillé, prenez mon cas, celui d’un
éleveur de bétail qui vend ses produits aux abattoirs. La loi. . .

Le président: Ou &tes-vous éleveur, aux Etats-Unis?

M. Johannsen: Je ne parle que de la situation domestique.
La loi permettrait 2 un office domestique de décréter que les
abattoirs doivent prélever les contributions sur les paiements
aux producteurs et lui remettre ces contributions. On pourrait
procéder de la méme fagon pour les importations, ce qui nous
raméne a2 mon exemple sur les grossistes et les distributeurs.
L’office pourrait demander aux grossistes d’effecteur les pré-
levements sur les importations et de les lui remettre.

Le président: Vous ne voyez pas de possibilité de fuite
dans le syst¢éme alors?

M. Johannsen: Je suis sir qu’il y a des probléemes.
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The Chairman: Let us talk vegetables, for example, and
fruit.

Mr. Johannsen: Yes and no. There are leaks in the system,
but probably to the same extent that they have them already.
Domestic check-offs are probably no piece of cake to enforce
in all cases.

The Chairman: The point being that, if you have a
mandatory or voluntary-mandatory collection—and it is all
the same; some of them have a refund and some do not—and
you are trying to collect these levies, and there are leaks in the
system within the country, I suppose you can seek these out.
But is it easy to do with respect to importers? Is it easy to
apply to seek out an offender? For example, whom do you lay
the levy on? Are you laying the levy on the guy bringing it in
or the producer bringing it in, or whom? Let us take an exam-
ple: Beef.

Mr. Johannsen: In the simplest case it would be the
importer who has the obligation to pay the levy.

The Chairman: That is the Canadian importer, not the
American exporter.

Mr. Johannsen: That is right. No, there is jurisdiction.

The Chairman: Let me reverse it now. What happens with
ours going do the States, because there are similar levy orga-
nizations for Canadian agriculture products going into the
States. Correct? How do they do it?

Mr. Johannsen: Going into the United States?
The Chairman: Yes.

Mr. Johannsen: The United States uses its customs offi-
cials to collect the check-off items.

The Chairman: So they collect it at customs and turn it
over to the agency?

Mr. Johannsen: That is correct.
The Chairman: But we will do it the other way?
Mr. Johannsen: That is right.

The Chairman: You did mention, Mr. Claydon, that some
of this was a result of Canadian producers studying the Ameri-
can agency system. But this part of the American agency sys-
tem, which is a rather simplified method, we are ignoring with
this legislation. Is that right, or is it being ignored, the collect-
ing at the border by the customs officials?

Mr. Claydon: No, we are not using that approach.
The Chairman: Can you give me a reason?

Mr. Claydon: I am not sure that I can. I can give you a
reason in that our legislation is different and does not allow it.
Perhaps Mr. Johannsen has comments on that in terms what is
going on with Customs and Excise.

[Traduction)

Le président: Prenons le cas des fruits et des légumes par
exemple.

M. Johannsen: Oui et non. Il y a des fuites dans le sys-
t¢me, mais probablement pas plus que dans le syst¢me actuel.
Les prélevements de contributions relativement aux produits
domestiques sont probablement toujours difficiles a effectuer.

Le président: Si le prélévement est obligatoire ou volon-
taire — il n’y a pas de différence, dans certains cas il y a rem-
boursement, dans d’autres cas il n’y en a pas—et s’il y a des
fuites dans le systtme au pays lorsque vous tentez d’effectuer
ces préleévements, je suppose que vous pouvez enquéter. Est-
ce facile a faire avec les importateurs? Est-il facile de deman-
der d’enquéter sur les contrevenants? Par exemple, qui doit
faire I’objet du prélevement? L’importateur, le producteur qui
fait de I'importation, qui? Prenons le cas du boeuf par
exemple.

M. Johannsen: Dans les situations les plus simples, ce
serait I'importateur qui devrait faire I’objet du prélévement.

Le président: L’importateur canadien, non I’exportateur
américain.

M. Johannsen: C’est exact. Il y a une juridiction.

Le président: Renversons la situation maintenant.
Qu’arrive-t-il 2 nos exportations aux Etats-Unis, car il y a des
organismes de prélevement similaires pour les produits agri-

coles canadiens exportés aux Etats-Unis, n’est-ce pas? Com-
ment procédents-ils?

M. Johannsen: Pour les exportations aux Etats-Unis?

Le président: Oui.

M. Johannsen: Aux Etats-Unis les prélévements sont
effectués par les douaniers.

Le président: Les douaniers effectuent les prélevements et
les remettent a I’organisme?

M. Johannsen: Exactement.
Le président: Mais nous allons procéder de I’autre fagon?
M. Johannsen: Exactement.

Le président: Vous avez dit M. Claydon que, dans une cer-
taine mesure, ceci résultait du fait que les producteurs cana-
diens avaient examiné le systéme américain. Mais n’est-ce pas
cet aspect du systéme américain, le prélevement a la frontiere
par les douaniers, que nous laissons de coté avec cette Iégisla-
tion?

M. Claydon: Non, nous n’utilisons pas cette approche.

Le président: Pourriez-vous m’expliquer pourquoi?

M. Claydon: Je ne suis pas sir. Il se peut que la raison soit
que nos lois sont différentes et ne le permettent pas.
M. Johannsen pourrait peut-étre nous dire ce qui se passe a ce
sujet aux Opérations douanieres et aux Opérations d’accise.
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Mr. Johannsen: You referred to the request of the com-
modity groups. When they first came forward that was pre-
cisely what they were asking for, namely, the collection of
import check-offs by customs officials because that is what is
done in the United States. The problem is that our department,
in discussions with other departments for example, the
Department of Finance and Customs and Excise encountered
opposition to that proposal.

The opposition is based on policy grounds and on the idea
that the Consolidated Revenue Fund should only be used for
public purposes and not essentially private purposes, and so
on. The long and short of it would be that, given the opposi-
tion to the use of customs officials, this is an alternative that
will provide an opportunity to verify customs information.

Once a system is up and running and it turns out for
whatever reason that may be difficult to envisage at the
moment that access to customs information is not working,
there is no reason why the act cannot be reopened at a later
date to address that question.

More specifically, as we stated earlier, Customs and Excise
does have the authority to enter into agreements to collect
these types of fees on a cost-recovery basis and may be ame-
nable to a proposal to do precisely that.

The Chairman: I suppose the question we would have to
ask the minister is why one department fails to cooperate with
another department of the federal government? It is not a
question that I would ask of you gentleman.

Senator Olson: On the opposition side?

The Chairman: I have not come to the opposition. I am
trying to be efficient and effective and fair. Fair enough?

Have you any closing remarks to make, Mr. Claydon? I
thought that I would throw out that last comment, so you
could go home with something to think about.

Mr. Claydon: We will go home and do some thinking. In
terms of putting this whole package together over the last
couple of years there have been a number of hurdles like that
within the federal government that we had to deal with. A lot
of work has gone into it and a lot of the difficulties have been
sorted out. I will not mention any departments, but many of
the potential problems have been eliminated. I can see that this
seems to be one that is remaining. We will have another look
at it.

The Chairman: It should be helpful to know that a couple
of years ago the present Minister of Finance was also the Min-
ister of Agriculture.

Senator Olson: They are so busy collecting the GST they
do not have time for those things.

[Traduction)

M. Johannsen: Vous avez parlé de la demande des groupes
d’importateurs de marchandises. C’est ce qu’ils demandaient
lorsqu’ils se sont présentés, a savoir que les prélévements sur
les importations soient effectués par les douaniers, parce que
c’est ce qui se passe aux Etats-Unis. Le probléme vient du fait
que dans les discussions entre notre Ministeére et les autres
ministeres, par exemple avec le ministere des Finances, il y a
eu de la résistance a cette proposition.

Cette résistance repose sur des questions de politique et sur
I’idée que le Trésor ne doit étre utilisé qu’a des fins publiques
et non pas pour des fins essentiellement privées, etc. Le fin
mot de I’affaire, étant donné cette résistance a I’utilisation des
douaniers, est que ceci permettra de vérifier I’information
recueillie aux douanes.

Une fois qu’'un systéme est mis en place et qu’il s’aveére que
I’acces aux données des douanes ne se fait pas pour une raison
quelconque difficile a envisager pour I’instant, la loi pourrait
toujours étre modifiée a une date ultérieure pour tenir compte
de cet aspect.

Comme nous I’avons mentionné antérieurement, les ins-
tances compétentes de Douanes et Accise sont habilitées a
conclure des accords pour la perception de ce genre de droits
avec recouvrement des cofits et seraient disposées a accueillir
une proposition a ce sujet.

Le président: J’imagine que nous devrions demander au
Ministre pourquoi un ministeére ne collabore pas avec un autre
ministére du gouvernement fédéral. Ce n’est pas une question
que je vous poserais, messieurs.

Le sénateur Olson: C6té opposition?

Le président: Je n’y suis pas encore arrivé. J’essaie tout
simplement d’étre efficace et équitable. D’accord?

M. Claydon, avez-vous des observations finales a faire? J’ai
pensé lancer cette observation pour vous donner matiére a
réfléchir.

M. Claydon: Nous allons y réfléchir. Quant a la réalisation
de ce projet au cours des dernieres années, nous avons di sur-
monter un certain nombre d’obstacles du genre au sein de
I’administration fédérale. Nous y avons travaillé trés fort et
avons réglé un certain nombre de problémes. Je ne mentionne-
rai aucun ministére, mais bon nombre des difficultés poten-
tielles ont été éliminées. Je constate que ce probleme ne
semble pas encore avoir été réglé. Nous allons nous pencher
la-dessus.

Le président: Il serait utile de savoir qu’il y a quelques
années, le Ministre des Finances actuel était aussi Ministre de
I’ Agriculture.

Le sénateur Olson: Ils sont tellement occupés a percevoir
la TPS qu’il n’ont pas le temps de s’occuper de ces questions.
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The Chairman: Mr. Mclsaac, have you any closing
remarks?

Mr. Mclsaac: Mr. Chairman, in order to respond to some
of the questions raised here this afternoon, and that might well
be raised by producer groups, departmental officials and some
of our officials at the Council are developing a “how-to” man-
ual to assist anyone who asks for information. That work is
being initiated. We are also working with officials from the
Canadian Federation of Agriculture to see to it that questions
that might be raised are addressed and that the answers are
available a little more readily.

The Chairman: That would be very helpful, Mr. Mclsaac,
not only to parliamentarians but particularly to the commodity
and producer groups who may be looking at these issues. I
thank you for that.

Are there any other questions? Senator Sparrow.

Senator Sparrow: Apart from the Wheat Board Act, what
other marketing legislation is there under orderly marketing?
There was a bill a few years ago for orderly marketing of
rapeseed, as it was known at the time; it is called canola now.
What Act is that?

Mr. Claydon: It is the Agricultural Products Cooperative
Marketing Act. It deals with the establishment of cooperative
marketing arrangements for various commodities. It is used
for wheat outside the Wheat Board area and various other
grains. There are a number of commaodities that use that piece
of legislation. It has provisions in it about setting initial prices
and it operates somewhat along the lines of the Wheat Board
in some respects. It is more voluntarily in that it is on an indi-
vidual, specific commodity, and producers can arrange to sign
up and use that Act as a group. It does not have to cover all of
a particular commodity; it can also be for a subset of the com-
modity. ¢

Senator Sparrow: As an example, could canola come
under this Act?

Mr. Claydon: Canola could come under this Act as well as
APCMA, yes.

Senator Sparrow: It is under the other Act now that you
are talking about?

Mr. Claydon: I believe so.

Senator Sparrow: It has never been used for canola?

Mr. Claydon: The APCMA?

[Traduction)

Le président: M. Mclsaac, avez-vous des observations
finales a faire?

M. Mclsaac: Monsieur le président, pour répondre a cer-
taines questions soulevées ici cet aprés-midi et qui pourraient
étre soulevées par des groupes de producteurs, je signale que
des hauts fonctionnaires des ministeres et certains membres
du Conseil ont mis au point un guide pratique a I’intention de
personnes qui font des demandes de renseignements. Ces tra-
vaux ont été entamés. Nous travaillons également en collabo-
ration avec des hauts fonctionnaires de la Fédération cana-
dienne de I’agriculture pour que les questions éventuelles
soient étudiées et qu’il soit plus facile d’obtenir des réponses.

Le président: Ce serait trés utile, M. Mclsaac, non seule-
ment pour les parlementaires, mais pour les groupes de pro-
ducteurs spécialisés et les groupes de producteurs qui se pen-
chent sur ces questions. Je vous en remercie.

Y a-t-il d’autres questions? Sénateur Sparrow.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Mise a part la Loi sur la Commis-
sion canadienne du blé, quels autres textes de loi sur la com-
mercialisation existe-t-il dans la catégorie de la vente métho-
dique? Un projet de loi a été déposé il y a quelques années sur
la vente méthodique des graines de colza, appelées
aujourd’hui colza canola. Quel était ce texte de loi?

M. Claydon: La Loi sur la vente coopérative des produits
agricoles (LVCPA). Cette loi portait sur la réalisation
d’accords en vue de la vente coopérative de divers produits.
On I'invoque pour le blé en dehors de la compétence de la
Commission canadienne du blé et pour d’autres céréales. Ce
texte de loi est invoqué pour bon nombre de grains. Il ren-
ferme des dispositions relatives a I’établissement de prix ini-
tiaux et a un effet analogue a celui de la Loi sur la Commis-
sion canadienne du blé a certains égards. L’application de la
LVCPA se fait sur une base volontaire, étant donné qu’elle
vise des produits spécifiques et que les producteurs peuvent
former des groupes et invoquer cette loi collectivement. Il
n’est pas nécessaire que le texte porte sur I’'ensemble du pro-
duit; il peut aussi bien en viser un sous-ensemble.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Les graines de colza canola pour-
raient-elles étre visées par cette loi, par exemple?

M. Claydon: Oui, le colza canola pourrait étre visé par
cette loi et par la Loi sur la vente coopérative des produits
agricoles (LVCPA).

Le sénateur Sparrow: Vous parlez maintenant de I’autre
loi?

M. Claydon: Oui.

Le sénateur Sparrow: On ne I’a jamais invoqué pour le
colza canola?

M. Claydon: La Loi sur la vente coopérative des produits
agricoles (LVCPA)?
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Senator Sparrow Yes.

Mr. Claydon: For cash advance there is another piece of
legislation, the Prairie Grain Advance Payments Act. That is
used to do that as well as the Agricultural Products Advance
Payments Act.

The Chairman: For the eastern provinces?

Mr. Claydon: Those ones deal with interest free advances,
but the APCMA deals with a marketing approach and the set-
ting of initial prices that are guaranteed by the federal govern-
ment. There are also others that are more specific in terms of
other applications.

Senator Sparrow: Could canola producers be in that Act
as well as in this Act? Would there be a conflict?

Mr. Claydon: I do not believe there would be a conflict,
no. This would be something that canola producers might
want to do in terms of research and promotion, and the other
is more in terms of their marketing activities.

The Chairman: I want to take the opportunity on behalf of
our committee to thank Mr. Claydon, Mr. Johanssen, Mr.
Mclsaac and Ms. McWade for appearing before the committee
and enlightening us.

If we get into a lot of trouble with this bill, which I hope we
will not, we will call you back. You have offered to provide
some additional information that can be researched for the
members of the committee, and we thank you for that.

The committee adjourned.

[Traduction)
Le sénateur Sparrow: Oui.

M. Claydon: Pour des avances de fonds, il existe une autre
loi, la Loi sur les paiements anticipés pour le grain des Prai-
ries, qui est invoquée, ainsi que la Loi sur le paiement anticipé
des récoltes.

Le président: Pour les provinces de I’est?

M. Claydon: Ces textes portent sur des avances sans inté-
réts, mais la LVCPA traite de la vente et de I’établissement de
prix initiaux garantis par le gouvernement fédéral. Il existe
aussi d’autres textes de loi plus spécifiques pour d’autres
applications.

Le sénateur Sparrow: Les producteurs de graines de colza
canola pourraient-ils étre visés par les deux lois? Y aurait-il un
conflit?

M. Claydon: Je ne crois pas qu’il y aurait un conflit. Ce
serait peut-étre une question que les producteurs de graines de
colza canola aimeraient aborder en matiere de recherche et de
promotion. L’autre aspect porterait sur les activités de com-
mercialisation.

Le président: J’aimerais profiter de I’occasion pour remer-
cier, au nom du comité, Messieurs Claydon, Johannsen et
Mclsaac ainsi que Mme McWade d’avoir bien voulu faire des
présentations devant le comité et de nous avoir renseigné.

Si nous avons des ennuis avec ce projet de loi (et j’espere
bien que nous n’en aurons pas), nous vous rappelerons. Vous
avez offert de fournir des renseignements supplémentaires qui
pourraient étre examinés pour les membres du comité et nous
vous en remercions.

La séance est levée.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE
Extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,
Thursday, 7th May, 1992.

“Second reading of Bill C-54, an Act to amend the
Farm Products Marketing Agencies Act and other Acts in
consequence thereof.

The Honourable Senator Berntson moved, seconded
by the Honourable Senator Forrestall, that the Bill be
read the second time.

After debate,

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

The Bill was then read the second time.

The Honourable Senator Berntson moved, seconded
by the Honourable Senator Forrestall, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Agricul-
ture and Forestry.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.”

ORDRE DE RENVOI
Extrait des Procés-verbaux du Sénat, le jeudi 7 mai 1992.

«Deuxieme lecture du Projet de loi C-54, Loi modifiant
la Loi sur les offices de commercialisation des produits
de ferme et d’autres lois en conséquence.

L’honorable sénateur Berntson propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Forrestall, que le projet de loi soit lu
la deuxie¢me fois.

Apres débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxieme fois.

L’honorable sénateur Berntson propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Forrestall, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture et
des foréts.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Gordon L. Barnhart
Clerk of the Senate
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THURSDAY, MAY 21, 1992
®)

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and For-
estry met at 4:02 p.m. this day, in Room 356-S, Centre Block,
the Chairman, the Honourable Senator Barootes, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Barootes, Corbin, Forrestall, Olson, Ross, Rossiter and
Spivak. (7)

In attendance: From the Research Branch of the Library of
Parliament: Jean-Denis Fréchette, Research Officer.

Also in attendance: The Official Reporters of the Senate.
Witnesses:

From the Canadian Federation of Agriculture:
Sally Rutherford, Executive Director.

From the Canadian Horticultural Council:
Steve Whitney, Assistant Executive Director.

From the Canadian Broiler Hatching Egg Marketing Agency:

Paul Jelley.

From the Canadian Chicken Marketing Agency:
Albert F. Chambers, Manager, Policy/Communications.

From the Canadian Egg Marketing Agency:
Gerry Gartner.

From the Fresh for Flavour Foundation:
Suzan Sutherland.

From the Canadian Pork Council:
Martin Rice and Catherine Scovil, Executive Associates.

Pursuant to the Order of Reference adopted by the Senate
on Friday, May 1, 1992, the Committee resumed consideration
of Bill C-54, An Act to amend the Farm Products Marketing
Agencies Act and other Acts in consequence thereof.

Sally Rutherford, Suzan Sutherland and Catherine Scovil
made an opening statement and along with Steve Whitney,
Martin Rice and Paul Jelly answered questions.

PROCES-VERBAL

LE JEUDI 21 MAI 1992
&)

[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de 1I’agriculture et des
foréts se réunit aujourd’hui a 16 h 02, dans la piece 356-S de
I’édifice du Centre, sous la présidence de 1’honorable sénateur
Barootes (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Barootes, Corbin, Forrestall, Olson, Ross, Rossiter et Spivak.

@)
Aussi présents: Du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque
du Parlement: Jean-Denis Fréchette, attaché de recherche.

Egalement présents: Les sténographes du Sénat.
Témoins:

De la Fédération canadienne de |’agriculture:
Sally Rutherford, directrice administrative.

Du Conseil canadien de ’horticulture:
Steve Whitney, directeur exécutif adjoint.

De [’Office canadien de commercialisation des cufs
d’incubation de poulet a chair:

Paul Jelley.

De I’Office canadien de commercialisation des poulets:
Albert F. Chambers, Politique de gestion/Communications.

De I’Office canadien de commercialisation des ceufs:
Gerry Gartner.

De la Fondation fraicheur égale saveur:
Suzan Sutherland.

Du Conseil canadien du porc:
Martin Rice et Catherine Scovil, adjoints administratifs.

En conformité avec I’ordre de renvoi adopté par le Sénat le
vendredi 1¢° mai 1992, le Comité reprend I’étude du projet de
loi C-54, Loi modifiant la Loi sur les offices de commerciali-
sation des produits de ferme et d’autres lois en conséquence.

Sally Rutherford, Suzan Sutherland et Catherine Scovil font
une déclaration liminaire puis, avec I’aide de Steve Whitney,
Martin Rice et Paul Jelly, répondent aux questions.
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At 5:28 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the A 17 h 28, le Comité s’ajourne jusqu’a nouvelle convoca-
Chair. tion du président.

ATTEST: ATTESTE:

La greffiére du Comité
Marie Louise Paradis
Clerk of the Committee
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Ottawa, Thursday, May 21, 1992

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture and For-
estry, to which was referred Bill C-54, to amend the Farm
Products Marketing Agencies Act and other acts in conse-
quence thereof, met this day at 4 p.m. to give consideration to
the bill.

Senator Efstathios William Barootes (Chairman) in the
Chair.

The Chairman: I call to order our meeting of the Standing
Senate Committee on Agriculture and Forestry which is con-
sidering Bill C-54, an act to amend the Farm Products Market-
ing Agencies Act and other acts in consequence thereof.

With us is Sally Rutherford, Executive Director of the
Canadian Federation of Agriculture, and well known to people
in agricultural work on the Hill.

We have a brief from the Canadian Federation of Agricul-
ture.

With us are Stephen Whitney, representing the Canadian
Horticultural Council; Paul Jelley, with the Canadian Broiler
Hatching Egg Marketing Agency; Albert Chambers, repre-
senting the Canadian Chicken Marketing Agency; Gerry Gart-
ner, from the Canadian Egg Marketing Agency; and Susan
Sutherland from the Fresh for Flavour Foundation.

Is there anyone from the Prairie Pools?

Ms Sally Rutherford, Executive Director, Canadian
Federation of Agriculture: Mr. Chairman, there is no one
here from the Prairie Pools today. They called just before I left
to say they were not able to join us.

Martin Rice will be here. He is from the Canadian Pork
Council.

The Chairman: How do you wish to proceed, Ms Ruther-
ford?

Ms Sutherland: On behalf of the CFA and our members, I
will go through our presentation, the position in broad terms
of all our members. I know that the Horticultural Council
would like to make a few brief statements in relation to its
own experience trying to deal with this kind of issue. The
Canadian Pork Council would like to do the same thing. We
will then answer any questions you have.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le jeudi 21 mai 1992

[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de 1'agriculture et des
foréts, auquel a été renvoyé le projet de loi C-54, Loi modi-
fiant la Loi sur les offices de commercialisation des produits
de ferme et d’autres lois en conséquence, se réunit
aujourd’hui, 2 16 heures, pour examiner le projet de loi.

Le sénateur Efstathios William Barootes (président)
occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Je déclare ouverte la séance du Comité séna-
torial permanent de I’agriculture et des foréts, ici réuni pour
étudier le projet de loi C-54, Loi modifiant la Loi sur les
offices de commercialisation des produits de ferme et d’autres
lois en conséquence.

Nous accueillons parmi nous Sally Rutherford, directeur
exécutif de la Fédération canadienne de I’agriculture, qui est
trés bien connue de tous ceux et celles qui s’occupent du dos-
sier agricole ici sur la colline.

Nous avons entre les mains un mémoire de la Fédération
canadienne de ’agriculture.

Souhaitons donc la bienvenue a Stephen Whitney, du Con-
seil canadien de I’agriculture; a Paul Jelley, de 1'Office cana-
dien de commercialisation des oeufs d’incubation de poulet a
chair; 2 Albert Chambers, qui représente 1I’Office canadien de
commercialisation des poulets; et a2 Susan Sutherland, de la
Fondation fraicheur égale saveur. Nous avons également le
plaisir de rencontrer Gerry Gartner, de I’Office canadien de
commercialisation des oeufs.

Y a-t-il quelqu’un des Prairie Pools?

Mme Sally Rutherford (directeur exécutif, Fédération
canadienne de I’agriculture): Monsieur le président, il n’y
aura personne ici aujourd’hui de la Prairie Pools. Quelqu’un
de leur bureau a téléphoné tout a I’heure pour nous dire qu’ils
se trouvaient dans I’impossibilité de nous envoyer un repré-
sentant.

Martin Rice sera ici. Il travaille au Conseil canadien du
porc.

Le président: Comment aimeriez-vous que I’on procede,
madame Rutherford?

M= Sutherland: Au nom de la Fédération canadienne de
I’agriculture et de ses membres je parcourerai avec vous notre
exposé, qui énonce la position de I’ensemble de nos membres.
Je sais que le représentant du Conseil canadien de
I’horticulture aimerait également faire quelques bréves obser-
vations au sujet de son expérience dans ce dossier. Il en sera
de méme pour le représentant du Conseil canadien du porc.
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The Chairman: Thank you. Will you please proceed.

Ms Rutherford: I would like to thank you for this opportu-
nity to appear before the committee on this bill, and to point
out that it has two purposes.

The first is to establish a legislative framework for national
check-off systems for the purpose of research and promotion.
The second is to make some amendments to the original legis-
lation to accommodate recommendations within the Poultry
Task Force Report and to address housekeeping matters.

CFA has been involved in the consultations around this leg-
islation for over two years. We have been clear and vocal in
our support to Mr. McKnight and to his predecessor, Mr.
Mazankowski, and to provincial agriculture ministers con-
cerning our support for the concept of a national check-off
system for promotion and research.

Farmers acknowledge the need to participate more actively
in the development of primary and market research and in the
promotion of their commodities. The past number of years
have proven that collaboration among the various parts of the
industry can be productive for all, a true case of the sum being
greater than the parts.

Commodity groups have been seeking the ability to
check-off for years. These commodities had varying uses for
the check-off. There was primary research. In some cases
there was market research. In other cases there were commod-
ities which wished to involve the processing industry and to
check-off processed goods. The reasons are various, but the
goal is the same: to give primary agriculture, in some cases in
conjunction with the agri-food industry, the ability to be more
market-oriented with good information, good planning and
product.

We know that such a check-off system exists in the U.S. I
believe that Steven and Susan will probably address that. In
the U.S., the system provides considerable funds for research
and promotion in that country. Indeed, much of that money is
from Canadian products which are exported to that country.
We believe it is time for this type of system to be put in place
in Canada. We stress that it must not be permitted to reduce
federal commitment to agricultural or agri-food research.

In 1990, the CFA adopted the following position on
check-offs. First, any check-off proposal using farmers’

[Traduction)

Nous répondrons ensuite aux questions que vous voudrez nous
poser.

Le président: Merci. Allez-y, je vous prie.

Mme Rutherford: J’aimerais vous remercier de I’occasion
qui nous est ici donnée de comparaitre devant le Comité qui a
été chargé d’étudier le projet de loi, et de souligner que le pro-
jet de loi a deux objets.

Tout d’abord, il vise a établir un cadre législatif pour
I’établissement de systémes nationaux de prélevements devant
favoriser la recherche et la promotion. Deuxi¢émemement, il
viendrait modifier la Loi actuelle a la lumiere de certaines
recommandations contenues dans le rapport du Groupe de tra-
vail sur la volaille et régler certaines questions d’organisation.

La FCA participe depuis plus de deux ans aux consultations
entourant le projet de loi. Nous avons exprimé de fagon claire
et ferme a M. McKnight, ainsi qu’a son prédécesseur,
M. Mazankowski, et aux ministres provinciaux de
I’ Agriculture, notre appui du concept d’un systéme national de
prélévements pour la promotion et la recherche.

Les agriculteurs reconnaissent la nécessité de participer plus
activement au développement de la recherche primaire et de
commercialisation et a la promotion de ce qu’ils produisent.
L’expérience des derniéres années a prouvé que la collabora-
tion entre les diverses composantes du secteur peut étre pro-
ductive pour chacune d’entre elles, illustration parlante du fait
que le tout peut étre plus grand que la somme de ses parties.

Des regroupements de producteurs demandent depuis
longtemps la mise en place d’un systeme de prélevements. Les
buts visés étaient multiples. Dans certains cas, c’était la
recherche primaire, dans d’autres, ¢’était la recherche axée sur
la commercialisation, et dans d’autres encore il s’agissait de
faire intervenir les transformateurs et d’imposer des préleve-
ments dans le cas des produits transformés. Les raisons sont
multiples, mais le but est le méme: donner au secteur agricole
primaire, dans certains cas conjointement avec le secteur agro-
alimentaire, la capacité de s’adapter davantage au marché,
avec de bons renseignements, une bonne planification et de
bons produits.

Nous savons qu’un tel systtme de prélévements existe aux
Etats-Unis. Je pense que Steven et Susan aborderont cette
question. Aux Etats-Unis, le régime procure des fonds consi-
dérables a la recherche et a la promotion. D’ailleurs, le gros de
I’argent ainsi récupéré provient de produits canadiens exportés
aux Etats-Unis. Nous pensons qu’il est temps que le méme
genre de systéme soit mis en place ici au Canada. Nous tenons
néanmoins A souligner qu’il ne faudrait pas qu’il serve 2
réduire I’engagement fédéral envers la recherche dans les sec-
teurs agro-alimentaire et agricole.

En 1990, la Fédération canadienne de I’agriculture a adopté
la position suivante relativement aux préleévements. Tout
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money must be operated by farmers. Second, the commodity
can only be checked-off once within a federal system. Third,
that all producers of a commodity in which a check-off is pro-
posed must have the right to participate in the decision.
Fourth, that a check-off would have to be applied equally to
all producers of a commodity. Finally, a check-off must not
remove the government’s responsibility to carry on research.

The amendment of the legislation before you goes a consid-
erable way to the position adopted by the CFA.

Use of this particular legislation, the Farm Products Market-
ing Agencies Act, to establish check-offs, was not our first
choice of legislation to be used. We understand the rationale
behind the decision to use this legislation and, along with
other organizations interested in the development of
check-offs, support the proposals before the committee.

There are a number of issues we would like to address,
some within the present bill and further amendments to this
bill and the existing legislation.

I will go through the points we have made to the House of
Commons committee and Agriculture Canada.

The first issue is the definition of farm product. The amend-
ments contained in clauses 3(b) and 3(c) to “farm product” are
not workable. The concern is in how the two definitions work
together within the legislation and the effect on both the com-
modities dealt with in Part II and those dealt with in Part III. It
is an issue of statutory interpretation.

We made some proposals for amendments which you have
before you on pages 2 and 3 of our brief. The relevant part of
the process today starts in the middle of page 3, which
addresses where we are at this point in time.

Subsequent to the tabling of the legislation in the House of
Commons, CFA and its members functioning under the act,
identified their concerns. In particular, our concern about the
inclusion of the phrase “whether processed or unprocessed” in
subclause 3(c), which will apply to Part III agencies and asked
the definition of “farm product” be amended to include
“whether processed or unprocessed”.

To date, the definition of “farm product” in the act has been
interpreted as giving the Governor in Council the authority to
grant a Part II agency the power to regulate processed product
in interprovincial trade for the purposes of establishing an

[Traduction)

d’abord, toute formule de prélévement qui utilise I’argent des
agriculteurs doit étre gérée par ces derniers. Deuxiémement,
un produit ne peut étre visé par un prélévement qu’une seule
fois a I'intérieur du syst®me fédéral. Troisiémement, tous les
producteurs d’un produit pour lequel un prélévement est pro-
posé doivent avoir le droit de participer a la décision. Quatrie-
mement, tout prélévement, quel qu’il soit, doit s’appliquer de
la méme fagon 2 tous les producteurs de ce produit. Enfin, le
fait qu’il y ait un prélevement ne doit pas balayer la responsa-
bilité du gouvernement de faire de la recherche.

Le projet de loi dont vous étes saisis va assez loin dans le
sens de la proposition adoptée par la Fédération.

L’utilisation de ce projet de loi, Loi modifiant la Loi sur les
offices de commercialisation des produits de ferme, pour éta-
blir un régime de prélevements, n’était pas notre premier
choix. Nous comprenons cependant pourquoi on a voulu pas-
ser par I'intermédiaire de cette loi pour apporter des change-
ments et nous appuyons, aux cotés d’autres organismes inté-
ressés par I’établissement d’un régime de prélévements, les
propositions que vous avez devant vous.

Il y a plusieurs questions dont nous aimerions traiter. I
s’agit, dans certains cas, d’aspects du projet de loi, et dans
d’autres, de projets d’amendement visant le projet de loi et la
Loi existante.

Je vais parcourir les points que nous avons soulevés aupres
du Comité permanent de la Chambre et d’ Agriculture Canada.

Tout d’abord, la définition de «produit agricole». Les modi-
fications prévues aux paragraphes 3b) et 3c), relativement aux
produits agricoles, ne pourraient pas étre mises en pratique. Ce
qui nous préoccupe, ce sont la fagon dont les deux définitions
fonctionnent ensemble 2 l'intérieur du projet de loi et
I’incidence que cela aura sur les produits visés dans la Partie II
et sur ceux visés dans la Partie IIL. Il s’agit d’une question
d’interprétation statutaire.

Nous avons certains projets d’amendements, que vous avez
devant vous, aux pages 2 et 3 du mémoire. C’est au milieu de
la page 3 que nous traitons de la partie du processus qui nous
intéresse aujourd’hui.

Suite au dépot du projet de loi a la Chambre des communes,
la FCA et ses membres qui sont visés par la Loi ont fait part
de leurs préoccupations. Plus particuliérement, nous avons dit
étre préoccupés par I'inclusion de la formule «transformé ou
non» au paragraphe 3c), qui s’appliquera aux offices visés a la
Partie III, et avons demandé que la définition de «produit agri-
cole» ou «produit de ferme» soit modifiée de fagon 2 inclure
les mots «transformé ou non».

A ce jour, la définition de «produit agricole» dans la Loi a
été interprétée comme autorisant le gouverneur en conseil 2
accorder 2 un office visé 2 la Partie II le pouvoir de réglemen-
ter un produit transformé offert sur le marché interprovincial,
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orderly market within Canada, between regions where there is
supply management and where there is not. The existing proc-
lamations of both the Canadian Chicken Marketing Agency
and the Canadian Broiler Hatching Egg Marking Agency
include authority over “processed product”.

The inclusion of “processed and unprocessed” in subclause
3(c) raised the possibility that, if the matter came before the
courts, the courts would likely interpret the wording in sub-
section 3(b) of the act, “eggs and poultry and any part
thereof”, as only applying to unprocessed product.

The minister responded to these concerns while the bill was
before the house Standing Committee on Agriculture. An
amendment was proposed and adopted that clarified the defi-
nition of “farm product” in subclause 3(a). However, with
respect to Part II agencies, the committee declined to approve
an amendment put forward by an opposition MP. The agen-
cies have received assurances from officials that if a problem
does arise in the future it will be corrected.

The CFA would have preferred to see this issue resolved in
this bill, and an amendment by this committee would be the
simplest solution. However, if this is not something the com-
mittee wishes to do at this time, then the committee might
consider including a request that the minister act immediately
to correct the deficiency in the act, if a problem arises.

In terms of promotion and research plans, this section refers
to those who may be checked-off. It is not clear who may be
checked-off and who may not be checked-off. We understand
that, depending on how a plan is to operate, those within
Canada and those without Canada—those importing goods
into this country— would also have to be checked-off in order
to be able to claim national treatment.

Also, who is a primary producer and who is not a primary
producer appears to be a matter of statutory interpretation. We
know that this particular piece of legislation, the Farm Product
Marketing Agencies Act, has come under considerable scru-
tiny in the courts over a period of time, and that the courts
have made certain rulings on the basis of the wording. In
those rulings “producer” was always meant to mean “primary
producer” even though the word “primary” was not included.

Officials in Agriculture Canada have chosen to see the word
“producer” as being either a “primary producer” or a “proces-
sor”. We asked that the legislation be amended to make clear
who is eligible to be a participant in a research and promotion

[Traduction]

dans le but d’établir au Canada un marché ordonné